


PUBLIC NOTICE 

If you own real estate lots that were involuntarily merged by munidpal action, 
you may be able to have those lots restored to their pre-merger status. 

Your property may qua lify if two or more lots were merged fononing, assessing, 01 

taxation purposes and the merger occurred; 

• Durfng your ownership, without your consent; fil 
• Prior to your ownership·, If no previous owners 

consented to the merger. 

To restore your property to pre-merger status, you must: 

• Make a request to t he local governing body 
• No later than December 3, 2016 

Once restored: 

• Your properties will once again become separate lots; however they must still Go nform to 
ap!)lltable land use ordinances. Restoration does not cure non-conformity. 

This notiae must be: 

• Posted con/inuously In Cl public plaae fram January 1, 2012 
until December 31, 2016, and 

• Published In t/Je 2011 through 2015 Annual Report 

Read the full statute at; 
http://www.gencourt.stote.nh.us/rsa/html/LXIV/674/674-mrg.htm 
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1.2 Introduction 
Our City Council 

Rochester is divided into six (6) wards of as equal as 
practicable population. Each ward has two (2) council 
representatives. Our City Council consists of the Mayor 
and twelve {12) City Councilors. 

Our Location 

Rochester, New Hampshire, known as the Lilac City, is 
located in Strafford County, with a population of almost 
30,000. Rochester is one of the largest cities in New 
Hampshire, encompassing over 44 square miles of 
rolling hills and rivers. Conveniently located only a 
short distance from New Hampshire's famous Lakes 
Region, the White Mountains with its ski resorts and 
the Seacoast with its superb beaches. Only 32 miles NE 
of Manchester, New Hampshire and 65 miles N of 
Boston, Massachusetts. 

Whether covered with its famous lilacs in the spring, 
flowers blooming in the summer, spectacular autumn 
foliage or fresh-fallen snow, the Rochester area is a 
scenic delight. 

Our History 

Originally inhabited by Abenaki Indians of the 
Pennacook tribe, the town was granted to settlers by 
Colonial Governor Samuel Shute. It was officially 
incorporated in 1722, named in honor of the Earl of 
Rochester. Actual settlement of Rochester was delayed 
until 1728 because of conflict with the Indian tribes. 

Traditions of strong family values, strong work ethic and 
lasting community spirit sustain the lasting pride among 
residents and businesses in Rochester. Awareness of 
Rochester's many natural assets and its recent industrial 
growth contributes to that pride. A great sense of 
volunteerism exists that is second to none. Whatever the 
need, whether for an individual or organization, Rochester 
opens its heart each and every time to help with a 
worthwhile cause. 

Our Environment 

Rochester enjoys many of the conveniences of a 
prospering city combined with the delights of small-town 
New England traditions. Due to the restoration of the 
historic Rochester Opera House, cultural and civic 
activities are offered to residents in the area. Rochester 
celebrates the arts with Factory Court concerts annually 
in the spring, a summer festival at the Rochester 
Commons, a Fourth of July celebration complete with 
activities and fireworks in the summer, over 120 years of 
the Rochester Fair (an old fashioned agricultural fair) held 
in the fall, and a holiday parade in the winter. 

One of Rochester's many attributes is its excellent air, 
highway, rail and water transportation connections. 
Major highways include routes 11, 108, 125, 202 and the 
Spaulding Turnpike (Route 16), a four lane, limited access 
highway with six exits to the City. This expressway 
provides easy access to Interstate 95, the Pease 
International Tradeport, Boston's Logan Airport, 
Manchester International Airport, the Portland 
International Jetport and the Port of Portsmouth. The 
New Hampshire Northcoast rail line and Skyhaven Airport 
also serve Rochester. 



Our City Vision 

Rochester's commitment to economic development 
has spurred major growth of manufacturing and 
high-tech companies. The City continues to diversify, 
strengthen and grow as business and industrial 
expansions attract new residents to the area. 

Excellent educational advantages are available to 
residents. The Richard W. Creteau Regional Technology 
Center trains students for well-paid positions and 
assures companies in the area of a skilled workforce. 

Shopping in Rochester provides residents in the city 
and surrounding communities with an attractive 
downtown area and several malls and plazas. Antiques, 
footwear, appliances, pharmacies, restaurants and a 
variety of services are found in downtown Rochester 
and small boutiques to large department and grocery 
stores are found at several plazas and malls located 
throughout the City. 

Cultural and recreational activities include plays at the 
Rochester Opera House, theater, the Rochester Country 
Club golf course, ball fields, hiking, walking paths, 
rivers, ponds and lakes. 

Combined with its natural beauty, easy access and 
many opportunities, Rochester is The Place To Be. 

Our Mission 

Our mission is to provide services which contribute to a 
sense of community and the overall quality of life. 

Our Principles 
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As a City Council we will demonstrate our commitment 
for our city by seeking to adhere to the principles of: 

City Charter 
General Ordinances of the City of Rochester 

Our Community 

Our community, including residents, visitors and 
ratepayers 
Business and investors 
Local service providers 

Community groups 
State and federal government agencies, and other 
local governments, and 

Professional organizations including industry 

Rochester City Council Budget 2012-2013 
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1. Facts and Figures 

Rochester Fast Facts 
Incorporated in 1722 
Rochester is the 5th most populated city in the 
state of New Hampshire out of 96 cities. 
The largest Rochester racial/ethnic groups are 
White (94.3%) followed by Hispanic (1.8%) and 
Two or more races (1.4%). 

29 823 
ssh1Mcitecl reslclell\,ts ~II\, Rocviester, ,..._,rt 

The median household income of Rochester 
residents was $52,401. Rochester household 
made slightly more than Hampton Beach 
households ($52,023} and New London 
households ($51,733). 
The median age for Rochester residents is 40.7 
years young. 

Location 

latitude. 43.298493 
: -7 7 006 

43 miles from Manchester, NH 
54 miles from Portland, ME 
75 miles from Boston, MA 
286 miles from New York City, NY 
271 miles from Montreal, Quebec 

Land and trails 

LC! 11\,d ci reci [111, sq uci re Vvt,[.les 

There are approximately 655.3 persons per 
square mile. 
There are 0.4 square miles of inland water area. 
Genie Trails - 3 various trails, up to 3.5 miles 
Pickering Ponds - 2+ miles of trails 

Roads, sidewalks and bridges 
• 235 miles of road (205 miles paved, 30 miles 

unpaved) 
• 176 city streets 

60 private 
28 miles of sidewalks 
16 city bridges 

Water 
1,437 water customers 
5,604 water and sewer customers 
15 sewer only customers 
3,000,000 average daily gallons of wastewater 
treated 

2 00 000 
Average dciLLtJ gciLL0111,s of drL111,~(111,g wciter -produced 

120 miles of water pipe distribution 
80 miles of sewer pipe distribution 
4 water pump stations 

City-owned facilities 
11 buildings 
380,000 square feet 

Recreation f aci Ii ties 
3 pools 
3 fields 
Roger Allen Park with 10 baseball, 5 softball, 1 
footba ll, 5 soccer and 1 buddy ball fields 
1 ice arena 
1 community center 

Schools 
8 elementary schools - 2,015 students 
1 middle school - 1,038 students 
1 high school - 1,680 students 
2 private schools - 222 students 
1 Regional Technology Center 
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1.4 Employee recognition and achievements 

Recognition for Years of Service 

35 Years 

Norm Sanborn, Jr. , Fire 

20 Years 

Dennis Duchesneau, Police 
Theresa Hervey, Assessing 
Mark Avery, Fire 
Chris Sheing, Fire 
Stephen Johnson, Fire 
Melissa Ayers, Fire 

30 Years 

Gail Galloway, Welfare 
Anne May, Recreation 

10 Years 

Steven Wheeler, Public Works 
Michael George, Fire 
Andrew Jackson, Police 
Linnette Richardson, Police 
Micah Ruel, Fire 
Mark Dixon, Public Works 
Keith MacKenzie, Police 

2012 Employee of the Year 
Ken Henderson, Public Works Dept. 

Employees of the Month 
July 2012 
August -2012 
September 2012 
October 2012 
November 2012 
December 2012 
January 2013 
February 2013 
March2013 
April 20ll 
May2013 
June2013 

Shaley McCrillis, Fmanc:e 
Brinn Chute, Recr""eatien 
Gail Gallowav, Welfare 
Nichole Rodler, P-elice 
Blaine Cox. Finan'te 
S~ Trepanier. Arma 
,Jasen Cole, 
l!eo 
l>et.erNe 
Steve 

-------------------

25 Years 

Kristen Henderson, Public Works 
Dominick Bellio, Fire 
Sidney Bean, Public Works 
Donovan Funk, Police 
Roland Connors, Finance 
Angela Gray, Finance 
Diane Hoyt, Finance 

New Employees 
Sheldon Perkins, Code 
Sarah Bailey, Communications 
James Reinert, Communications 
Samuel Currier, Public Works 
Stephen Gingras, Public Works 
Samantha Juneau, Public Works 
Joshua Laurent, Public Works 
Christopher McKenney, Public Works 
Samantha Rivera, Public Works 
Gretchen Young, Public Works 
Mary Ellen Humphrey, Economic Develop. 
Kaitlin Olsen, Fire 
Jennifer Bent, Library 
Kelsey Fleming, Library 
Meredith Leno, Library 
Shannon Perry, Library 
Stephanie Piro Nolan, Library 
Brian Sylvester, Library 
James Campbell, Planning 
Elena Engle, Planning 
Karen Bonneau, Police 
Matthew Duchemin, Police 
Adam Ducharme, Police 
Geoffrey Moore, Police 
Charles Pendlebury, Police 
Justin Worthley, Police 
Kari Inglis, Recreation 
Deborah Millspaugh, Tax Collector 

FY13 Retirees 
David Dubois, Police 
Sid Bean, Public Works 
John Fuchs, Library 
Pat Clement, Library 









City Council Committees 

Appointments Review Committee 
John Larochelle, Chairman 
Sandra Keans, Vice-Chair 
Alan Reed-Erickson 
Stephen Hervey 

David Hynes 

Building Needs "'ommittee 
Ralph Torr, Chairman 
Elaine Lauterborn, Vice-Chair 
Brian LaBranche 
A. Raymond Varney, Jr. 

Community Development Committee 
Elaine Lauterborn, Chairman 
Alan Reed-Erickson, Vice-Chair 
Brian LaBranche 
Stephen Hervey 
David Hynes 

Codes & Ordinances Committee 
Peter Lachapelle, Chairman 
Elaine Lauterborn, Vice Chair 
Sandra Keans 
A. Raymond Varney, Jr. 
Julien Savoie 

Finance Commiittee 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
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Mayor Thomas J. Jean, Chairman 
A. Raymond Varney, Jr., Vice Chair 
Ralph Torr 
Sandra Keans 
John Larochelle 
David Walker 
Elaine Lauterborn 

P ..iblic Safet) Committee 
David Walker, Chairman 
Peter Lachapelle, Vice Chair 
Stephen Hervey 
Brian LaBranche 
Julien Savoie 

Public Works and Building Committee 
Ralph Torr, Chairman 
A. Raymond Varney, Jr., Vice Chair 
John Larochelle 
Brian LaBranche 
David Walker 

09 
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2.4 Appointed Boards & Commissions 

Arena Commission 
Staff Representative - Chris Bowlen, Recreation & 
Arena Director 

Dale Bickford 
Richard Clough 

David Colson 
Robert W. Brown 

Board of '"'ssessors 

Joan Cadorette-Strogen 
David Anctil 
Randy Willard 

Staff Representative - Tom Mullin, Assessor 

Robert Goldstein 
Marybeth Walker 
Victoria Lambert 

Conservcltion Commission 
Staff Representative - Seth Creighton, Staff Planner 

Deborah Shigo Mark Jennings 
Jeffey Winders Michael Dionne 
John (Jack) Hackett 2 - vacancies 
Meredith (Merry) S. Linewebber 

Arts & Culture Comm·ssion 
Staff Representative - Michelle Mears, Staff Planner 

Pam Hubbard Peg Johnson 
Patricia O'Brien Michael Provost 
Martha Fowler Matthew Wyatt 
Peter Ejarque 1 - vacancy 
Cristina Danielle Dorvillier 

Historic District Commission 
Staff Representative - Michelle Mears, 
Staff Planner 

Molly Meulenbroek 
Martha Wingate 
Peter Bruckner 
Nancy Dibble 
Marilyn Jones 
Sandra Keans 
1- vacancy 

Library Trustees 
Staff Representative - Brian Sylvester, Library 
Director 

Joanne V. Pallas 
Steven Maimes 
Natalie Wensley 
Anne May 
Pamela J. Hubbard 
Jennifer Stimac 
Martha Ortmann 

Planning Board 
Staff Representative - Jim Campbell 

Nel Sylvain 
Derek Peters 
Gregory Jeanson 
Tim Fontneau 
Rick Healey 
Charles Grassie, Jr. 

Robert Jaffin 
Matthew Kozinski 
Mark Su llivan 
David Walker 
James Gray 
3 - vacancies (alternates) 



Recreation Commission 
Staff Representative - Chris Bowlen 

Sheila Colson 
Peter Lachapelle 

Paul Lynch 
Tamara Hewitt 
Paul Roberts 
Jeffrey Turgeon 

Rochester Economic Development 
Commission 
Staff Representative - Karen Pollard 

Richard Lundborn 
Janet Davis 
Susan DeRoy 
Kevin Ryan 
Ron Poulin 

Timothy Cremmen 
Mayor T.J. Jean 
John Larochelle 
Heather Tacconi 
Jonathan Shapleigh 
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Trustees of the Trust Fund 
David Oullette 
Robert Pallas 

R. Bradley Trafton 

Utility Advisory Board 
Staff Representative - Blaine Cox, Deputy City 
Manager/ Director of Finance 

George Lewis 
Arthur Hoffman 
Sharon Parshley 

Daniel Peterson 
Shawn Libby 
1-vacancy 

Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Staff Representative - Jim Grant, Code Enforcement 
Director 

Ralph Torr 
Rose Marie Rogers 
Larry Spector 
Robert Goldstein 
2 - vacancies 

Fidae C. Azouri 
Leo Brodeur 
Randy Lavallee 
Robert Gates 

11 
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Chapter Three 

Our Organization 
3.1 Organizational chart (current at time of publication) 

Economic 
Development Manager 

Karen Pollard 

I 

Economic Development 
Specialist I Mary Ellen Humphrey 

Community 
Development 

Specialist 
Elena Engle 

1- Executive Secretary 
Jennifer Murphy Aubin 

Chief Planner 
Jim Campbell 

Building, Zoning & 
Licensing Services 

Director 
Jim Grant 

~ 

I 

City Manager 
Daniel Fitzpatrick 

Executive Assistant 
Samantha Rodgerson 

Public Works Director 
Peter Nourse 

I 

Engineering 

-
Highway 

-
Public Buildings 

-

Wastewater 

Water 

Water & Sewer 
Distribution 

- Office Manager 
Clark Lisa 



Fire Chief 
Norman Sanborn, Jr. 

Call 
Firefighters 

Firefighters 

Support 
Staff 

- Assistant Chief 
Mark Dupuis 

Director of Recreation, 
Arena & Youth Services 

Chris Bowlen 

I 

I 

' 

J 

Deputy City Manager/ 
Director of Finance 

Blaine Cox 

Deputy Director 
.- Executive Secretary 

of Finance 
Roland Conors 

-
Assessor 

Tom Mullin 

City Clerk 
Kely Walters 

Human Resource 
Manager 

Diane Hoyt 

M IS Supervisor 
Dennis Schafer 

Tax Collector 
Do reen Jones 

Utility Billing 
Ann Dupuis 

Welfare Director 
Todd Marsh 

-

-

I 
Shirley McCrlllis 
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Police Commission 

Police Chief 
Michael Allen 

Non-Sworn 
Support Staff 

Deputy Chief 
Scott Dumas 

Command 
Staff 

·---

Library Trustees 

Library Director 

Brian Sylvester 

Communications/ 

Dispatch 
Sworn Officers 
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Chapter Four 

Our Departments 



4.1 Assessing 
4.2 City Clerk 
4.3 Community Development Division 
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4.3a Code Enforcement & Building Safety Dept. 
4.3b Economic Development Department 
4.3c Planning Department 

4. Finance Office 
4. Fire Department 
4.6 Legal Department 
4.7 Library 
4.8 MIS Department (Municipal Information Serviees) 
4.9 Police Department ~ 
4.10 Public Works Department 
4.11 Recreatiol'il, Ar:ena g Yeuth Services Department 
4.12 Superintendent of Sehaols 
4.13 Tax Collector's Qffice~~~-~_,: 
4.14 Welfare Department 
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4.1 Assessing Department 

The Mission of the Assessing Department is to: In 
accordance with state assessing standards, annually 
value all properties in the City of Rochester so that all 
assessments are reasonably proportional. 

Net Valuation on which the tax rate for the 
Municipal, County & local Education Tax is 
computed 2,021,637,412 

TOTAL OF TAXABLE PROPERTIES .............. 2,048,617,212 

• Current Use Land 

• Residential Land and Buildings 

Commercial/Industrial Land & 
Buildings 

• Manufactured Housing 

• Public Utilities 

Less Public Utility Valuations 52,186,300 ASSESSOR'S INVENTORY 

Net Valuation without Utilities on which the 
tax rate for State Education Tax is 
computed 1,969,451,112 

Assessing Depar tment staff (pictured below): 
from left to right: Theresa Hervey, Verna Ketel, 

Tom Mullin, Nancy Miller and Ruth Lawrence. 

Current Use Land 
Residential Land 
Commercial/Industrial Land 
Residential Buildings 
Commercial/Industrial Buildings 
Manufactured Housng 
Public Utilities Land & Buildings 

EXEMPTIONS USED 

Blind (29) ............. ........... ............ 1,171,700 
Elderly (369) ............................. 22,380,100 
Disabled (100) ............ ................. 3,428,000 

1,064,235 
447,929,813 
175,494,189 
976,692,034 
290,198,566 
105,024,400 

52,186,300 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF EXEMPTION ................ 26,979,800 

Assessing Department Report respectfully submitted by: 
Thomas A. Mullin, CNHA City Assessor 



4.2 City Clerk's Office 

The City Clerk's office is known as the keeper of the 
records and serves as the local registrar in the 
issuance of vital records. The office is responsible for 
recording and issuing certified copies of birth, 
divorce, death, and marriage certificates. The City 

Clerk's office is also responsible for issuing marriage 
licenses. The City Clerk submits reports to the State of 
New Hampshire and other authorities as required by law. 
The City Clerk is responsible for the repair, binding, 
maintenance, and proper storage of all permanent 
records in compliance with local and state laws. The 
Clerk's office staff often researches older vital records for 
customers conducting genealogical studies. 

The City Clerk's office staff prepares the following 
material for the City Council : agendas, informational 
packets, and the permanent record of all meeting 
minutes for all City Council meetings. In addition, the City 
Clerk's staff prepares the same material for the Codes and 
Ordinances Committee, Historical Documents 
Preservation Committee, and t he Records Retention 
Committee. 

Dogs 
The City Clerk's office issued 5,081 dog licenses during 
Fiscal Year 2013. There were 1,265 dog owners listed on 
the Dog Licensing Warrant of 2013, which is 309 fewer 
than the last fiscal year, and a total of 1,632 unlicensed 
dogs, which is 409 fewer than the last fiscal year . 

.., 
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The City Clerk updates the City Clerk's Department 
Webpage and the Deputy City Clerk updates the City Clerk's 
Department Facebook and Twitter accounts. 

Kelly Walters was appointed as the City Clerk in 
December of 2012 and Marcia Roddy was 
appointed as the Deputy City Clerk in 2012. Special 
recognition goes to Nancy Carignan, Assistant City Clerk, 
Diane Moses, Assistant City Clerk, and all Election Officials 
who assisted with the State Primary and State Election 
during fiscal year 2013. 

Vital Statistics and Related Revenues 

The following statistics have been generated for the City of 
Rochester from reports from the State Bureau of Vital 
Records from July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013: There were 406 
babies born in the City of Rochester, 255 of which were 
from Rochester residents. There were 161 marriages 
reported for the City of Rochester and 262 deaths. 

E. Nicholl Marshall, Division of Vital Records 
Administration, Concord, New Hampshire, provided 
interesting statistics for the City of Rochester. The heaviest 
baby weighed 10 pounds 12 ounces. The top two baby 
names for the City of Rochester for fiscal year 2013 are as 
follows: 

Girls 
Emma 
Isabella and Arianna [tied] 

Boys 
Landon 
Eli 
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4.1 City Clerk's Office ( ... continued) 

Adam's Fund / Pray Fund 

The Deputy City Clerk submitted four applications to the 
Adam's Fund/Pray Fund to Charter Trust Company. The total 
amount awarded between the four applicants was 
$1,237.89. 

Elections 

The City Clerk supervised two elections during Fiscal Year 
2013: The September 11, 2012, State Primary Election and 
the November 6, 2012, State General Election. City Clerk's 
office assisted with accepting new voter registrations, 
address changes, and party affiliation changes. The City 
Clerk's staff attended election training, coordinated each 
Supervisors' Session and Moderators' Session. The City 
Clerk's staff provided in-home voter registration for the 
elderly and disabled. 

The City Clerk's staff communicated with other town and city 
clerks throughout New England in order to keep the Election 
Database up to date. All checklists and warrants were posted 
according to State Law. As of June 30, 2013, there were a 
total of 18,112 registered voters in Rochester, New 
Hampshire and the breakdown to party affiliation is as 
follows: 

2,000 

1,000 

T 

Total of All Voters - 18,112 
Democrats - 5,285 

Republicans - 5,244 
Undeclared - 7,583 

City Clerk Revenue 
Total $57,354 

Oegs 
$25,092 (44%) 

Vital Records 
$13,564 (24%) 

CF/Dog Late Fees 
$12,207 (21%) 

II Democrat 

■ Republican 

Undecl;ired 

Wardl 
(Total 3,096) 

Ward 2 
(Total 3,190) 

Ward3 
{Total 3,192) 

Ward 4 
(Total 2,827) 

Wards 
(Total 3,01'.11) 

Ward 6 
{Total 2,766) 
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July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 
Resolution 1: Resolution Authorizing Transfers from the 
So-Called General Fund, Deferred Revenue Account to the 
So-Called Sewer Works Miscellaneous Revenue Account and 
to the So-Called Economic Development Fund, MiscelJaneous 
Revenue Account. Adopted on July 17, 2012 [Book AAA 
Page 6] 

Resolution 2: Resolution Approving Grant Application by 
the Ci.ty of Rochester Fire Department of up to $10,855.00, for 
the Pw·pose of Purchasing Fire Gear - FEMA Assistance. 
Adopted on July 17, 2012 [Book AAA Page 11] 

Resolution 3: Resolution Authorizing the Rochester Police 
Department Application for, and to Accept, Grant for Ballistic 
Vests, and Making a Supplemental Appropriation in 
Connection Therewith. Adopted on July 17, 2012 [Book AAA 
Page 11] 

Resolution 4: Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 
Approp1iation to the Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Capital Budget of 
the City of Rochester for the Purpose of Providing Funds, for 
and/or Related to, the So-Called Brock Street Reconstruction 
Project. Adopted on July 17, 2012 [Book AAA Page 12] 

Resolution 5: Resolution Determining that Amendment(s) to 
the Rochester City Charter is/are Necessary and Ordering a 
Public Hearing in Connection with such Prnposed 
Amendment(s) Adopted on July 17, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
15] 

Resolution 6: Resolution Authorizing City Manager to 
Address Potential Title Issue with Respect to Property Situate 
at 20 Summer Street in the City of Rochester. Adopted on July 
17, 2012 [Book AAA Page 16] 

Resolution 7: Resolution Authorizing Transfer of Funds in 
the Amount of $12,027. Adopted on [July 17, 2012 Book AAA 
Page 17] 

Resolution 8: Resolution Accepting the PolJing Locations for 
t11e State Primary and State General Election. Adopted on 
August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 56] 

Resolution 9: Resolution Ordering that the Proposed 
Amendment(s) to the Rochester City 01arter Referred to in 
Paragraph I Above be Placed on the Next Regular State 
Biennial Election Ballot Required under the Provisions of 
RSA 49-B:5, IV (b). Adopted Exhibit A, B, C, D, and E, on 
August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 57] 

Resolution 10: Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 
Appropriation to the 2012-2013 Capital Budget of the City of 
Rod1ester, Water Works, for the So-CalJed Rochester Hill 
Water Tower Repair Project and Authorizing Bonding in 
Connection Therewith. Adopted on August 7, 2012 [Book 
AAAPage58] 

Resolution 11: Resolution De-Authorizing Portion of Internet 
Crimes Against Ouldren [ICAC] Task Force Grant 
Supplemental Approp1iatjon in Connection Therewith. 
Adopted on August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 59] 

Resolution 12: Resolution De-Authorizing Portion of Filter 
Backwash Rule Investigation Appropriation. Amended and 
Adopted on August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 60] 

Resolution 13: Resolution De-Authorizing Portion of 
Business Office Folder Inserter Appropriation. Adopted on 
August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 61] 

Resolution 14: Resolution De-Authorizing Portion of Water 
Bulk Storage Tank Replacement Appropriation. Amended 
and Adopted on August 7, 2012[Book AAA Page 62] 

Resolution 15: Resolution De-Authorizing Po1tion of Water 
Distribution System Upgrade Appropriation. Adopted on 
August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 63} 

Resolution 16: Resolution De-Authorizing Portion of Water 
Treatment Plant Pavement Overlay Appropriation. Adopted 
on August 7, 2012 [Book AAA Page 64] 

Resolution 17: Resolution Adopting Amendments/Revisions 
to the Granite State Business Park Tax Increment Financing 
District: Development Program and Financing Plan and 
Amending/Revising the Grruute State Business Park Tax 
Increment FinruKe District. Amended and Adopted on 
September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 84] 

Resolution 18: Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 
Appropriation to the 2012-2013 Capital Budget of the City of 
Rochester, Water Works, for the So-CalJed Rochester Hill 
Water Tower Repair Project and Authorizing Bonding in 
Connection Therewith [$558,000] Adopted on September 4, 
2012 [Book AAA Page 91) 

Resolution 19: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to 
Enter into a Lease Agreement with Arts Rochester, Inc. D/B/ A 
Sole City Dru1ce Relative to Space in the Rochester 
Community Center. Adopted on September 4, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 92] 

Resolution 20: Resolution Approving Contract and Cost 
Items Associated with Proposed Rochester School Board, City 
of Rochester, Multi-Year Collective Bargaining Agreement, 
with Federation of State, County, and Mw1idpal Employees 
[AFSCME] Council 93 Local #863 Bargaining Unit [Head 
Custodians, Custodians, Ground-Keepers, Utility Persons, 
and Maintenance Persons. Adopted on September 4, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 94] 
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FY 2013 Resolutions (continued ... ) 

Resolution 21: Reso]ution De-Authorizing a Portion of the 
North Main Street Water Main Project and Making a 
Supplemental Appropriation. Adopted on September 4, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 94) 

Resolution 22: Resolution De-Authorizing a Portion of the 
So-Called Brock Street Clean Water State Revolving Ftmd 
Appropriation in the Amount of $2,200,000. Adopted on 
September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 95) 

Resolution 23: Resolution De-Authorizing a Portion of the 
So-CaJled Brock Street Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Appropriation in the Amount of $30,000. Adopted on 
September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 97) 

Resolution 24: Resolution De-Authorizing a Portion of the 
So-Called Brock Street Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 
Appropriation 1n the Amount of $600,000. Adopted on 
September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 98) 

Resolution 25: Resolution De-Authorizing a Portion of the 
So-Called Rochester Housing Authority Paving Project and 
Making a Supplemental Appropriation in Connection 
Therewith. Adopted on September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
99) 

Resolution 26: Resolution Approving Accounts Receivable 
Write-off for the Opera House Utilities in the Amount of 
$3,356.19. Adopted on September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
100) 

Resolution 27: Resolution Authorizing a Supplemental 
Appropriation to the 2012-2013 Capital Budget of the City of 
Rochester for the So-CaUed EDA Salmon Falls Road to NH 
Route 125 Water and Sewer Main Extension Project and 
Authorizing Bonding and/or Borrowing in Connection 
Therewith. Adopted on September 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
103] 

Resolution 28: Resolution Accepting a Grant to the City of 
Rochester, Rochester Public Library, from the Wal-Mart 
Foundation and Making a Supplemental Appropriation in 
Connection Therewith. Adopted on September 4, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 105] 

Resolution 29: Resolution Directing That the Printing of 
Ballots for the Special City Election, Relative to the Five (5) 
Proposed Amendments to the Rochester City Charter, in the 
form Approved by the State Officials Specified in RSA 
49-B:5-a II, and to be Held in Connection with the November 
6, 2012, Regular State Biennial Election. Adopted on 
September 18, 2012 [Book AAA Page 123] 

Resolution 30: Resolu tion Conditionally Accepting 
Conservation Easement with Respect to Property Owned by 
Dr . Alexander Smith and Mrs. Edna Smith Situate on Estes 
Road in Rochester, New Hampshire. Adopted on October 2, 
2012 [Book AAA Page 134] 

Resolution 31: Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Take 
Actions to Enforce Conditions of Subdivision Approval with 
Respect to Anderson Lane. Adopted on October 2, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 135] 

Resolution 32: Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Take 
Actions to Enforce Conditions of Subdivision Approval with 
Respect to Channing Lane. Adopted on October 2, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 136] 

Resolution 33: Resolution De-Authorizing a Portion of the 
Rochester Police Department Justice Assistance Grant [JAG] 
Approp1iation. Adopted on October 2, 2012 [Book AAA 
Page 137] 

Resolution 34: Resolution Authorizing the Police Department 
to Apply for a NH Highway Safety Grant [DWI Enforcement 
Patrols] in the Amount of $5,100.24. Adopted on October 2, 
2012 [Book AAA Page 138] 

Resolution 35: Resolution Authorizing Police Department 
Application for the New Highway Safety Grant [Red Light 
Enforcement Patrolsj in the Amount of $5,100.24. Adopted on 
October 2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 138] 

Resolution 36: Resolution Authorizing a Supplemental 
Appropriation in the Amount of $1,832.50 for the 
Programming of Forty-Six (46) Portable Radios - US 
Department of Homeland Security Grant. Adopted on 
October 2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 139] 

Resolution 37: Resolution Authorizing a Police Department 
Application for the New Hampshire Highway Safety Grant 
[Pedestrian Enforcement Patrols] in the Amount of $4,986.91. 
Adopted on October 2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 140) 

Resolution 38: Resolution De-Authorizing Portions of the 
Internet Crimes Against Ch ildren [.ICAC] Task Force Grant 
and Making a Supplemental Appropriation iJ1 the Amount of 
$54. Adopted on October 2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 140] 

Resolution 39: Resol.ution Authorizing the Police Department 
Application for the Working Dog Foundation Grant to be 
used in Connection with the Acquisition of Replacement for 
the Rochester Police Department K-9 Working Dog [Fina]. 
Adopted on October 2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 142] 



Resolution 40: Resolution Accepting a Department of Justice, 
Justice Assistance Grant, to the Rochester Police Department 
and Making a Supplemental Appropriation in Connection 
Therewith in the Amount of $20,574.90. Adopted on October 
2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 143) 

Resolution 41: Resolution Authorizing to City Manager to 
Submit an Application to the Commissioner of DRED to have 
the So-Called Granite Ridge Development District as a 
So-Called Economic Revitalization Zone Pursuant to the 
Provisions of RSA 162-N. Adopted on October 2, 20U [Book 
AAA Page 144) 

Resolution 42: Resolution Accepting a Grant to the City of 
Rochester, Rochester Public Library, From the New 
Hampshire Library Association/MacDonald Fund, and 
Making a Supplemental Appropriation in Connection 
Therewith. Adopted on October 2, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
145) 

Resolution 43: Resolution Autho1izing Discontinuance of 
Portions of Old Milton Road. Amended and Adopted on 
November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 160) 

Resolution 44: Resolution From the Planning Board 
Authorizing the lssuance of A Building Permit off Two Rod 
Road [Class VI Road]. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 161) 

Resolution 44: Resolution From the Planning Board 
Authorizing the Issuance of A Buildi11g Permit off Two Rod 
Road [Class V1 Road]. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 161) 

Resolution 45: Resolution Approving a Supplemental 
Appropriation in the Amount of $55,000 For The Purpose of 
Conshucting a Restroom Facility on the Rochester Common 
and to Fw1d said Appropriations From Undesignated 
General Fund Balance. NOT ADOPTED - November 13, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 163) 

Resolution 46: Resolution Accepting a Grant From the 
Working Dog Foundation for the Purpose of Purchasing a 
New Police K-9. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book AAA 
Page 164) 

Resolution 47: Resolutjon Accepting a Grant from Internet 
Crimes Against Children [ICAC] in the Amow,t of $2,672.30 
for the Purpose of Associated Overtime. Adopted on 
November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 165) 
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Resolution 48: Resolution Accepting a Grant from Internet 
Crimes Against Children [1CAC] in the AmoLLnt of $3,575 for 
the Purpose of Associated Overtime. Adopted on November 
13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 166) 

Resolution 49: Resolution Accepting a Donation from Bank of 
New Hampshfre in the Amount of $1,500 for the Puxpose of 
Covering Costs Associated with the Rochester Economic 
Development Commjssion Investment Group Guest Speaker 
Event. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 167] 

Resolution 50: Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 
Appropriation Brock Street Project Highway Portion 
$700,000. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
170) 

Resolution 51: Resolution Accepting a DWl Enforcement 
Pah·ols Grant in the Amow, t of $5,850. Adopted on 
November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 171] 

Resolution 52: Resolution Accepting a Red Light Grant in the 
Amount of $5,850. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 172) 

Resolution 53: Resolution De-Authorizing $700,000 of the 
Brock Sh·eet Project. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 173] 

Resolution 54: Resolution Accepting a Supplemental 
Appropriation to the Rochester Economic Development 
Depmtment Staff Development Account in the Amow, t of 
$425.00. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
174) 

Resolution 55: Resolution Authorizing a Supplemental 
Appropriation in Connection with the Easement Acguisition 
for Axe Handle Brook Bridge and for Related Project 
Activities. Adopted on November 13, 2012 [Book AAA Page 
176) 

Resolution 56: Resolution Accepting a Purchase and Sa les 
Agreement Relative to First Street, Map 120, Lot 177-1. 
Adopted on November 20, 2012 [Book AAA Page 184) 

Resolution 57: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to 
Negotiate and Enter into a Purchase and Sales Agreement to 
Purchase and Sales Agreement to Purchase Certain Land 
Located on First Street. Adopted on November 20, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 184) 
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Resolution 58: Resolution De-Auth01izing Portions of Project 
#10536 Internet Crimes Against Children [TCAC] i.n the 
Amount of $111.89. Adopted on November 20, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 185] 

Resolution 59: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amount of $654.52 from the OW[ Hunter Grant # 
309-09A-083. Adopted on November 20, 2012 [Book AAA 
Page 186] 

Resolution 60: Resolution De-Authorizing Portions of Project 
11528 - USDA Feasibility Study in the Amount of $100. 
Adopted on November 20, 2012 [Book AAA Page 187] 

Resolution 61: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amount of $124.86 From the US Marshall's Overtime Detail 
Grant. Adopted on November 20, 2012 [Book AAA Page 188] 

Resolution 62: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amount of $975 from the Duval Park Fountahi Fund Project. 
Adopted on November 20, 2012 [Book AAA Page 190] 

Resolution 63: Resolution Accepting a Donation from Liberty 
Mutual in the Amount of $1,000 for the Purpose of the 
Recreation and Arena Tennis Court Rehab Project. Adopted 
on November 20, 2012 [Book AAA Page 191] 

Resolution 64: Resolution Accepting a State of New 
Hampshire Department of Justice, Drug Forfe.iture 
Distribution to the Rochester Police Department and Making 
a Supplemental Appropriation in Connection Therewith in 
the Amount of $689.63. Adopted on November 20, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 192] 

Resolution 65: Resolution Conditionally Accepting a 
Conservation Easement with Respect to the Property Owned 
by Jonathan W. Oement and Holly A. Clement Situate on 
So-Called Bickford Road in Rochester, New Hampshire. 
Adopted on December 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 206] 

Resolution 66: Resolution Accepting So-Called O1annings 
Lane as a City Street. Adopted on December 4, 2012 [Book 
AAA Page 209] 

Resolution 67: Resolu tion Accepting a Grant to the Rochester 
Police Department for Enforcement Patrols and Making a 
Supplemental Appropriation in Connection Therewith in the 
Amount of $5,850 Adopted on December 4, 2012 [Book AAA 
Page 209] 

Resolution 68: Resolution Accepting a Grant to the 
Rochester Police Department [Pedestrian Patrols] and 
Making a Supplemental Appropriation in Connection 
Therewith in the Amount of $5,720. Adopted on 
December 4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 210] 

Resolution 69: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager 
to Institute Process to Discontinue Portions of the 
Currently Existing Airport Drive. Adopted on December 
4, 2012 [Book AAA Page 212] 

Resolution 70: Resolution Accepting Certain Drainage, 
Slope, and Construction Easements in the Vicinity of the 
Intersection of NH Route 11 and the Two Rod Road: 
Tractor Supply Project Adopted on December 18, 2012 
[Book AAA Page 220] 

Resolution 71: Resolution Authorizing Discontinue 
Portions of So-Called Airport Drive, and Dedicating and 
Accepting Portions of Newly Reconfigured Airport Drive 
Right-of-Way and of the So-Called Innovation Drive 
Right-of-way as a City Street. Adopted on December 18, 
2012 [Book AAA Page 221] 

Resolution 72: Resolution to Ina-ease the Current COPS 
Grant in the Amount of $14,000. Adopted on January 8, 
2013 [Book AAA Page 241] 

Resolution 73: Resolution Accepting a PSNH Donation for 
the Conservation Fund in the Amount of Approximately 
$115,000.00. Adopted on January 8, 2013 [Book AAA Page 
242] 

Resolution 74: Resolution Authorizing a Supplemental 
Appropriation in the Amow1t of $2,695.00 for the Purpose 
of Additional Equipment for Apparatus [New Pumper] 
Replacement Pmposes. Adopted on January 8, 2013 [Book 
AAA Page 244] 

Resolution 75: Resolution Accepting a Grant from the 
Local Government Center for Health and Safety Wellness 
Related Programs to tl1e Rochester Fire Department and 
Making a Supplemental Appropriation in the Amount of 
$500. Adopted on January 8, 2013 [Book AAA Page 245] 

Resolution 76: Resolution Accepting So-Called Q1annings 
Lane as a City Street and Making a Supplemental 
Appropriation in Connection Therewith. Adopted on 
January 8, 2013 [Book AAA Page 247 



Resolution 77: Resolution De-Authorizing Portion of the 
New Hampshire Attorney General's Rochester Police 
Department Drug Task Force [DTC] in the Amount of 
$2,588.64. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on January 
8, 2013 [Book AAA Page 248] 

Resolution 78: Resolution De-Authorization Funds Left in the 
Hose Replacement CfP Project and Repurpose Those Funds 
in the Amount of $7,124.00. CONSENT CALENDAR 
ADOPTED on January 8, 2013 [Book AAA Page 248] 

Resolution 79: Resolution Accepting US Justice Assistance 
[JAG] Homeland Security Grant in the Amount of $22,900.80. 
Adopted on February 5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 259] 

Resolution 80: Resolution Authorizing Grant Application by 
the City of Rochester Police Department the New Hampshire 
Department of Safety Competitive Homeland Security Grant 
in the Amount of up to $75,000. Adopted on February 5, 2013 
[Book AAA Page 260] 

Resolution 81: Resolution Authorizing an Application to 
Commissioner of DRED to have the So-Called Cocheco 
Revitalization Zone Designated as a So-Called Economic 
Revitalization Zone Pursuant to the Provisions of RSA 162-N, 
1 Adopted on February 5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 261] 

Resolution 82: Resolution Regarding City Manager's Review 
and Evaluation. Adopted on February 5, 2013 [Book AAA 
Page 262] 

Resolution 83: Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of 
Refunding Bonds dated as of February 19, 2013. Adopted on 
February 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 265] VOTE RATIFIED 
on March 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 326] 

Resolution 84: Resolution Accepting a Rebate Check in the 
Amount of $57,000 from PSNH, Approving Change of 
Funding from Cash to Grant [PSNH Rebate Oleck], and 
Approving a Transfer [$57,000] back to the Sewer Fund 
Adopted on February 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 266] 

Resolution 85: Resolution Accepting a Federal Emergency 
Management Agency Grant and Making a Supplemental 
Appropriation and a Related Budget Transfer in Connection 
Therewith. Adopted on February 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 
270] 

Resolution 86: Resolution De-Authorization in the Amount 
of $1,395.90 from the Strafford County Sheriff's Department 
Grant "Underage Drinking" CONSENT CALENDAR 
ADOPTED on February 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 272] 
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Resolution 87: Resolution De-Authorization Funds in the 
Amount of $854.J 0 from the Strafford County Sheriff's 
Department Grant for "Pasty Dispersal" CONSENT 
CALENDAR ADOPTED on February 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 
272] 

Resolution 88: Resolution Authorizing the Acceptance of a 
Donation to the Rochester Public Library From Mary Kibbe in 
Memory of Jeannette Renaud Richard and Making a 
Supplemental Appropriation in Connection Therewith and in 
Accordance with the provisions of RSA 202-A: 4-c, and 
Authorizing the Rochester Public Library to Accept Certain 
Unanticipated Moneys. Adopted on March 5, 2013 [Book AAA 
Page 285] 

Resolution 89: Resolution Authorizing the rssuance of 
Refunding Bonds dated as of March 5, 2013. Adopted on March 
5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 290] VOTE RATIFIED on March 19, 
2013 [Book AAA Page 326] 

Resolution 90: Resolution Accepting and Adopting the 
Rochester, New Hampshire, "All-Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Update 2013." Adopted on March 5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 292] 

Resolution 91: Resolution Authorizing Grant Application by the 
City of Rochester Fire Department for a Competitive New 
Hampshire Homeland Secmity Grant in the Amount of up to 
$31,749.07. Adopted on March 5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 292] 

Resolution 92: Resolution Accepting Funds from the Sale of 
Granite State Business Park Lot 1 and Assigning such Fmlds to 
the So-Called Economic Development Fund. Adopted on March 
5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 293] 

Resolution 93: Resolution Authorizing the Rochester Police 
Department a Supplemental Appropriation Relative to Outside 
Details and Making a Supplemental Appropriation in 
Connection Therewith in the Amount of $80,000. Adopted on 
March 5, 2013 [Book AAA Page 311] 

Resolution 94: Resolution De-Authorizing Fiscal Year Capital 
Improvement Funds for Water Treatment Plant Flouridation 
Process Modifications. Adopted on March 5, 2013 [Book AAA 
Page 312] 

Resolution 95: Resolution Transferring Funds to the Department 
of Public Works Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Capital lm.proveme11ts 
Budget from the Unencumbered Fiscal Year 2012-2013 
Contingency Account for the purpose of paying for the costs of 
road/and or infrastructure construction and related work road 
with respect to Oianning's Land. Amended and Adopted on 
March 19, 2013 [Book AAA Page 322] 
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Resolution 96: Resolution Adopting a 2013-2014 Rochester 
CDBG "Action Plan" for the City of Rochester, New 
Hampshire and Approving and Appropriating the 2013-2014 
Community Development Budget for the City of Rochester. 
First Reading took p lace on April 2, 2013; Public Hearing took 
place on April 2, 2013. Adopted on April 16, 2013 [Book 
AAA Page 393] ORIGINAL RESOUTION HAS BEEN 
REPLACED WITH THE FINAL ACTION PLAN FOR THE 
CITY OF ROCHESTER and was APPROVED on JW1e 4, 
2013. [Book AAA Page 455] 

Resolution 97: Resolution Accepting a New Hampshire 
Deparhnent of Environmental Services Grant in Connection 
with the 2014 Household Hazardous Waste Day and 
Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into a Contract with 
the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services 
with Respect to the 2014 Household Hazardous Waste Day. 
Adopted on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 372] 

Resolution 98: Resolution De-Authorizing Portions of the 
Fiscal Year 2007-2008 CJP Budget Appropriation for the 
So-Called Chesley Hill Road Bridge Project, in the Amount of 
$1,552.18, and Cash Transfer in the Arnow1t of $193.90. 
Adopted on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 373] 

Resolution 99: Resolution Authorizing the Reallocation of 
Funds in the Amount of $2,614.22 within CDBG Grant Funds 
for the Purpose of the Catherine Street Sidewalk Project. 
Adopted on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 375] 

Resolution 100: Resolution Authorizing the ReaUocation of 
Funds in U1e Amount of $18,000 within the CDBG Grant 
funds for the Purpose of Historical Society's Window 
Installation Project. ADOPTED - First Reading and Second 
Reading took place on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 376] 
RESOLUTION AMENDED AND ADOPTED ON JUNE 4, 
2013. [Book AAA Page 458) 

Resolution 101: Resolution Authorizing the Reallocation of 
Funds in the Amount of $70,000 within the CDBG Grant 
Funds for the Purpose of the Common Restroom Project. 
Adopted on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 378] 

Resolution 102: Resolution Authorizing the Transfer Ftmds 
from the Head works and Associated Projects in the Amow1t 
of $74,150. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on April 2, 
2013 [Book AAA Page 380] 

Resolution 103: Resolution Authorizing the Change of 
Funding SoLtrce in U1e amount of $79,984.20 from the Clean 
Water Revolving Funds [CWSRF]. CONSENT CALENDAR 
ADOPTED on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381] 

Resolution 104: Resolution Authorizing Transfer of Funds in 
the Amount of $5,834.20 From Sewer Cash Account [08534] to 
the Sewer Project Account [08533]. CONSENT CALENDAR 
ADOPTED on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381] 

Resolution 105: Resolution Authorizing Transfer of Funds in 
the Amow1t of $9,165.80 from the Sewer Cash Account 
[08534] to the Sewer Fund. CONSENT CALENDAR 
ADOPTED on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381) 

Resolution 106: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to 
Sign Documents with the Strafford Rivers Conservancy 
RegaTding Land Conservation to Meet Wetland Mitigation 
Requirements Associated wiU1 the Granite State Business 
Park and Spaulding Turnpike Widening Projects. CONSENT 
CALENDAR ADOPTED on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 
381) 

Resolution 107: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amow1t of $49,186.94 from the Neighborhood Stabilization 
Program [NSP]. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on 
April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381) 

Resolution 108: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amow1t of $74,150 from the Influent Pump Station Upgrades 
- Head works. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on April 
2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381) 

Resolution 109: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Am.ow1t of $15.80 from the Influent Med1anical Bar Screen 
Project - Headworks. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED 
on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381) 

Resolution 110: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amount of $15,000 from the Influent Pump Station Hoist 
Project - Headworks. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED 
on April 2, 2013 [Book AAA Page 381) 

Resolution 111: Resolution De-Authorizing Funds in the 
Amount of $103,496.51 from U1e Head works and Associated 
Projects. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on April 2, 
2013 [Book AAA Page 381) 



Resolution 112: Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 
Appropriation from the City of Rochester, Economic 
Development Fund, for the Purpose of the Art Esprit 2013 Art 
Project. Adopted on April 16, 2013 [Book AAA Page 391) 

Resolution 113: Resolution Authorizing Supplemental 
Appropriation to Address, Complete, Correct, and/or Take 
Other Appropriate Actions Relative to the So-Called 
Anderson Lane Subdivision Conditions of Approval. 
Adopted on May 7, 2013 [Book AAA Page 412] 

Resolution 114: Reso]ution Authorizing City Manager to 
Execute a Lease Purchase Agreement for the Purpose of 
Refunding and Repurchasing Photocopier Equipment 
Adopted on May 7, 2013 [Book AAA Page 413] 

Ctn:tt&I Sqa.are, Rocbe,t~r. N _ H. 

Resolution 115: Resolution Authorizb"lg Supplemental 
Approp1iations to the 2012-2013 Operating Budget of the 
Rochester Police Department for the Purd,ase of Three (3) 
Police Cruisers. NOT ADOPTED First Reading took place 
on May 7, 2013, Second Reading and possible adoption 
FAILED on June 4, 2013 [Book AAA Page 453] 

Resolution 116: Resolution Approving the 2013-2014 
Operating Budget for the Gty of Rochester. Pu-st Reading 
took place on May 7, 2013, Public Hearing took place on June 
18, 2013, Second Reading and Final Amendment and 
Adoption took place on June 25, 2013 [Book AAA Page 490] 

Resolution 117: Resolution Authorizing and Approving the 
2013-2014 Capital Budget for the City of Rochester and 
Authorizing Borrowing in Connection Therewith. Fu-st 
Reading took p lace on May 7, 2013, Public Hearing took place 
on June 18, 2013, Second Reading and Final Amendment 
and Adoption took place on June 25, 2013 [Book AAA Page 
489] 

Resolution 118: Resolution Accepting a United States 
Department of Justice Reimbursement of Funds and 
Authorizing a Supplemental Appropriation to the 2012-2013 
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Operating Budget of the Rochester Police Department to 
Reimburse OCDEFTF Related Overtime Expenditures. 
CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on May 7, 2013 [Book 
AAA Page 419) 

Resolution 119: Resolution Accepting Department of Justice, 
Drug Enforcement, Drug ForfeituJe Distribution to the 
Rod1ester Police Department and Making a Supplemental 
Appropriation in Connection Therewith in the Amow, t of 
$4,570. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on May 7, 2013 
[Book AAA Page 419] 

Resolution 120: Resolution De-Authorizing an Internet 
Crimes Against Children Overtime Grant in the Amow, t of 
$2,672. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on May 7, 2013 
[Book AAA Page 419] 

Resolution 121: Resolution Accepting United States 
Marshall's Service, Drug Forfeiture Distribution to the 
Rochester Police Department and Making a Supplemental 
Appropriation in Connection Therewith in the Amount of 
$1,707.44. CONSENT CALENDAR ADOPTED on May 7, 
2013 [Book AAA Page 419] 

Resolution 122: Resolution Authorizing a Supplemental 
Appropriation to the 2012-2013 Capital Budget of the Oty of 
Rochester, Water Works, for the So-Called Rochester Hill 
Water Tower Repair Project and Authorizi11g Bonding in 
Connection Therewith. Adopted: First Reading took place 
on May 7, 2013. Public Hearing took place on May 14, 2013, 
Second Reading and Adoption took place on May 14, 2013 
[Book AAA Page 427] 

Resolution 123: Resolution Accepting and Appropriating 
Excess Host Community Fees. Adopted on June 4, 2013 
[Book AAA Page 470) 

Resolution 124: Resolution for the Supplemental 
Appropriations to the Conservation Fund for Fiscal Year 
2012-2013 Pussuant to tbe Provisions of Section 11.21 (c) of the 
General Ordinances of the City of Rochester. Adopted on 
June 25, 2013 [Book AAA Page 481] 
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FY 2013 Amendments to the Rochester 
City Ordinances 
July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 

AMEMDMENT 1: Amendment to Chapter 17.34 of the City 
Ordinances Relative to the Water Rates. ADOPTED - Page 
182 First Reading took place on November 13, 2012; Public 
Hearing took place on November 20, 2012, Second Reading 
and Adoption on November 20, 2012. 

AMEMDMENT 2: Amendment to Chapter 16.25 of the City 
Ordinances Relative to the Sewer Rates ADOPTED - Page 
183 First Reading took place on November 13, 2012; Public 
Hearing took place on November 20, 2012, Second Reading 
and Adoption on November 20, 2012. 

AMENDMENT 3: Amendment to Chapter 42.8 (£) (9) of the 
City Ordinances Relative to Political Advertising 
ADOPTED as FURTHER AMENDED - Page 240 First 
Reading took place on December 4, 2012. Public Hearing 
took place on December 18, 2012, Amendment and 
Adoption took place on January 8, 2013. 
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AMENDMENT 4: Amendment to Chapter 23.13 of the Gty 
Ordinances Relative to the Regulation of 
Permissible Fireworks. ADOPTED Page 353 First 
Reading took place on March 5, 2013, Public Hearing was 
held on March 19, 2013, and Adopted on April 2, 2013. 
[Book AAA Page 353] 

AMENDMENT 5: Amendment to Chapter 18 of the City 
Ordinances Relative to the Ct"eation of Regulation of 
Cross-Connections to Preven t Backflow between Potable 
and Non-Potable Water Systems. ADOPTED Page 355 -
First Reading took place on March 5, 2013, Public Hearing 
took place on March 7, 2013 [Codes and Ordinances 
Committee], Second Reading and ADOPTION on April 2, 
2013 [Book AAA Page 355] 

Jhoto corntesy of the RHS 

AMENDMENT 6: Amendment to Chapter 17 of the City 
Ordinances Relative to the Utility Advisory Board Term 
of Office. ADOPTED Page 454 -June 4, 2013 [Book AAA 
Page 454] 

AMENDMENT 7: Amendment to a,apter 31 of the City 
Ordinances Relative to Panhandling. First Reading took 
place on June 4, 2013. 

AMENDMENT 8: Amendment to Chapter 23 of the City 
Ordinance Relative to Permissible Fireworks. 
ADOPTED as FURTHER AMENDED on June 4, 2013 
[Book AAA Page 469] 



FY 2013 City Charter Amendments 
July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013 

The following Charter Amendments were presented [Municipal Ballot] to the registered voters of the City of Rochester at the 
November 6, 2012, State General Election. Four of the five proposed Charter Amendments were passed as shown below: 

AMENDMENT I: 
POLICE COMMISSION 

FAILED 

This Amendment would repeal the provisions of the 
Rochester City Charter dealing with the Police 
Commission, thereby abolishing the Rochester Police 
Commission. 

AMENDMENT II: 
BOARD OF ASSESSORS 

PASSED 

This Amendment wou ld increase the number of 
Deputy Assessors from two (2) to three (3), and wou Id 
a lso require that all assessors appointed pursuant to 
the O ,arter, prior to their appointment, shall have 
demonstrated knowledge of property appraisal or 
assessment and of the laws governing the assessment 
and collection of property taxes. The amendment 
would also provide that the Board of Assessors would 
be comprised of the City Assessor and the three (3) 
Deputy Assessors, who would elect one of their own 
to serve as Chafrman. TI, e City Assessor wou Id 
provide advi.ce and assistance to the Board as needed, 
but would have no vote in the Board's deliberations. 

AMENDMENT III: 
SCHEDULING OF MEETINGS OF 

SCHOOL BOARD 
PASSED 

This amendment would eliminate the requirement 
that the Rochester School Board hold a January 
meeting immediately following each municipal 
election" ... on the second Thursday of such January", 
thereby giving the School Board greater flexibility 
scheduling such meeting. 

AMENDMENT IV: 
MERIT PLAN RULES AND REGULATIONS 

PASSED 

This amendment would insert language in the Rochester 
City Charter making arnendment(s) to th.e "Merit Plan" 
proposed by the City Manager become effective only 
upon a majority vote of the City Council taken within 
sixty (60) days of amendment submittal raU,er than (30) 
days after their submission by U.e City Manager unJess 
vetoed by the City Council. 

AMENDMENT V: 
VOTING TO FILL VACANCIES IN OFFICE OF 

ELECTED CITY OFFICIALS 
PASSED 

This amendment would delete the requirement in the 
current Rochester City Charter that votes to □J I vacancies 
in the offices of City Council, School Board, and Police 
Commission be" ... by secret ballot" and require that 
vacancy be filled " ... by majority vote." 
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4.3 Community Development Division 

FY13 was a year of staff investment and adjustments. During the year just completed the city benefitted from the promotion of 
six of thirteen professional staff and four new employees selected to join the division. Complaints have dropped across the 
board and customer satisfaction has noticeably increased. Morale has improved and even the office areas are cleaner and more 
organized. 

Although improvements in Planning were an important initial goal, the first outwardly noticeable improvements were in Code 
Enforcement, now to be called Building, Zoning and Licensing Services. Creation of a full-time Code Enforcement Officer 
position, promotion of Jim Grant to Director and promotion of Don Graves to Assistant Director has made the Department more 
successful in their primary functions as well as customer service. Future areas of improvement include software replacement, 
digitation of paper files, issuance of building permits 5 days a week, successful transition of Zoning Board responsibilities. 

The second half of FY13 enabled the restructuring of Planning, with replacement of professional staff in one position and two 
retirements. This enabled shifting individual and department responsibilities to improve the efficiency of Planning functions, 
and to focus activity directly on core activities until performance levels increase and accuracy is satisfactory. This activity will be 
active and ongoing in FY14. The two new Planning hires will start in September. Future areas of improvement include staff 
training and implementation of performance measures. Comprehensive rezon ing is also an ongoing activity that has significant 
impact on staff priorities and perception of customer service. 

Economic Development had a very successful year for attracting private investment, increasing the tax base by more than $65 
Million, establishing public/private partnerships, attracting more t han $2 Million in grant funds and the increasing prominence 
of Rochester in the Seacoast and in New Hampshire as one of the most successful communities in the state. 
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4.3a Code Enforcement Department 

The Code Enforcement Department has been extremely active. As the population of the City of Rochester has 
grown to approximately over 30,000 residents, so does the responsibility of the department to assist residents 
and visitors in the City of Rochester. This office remains dedicated to this responsibility and will continue its 
proactive approach, ensuring the health and safety of the citizens of Rochester. 

BUILDING INSPECTION 

The major duties of the department include the 
administration of National Codes, the review and issuance of 
building permits, and the inspection of construction sites to 
ensure conformance of these codes; additionally enforcing 
compliance of the Zoning Ordinance and Planning Board 
approvals.A total of one thousand nine hundred twenty nine 
(1,929) permits were issued with an estimated building cost of 
$66,737,535.00. With the combination of building, health, 
and miscellaneous inspections and activities, there were three 
thousand four hundred forty five (3,445) inspections 
completed. Additionally there were one thousand nine 
hundred eleven (1,911) plans reviewed. 

health related inspections. As a whole, Rochester's food 
establishments are in full compliance. 

The Board of Health is comprised of the following members: 

Dr. Thomas Moon, Regular Member 
John Larochelle, Regular Member (term expired) 
Dr. Terry Bennett, City Physician/ Member (term expired) 
Regular Member, Vacant 
Mr. James Grant, Health Officer and Director of Code 
Enforcement 

The department also performed inspections of day care and 
foster home facilities. In addition to our regular staffing, the 
department's new compliance officer has investigated four 
hundred sixty five (465) housing code complaints. These 
include exterior and interior buildings, including motor 
vehicle, signs, zoning, rubbish, work performed without 
permits and agricultural nuisances. 

Other general activities by the department include: 

Inspections and licensing of twenty four (24) mobile home 
parks,sixteen (16) amusement licenses, eighteen (18) taxi 

The major health related 
duties of the department 
continue to be the licensing 
and inspections of one 
hu11dred ninety eight (198) of 
the City's food service 
establishments. We have 
worked closely with the 
owners and operators to 
ensure compliance with the 
New Hampshire rules for the 
sanitary production and 
distribution of food. During 
the year each food 
establishment was inspected 

,---------------------- licenses (company, drivers, and 

a minimum of twice, 
generating approximately 
three hundred ninety six (396) 

The TOTAL REVENUE COLLECTED vehicles), a combination of 
is categorized as follows: 

Food Establishment Licenses 
Miscellaneous Permits & Licenses 
Junk, 2nd Hand & Pawn Licenses 
Building Permits 
Miscellaneous Fees 

TOTAL $460,150.50 

Less Refunds, Waived Fees 
(Veteran & Municipal Status) 

TOTAL $ 450,879.50 

23,944.50 
4,290.00 
1,782.00 

430,113.50 
20.50 

<9,271.00> 

The TOTAL AMOUNT EXPENDED 
by the department was $ 419,992.54. 

seven (7) motor vehicle junk 
yards, junk dealer licenses 
combined thirty one (31) 
second hand dealers, four (4) 
pawnbrokers sand four (4) 
hawkers & peddlers. The 
department also investigates 
written housing complaints and 
zoning infractions throughout 
the city. 
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4.3b Economic Development Department 

With the $130 Million dollar Spaulding Turnpike 
expansion finally completed, Rochester has seen an 
resurgence of new commercial development. Traffic now 
flows smoothly and people have become accustomed to 
the new entrance and exit patterns. Most immediately 
impacted by the turnpike is the Route 11 corridor, and 
especially the Granite Ridge Development District. The 
old Thompson Center Arms site has been purchased and 
cleaned up by a developer who has plans for future 
commercial expansion of this prime location. Several 
notable redevelopments have occurred next to the Exit 14 
intersection, including the new Cumberland Farms, Zinga ! 
and Dominos next to the Globe Plaza. Permits were 
pulled for a new Tractor Supply Company store next to 
Walmart, and the Rochester Marketplace has begun 
preliminary steps for a 300,000 square foot shopping 
center in that location. To provide further investment 
incentives, the city applied for and was granted a new ERZ 
(Economic Revitalization Zone) designation for the 
Granite Ridge district. This will allow companies in this 
zone to take advantage of BET and BPT tax credits when 
investing in job-creating projects. 

Of course the biggest construction news for this year was 
the new Safran advanced aerospace technology plant. In 
December, the new bridge in the Granite State Business 
Park was unveiled, with a distinguished group of guests 
including Gov. Hassan. 

Other industrial investments brought The Rubber Group 
to Rochester, taking ownership and expanding the 
Odyssey Press facility bringing over fifty jobs to the area. 

The city awarded the largest to date JOB loan to a spin-off 
manufacturing company, LHR sporting Arms. Four 
principals from Thompson Center Arms put their 
collective skills together to set up a new company with 
the goal to re-employ many of the 200 craftspeople who 
lost their jobs when Smith and Wesson moved their 
company to Springfield, Mass in 2010. LHR set up shop 
on Wallace Street and went to work developing their first 
patented black powder firearm, The Redemption, which 
received national recognition by being awarded Field and 
Stream Magazines' Best of the Best Award as 
"Muzzleloader of the Year" in their first year of operation. 
They are well on their way to achieving their goals. 
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An ad hoc City Branding committee reviewed five 
proposals and selected the Glen Group to conduct a city 
branding effort which is a key urban development tool 
that will help Rochester get noticed and connected with 
our target audience. A strong brand, like a compass, helps 
stakeholders stay on course, be consistent in message, 
and effective in marketing. 

Our office provided the Chamber of Commerce with an 
updated two-page ad to include in their annual magazine. 
(see photo) We partnered with t he State Department of 
cultural Resources and other local communities to unveil 
the Americans for the Arts Survey, sharing the news that 
our city's nonprofits actually stimulate over seven million 
dollars of annual economic activity! 

Investment in infrastructure is one of the most effective 
ways that local government can spur economic 
development. With that in mind, the city applied for and 
was awarded an EDA grant for nearly $2 Million dollars for 
the expansion of water and sewer on Salmon Falls Road 
and part of Rt 125, enabling two existing businesses to 
pursue their expansion projects and encouraging other 
new projects in this underutilized corridor. This was a 
private, city and federal government partnership that is 
projected to lead to the creation of several hundred new 
jobs. It will also allow current residents the opportunity 
to tie in to city water and sewer. 

As part of the city organization restructuring, Karen 
Pollard became Deputy City Manager, Director of 
Community Development, bringing the three 
departments of Economic Development, Planning, and 
Code Enforcement under one umbrella. The concept of 
customer service and the notion that city staff serve as 
process facilitators and not simply regulation enforcers 
has been implemented with the result that the permitting 
process is simplified and streamlined. This is an ongoing 
process, but already positive results have been seen. 

The monthly Business Round Table meetings brought 
business people to City Hall to discuss issues of concern 
and help build collaborative efforts, network, share ideas 
and interact with city personnel. This event fosters 
positive attitudes about dealing with the city. Meetings 
are held at City Hall on the 3rd Tuesdays of each month 
from 7:30 AM to 9 AM. 
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4.3b Economic Development Department (continued ... ) 

Comprehensive Rezoning continued to be worked on 
throughout the year. Members of the Technical Review 
Group reviewed drafts and offered suggestions and 
corrections. 

Economic development comes from business retention, 
expansion, attraction, creation and transition. Our office 
focuses on each of these areas. Staff meets frequently 
with local manufacturing firms to evaluate their status 
and needs. Many companies expressed positive 
movement this year with plans for expansion, purchasing 
of new equipment, and open positions waiting to be filled 
with qualified and skilled workers. We put these 
companies together with financial resources, and w ith 
the various state job training programs. 

The first START UP business competition was held in June with 
thirty-seven contestants and seven finalists. This event was a 
partnership with the ABI Hub from Manchester and is a catalyst for 
identifying and nurturing new companies and potential businesses. 
Rochester can claim the position of Seacoast Hub of Manufacturing 
and Innovation, evidenced by the new aerospace company, Safran, 
locating here, and our energetic and robust activities designed to 
encourage economic investment in our city. 
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Working together with other economic development offices in the seacoast region, as well as the State Department 

of Economic Resources, we were represented at the Paris Air show with a rack card in June. Recognizing the need to 

work regionally, to pool limited resources, and to promote the area as a whole, throughout the year our office 
participated in joint advertising and strategy meetings to attract advanced manufacturers to the area. 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 was busy. Over $60 Million dollars of new building permits were issued. New projects entered 

the pipeline positioning Rochester as an economic bright spot in New Hampshire, promising much more economic 

development in the upcoming year. The results are an increased commercial and industrial tax base stabilizing our 

property tax rates, more jobs for area residents, and investment in those things that add to our quality of life. 
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4.3c Planning Department 

OUR MISSION 

The mission of the Planning and Development Department is to 
promote orderly growth in a manner sensitive to community values and 
to enhance environmental, economic, and social sustainability. 

Orderly growth. Through the application of carefully crafted 
regulations and diligent stewardship, the Department works to 
facilitate smart growth, including development that creates value and is 
compact, efficient in its use of infrastructure, pleasing, and sensitive to 
its surroundings. 

Community values. The Department seeks to serve the wide range of 
short and long-term stakeholder interests in Rochester and to 
understand community values through the use of surveys and other 
information-gathering techniques. Specific proposals are evaluated 
within the context of those values and the Master Plan. 

Environmental sustainability. The Department carefully weighs costs 
and benefits in order to provide reasonable protection for our natural 
resources, including air, land (fields, forests, open space, and various 
habitats), and water (wetlands, aquifers, rivers, ponds, and flood 
plains), while encouraging responsible development. 

Economic sustainability. The Department especially embraces 
businesses which make a commitment to the community's vitality by 
providing well-paying jobs, adding to the value of the built 
environment, offering choices for consumers, and participating in 
Rochester's civic life. 

Social sustainability. The Department works to preserve Rochester's 
distinctive identity and to advance quality of life by encouraging 
investment in social capital and facilitating the health, safety, 
education, and cultural expression of our citizens. 

OUR APPROACH 

The Planning Board, Historic District Commission, Zoning Board of 
Adjustment, Conservation Commission, and staff reviewed a great 
number of projects. The Planning Board and Historic District 
Commission approved most applications with conditions. We work 
hard with applicants to find an approach or design that serves the 
objectives of the applicant while also supporting the public interest and 
meeting legitimate concerns of abutters. Happily, we find most 
applicants are willing and able to modify projects as appropriate. 

The major responsibilities of the Planning 
Division include: 

• Policy development 
• Drafting of ordinances and regulations 
• Overseeing the zoning ordinance and 

processing applications for variances, 
special exceptions, and amendments 

• Reviewing and processing applications for 
subdivisions and site plan review 

• Strategic planning 
• Master Planning 
• Transportation planning 
• Infrastructure planning 
• Developing ordinances for the protection of 

natural and cultural resources 
• Coordinating the E911 addressing system 
• Coordination of, and service to, land use 

boards: 
Planning Board, Zoning Board of Adjustment, 
Conservation Commission, and Historic 
District Commission 

• Acquiring proper surety to insure that 
projects are built in accordance w ith City 
standards and the approved plan. 

HIGHLIGHTS 

Here are a few highlights from the year. 

Sakuntala, LLC/Newport Computers 
48 Airport Drive 45,438 sf. manufacturing 
facil ity to be constructed in two (2) phases. 
Phase 1 will include 30,438 sf. As well as 
appurtenant parking and loading areas. Phase 
2 will entail a 15,000 sf. addition. 

Development projects: Some of the more 
significant projects, approved by the Planning 
Board, included the following: 

NH Bureau of Turnpikes, c/o HNTB Corp./ Paul 
Danforth I Louise J. Brown - 121 Chestnut Hill 
Road Subdivision for a 2-lot subdivision. The 
NHDOT-Bureau of Turnpikes plans to purchase 
the proposed new lot for construction of a 
future maintenance garage. 



State of New Hampshire / Ronald Grandmaison -
Washington Street Site Plan to construct a Park and 
Ride facil ity with approximately 200 spaces and a 
concrete area for passengers to access the transit 
buses. 

The Villages at Clark Brook Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) for the Villages at Clark Brook, 
Old Dover Road Major subdivision and Site plan. PUD 
amendment plans include 9 duplex lots, 3 live/work 
lots, 144 apartments in four buildings, and 47 single 
family lots. 

McGroen Partners, LLC, 120 Washington Street Site 
Plan to build a 20,475 sq ft, 3 story commercial 
building. The first floor t o be retail space and t he 
second and third floors for commercial office space. 

The Rubber Group / Rob Pruyn, 22 Nadeau Drive Site 
plan application for a 6,000 sq ft addition to an existing 
20,000 sq ft manufact uring building. 

Presidential Estates, Fillmore Boulevard Residential 
sit e plan application for phase II of the Highfield 
Commons development to permit the first 16 
residential townhouse unit s. 

Sensible Self Storage, LLC, 201 Highland Street Site 
plan application for a two phased project consisting of 
six(6) storage buildings in the first phase and five(S) 
storage buildings in the second phase. 

Waste Management of NH, Inc, 30 Rochester Neck 
Road Excavation application for borrow areas to be 
developed to support on-site construction and 
operations activities. 

Charter Foods North, LLC, 280 North Main Street 
Subdivision and site plan to const ruct a 1,670 sq ft (28 
seat) Taco Bell Restaurant with a drive thru service 
window. 

17 Glenwood Avenue, LLC, 17 Glenwood Avenue 
Subdivision and site plan const ruct 24 additional 
elderly housing units on the propert y once it is 
subdivided into two lots. 
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4.3c Planning Department (continued ... ) 

Triictov St,rp-pL!j, 1.2 Two R.or;;l R.ocw! 

Total Approved Denied 

Subdivision 6 6 0 

l ot line 
13 13 0 Revisions 

Sit e Plans 14 13 0 
TOTAL 33 32 0 

Total AUowed w/o further review 

Minor Site 
6 5 Plan 

Special 
22 21 

Downtown 

Day Care 1 0 

Home 
8 8 

O<.c:upation -
TOTAL 17 34 

Total Approved 

Variances 47 39 

Special Exceptions 3 2 

Eqllltable Waiver 0 0 

Administrative Appeals 
(Building Code of Appeal 0 0 

Board) 

Request for Rehearing 1 0 

TOTAL 51 41 

Total Lo~ 

76 

0 

0 

0 

Sent to 
Planning 

Soard 

0 

0 

1 

0 

-
1 

Denied 

4 

0 

0 

0 

1 

s 

Chapter 42 Amendments 

The Chief Planner and the Planning Board spent a great 
deal of time working on the Chapter 42 draft amendments 
this year. There were times when the Planning Board was 
meeting three to four times a month. At the beginning of 
every Planning Board meeting, both regular meetings and 
workshops, the Board took comments from the public 
regarding the proposed draft. The Board was working to 
prepare a draft document that could be recommended 
and forwarded to the City Council in the Fall of 2013. The 
following issues were discussed at great length by the 
Planning Board: 

Withdrawn 

0 

0 

l 

1 

Withdrawn 

1 

1 

0 

0 

-
2 

Withdrawn 

4 

1 

0 

0 

0 

5 

• New draft Zoning Map 
• Definitions 
• Base Zoning Districts 
• Special Zoning Districts 
• Table of Uses 
• Table of Dimensional Requirements 
• Density in the various Zoning 

Districts 
• Multi-Family Housing 
• Other Miscellaneous amendments, 

additions, and deletions 
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Master Plans 

To date, the City has seven adopted master plans: 

1) Land Use, adopted 2001 
2) Transportation, adopted 2001 
3) Downtown, adopted 2003 
4) Economic Development, adopted 2006 
5) Natural Resources, adopted 2009 
6) Cultural Resources, adopted 2010 
7) Recreation, adopted 2011 

Possible chapters that might be pursued in the future 
include: 

- Energy and sustainability 
- Public facilities 
- Natural Hazards 
- Utilities and public services 
- Regional concerns 
- Community design 
- Housing and community development 
- Strategic planning 

The first three chapters - Land Use, Transportation, and 
Downtown - are the chapters that will be updated in the 
not too distant future. There are funds in the CIP to 
help facilitate the completion of these chapters. Once 
the Chapter 42 amendments are settled, then we can 
begin work on the Land Use and Downtown chapters. 
Now that a majority of the Spaulding Turnpike/Route 16 
improvements are complete and we have updated 
traffic count data, we should be able to begin updating 
the Transportation chapter. 

Surety Process 
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The Planning Staff, along with the City Engineer, began 
reviewing the spreadsheets for surety that the City is 
currently holding for approved projects. The review 
included releasing surety that the City has been holding as 
well as updating the cost figures used to calculate the 
surety. The figures are now reviewed and updated twice a 
year. 

Rochester's, the Arts and Culture Commission elected 
Officers in March 2013, Matthew Wyatt was nominated for 
Chair, Peg Johnson was nominated for Vice Chair, and Pam 
Hubbard was nominated as Secretary. 

Arts and Culture Commission 

The Arts and Culture Commission also completed the 
website, City of Rochester Commission for Arts and Culture. 
The website includes: about us, visit Rochester, art walk, 
arts and culture database, Achievement in the Arts Award, 
and facebook page. Arts and Culture Inventory - The 
Commission started a database inventorying all of the 
wonderful things Rochester has. It would be very helpful for 
citizens to find out information and for the Commission to 
use as well. 

The Arts and Culture Commission formed the first annual 
awards ceremony/gala to recognize "Achievement in the 
Arts". The event will be scheduled for August 2013. Projects 
for next year include: "French Festival", Arts in the Park, the 
event would most likely take place at the Commons with 
possible use of the River Walk, and an advertisement on 
Metrocast Channel 26. 
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4.3c Planning Department (continued ... ) 
Historic District Commission 

• 

Applicant Address Proposed Acbv1ty 

Beller Homes & 90 NorU1 Main Slreel Sign 
Gardens/Masiello 

Collec-liques 48 Norm Main Slreet 
Paint outside building pale yellow, aod 

lellenng to windows -
Service Credit Union 90 South Main Street 8' green vinyl chain link fence w1lh 

access gale to an emergency generator 

Tri-City Co-op 36 Wakefield Street Installing a handicap accessible ramp 

Liberty Tax 14 North Main Street Wall sign 

Profile Bank 57 Wakefield Street f:.xpanding drive-up canopy by 1 
additional lane, moving HVAC and Al M -

Grammy and Grampy's Gift 18 North Main Street Sign 
Baskets 

Joe Conroy 16-22 Norlh Main Streel Enclose a 9-f oot wall door 

I !obo's Tattoo Shop 87 North Main Street Sign 

Smoke & Spints Downtown 
38 North MaHI Slreet Sign Cigar Bar LLC 

- - --
Scenic Theater 12 North Main Sign and paint 

Skele-T one Records and SOL Norlh Mam Street Sign 
Clothing 

Twice 1s Nice 19A Hanson Street W1~dows1gn 

- __/ 

~ I 

ei,~ □ r 
1 • ;' 

Proposed T ei co i:;eLL, ::2.l?O Nortvi MC1[111, street 
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4.3c Planning Department {continued ... ) 
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4.4 Finance Department 

The fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 once again indicates the City's financial position continues to be strong. This has resulted 
from a combination of conservative revenue estimates, thoughtful and prudent budgeting practices and ongoing close 
monitoring of expenditures in the General Fund and Enterprise Funds. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Government-wide Highlights 
• The City's total assets of 230.9 and deferred outflows of 

resources of $0.5 million, exceeded total liabilities of $88.1 
and deferred inflows of resources of $19.5 million, by 
$123.8 million. Known as the City's Total Net Position, the 
$123.8 million is composed of $112.3 million net 
investment in capital assets, $0.8 million restricted and 
$10.7 million in unrestricted funds. The unrestricted 
balance represents the portion available to be used to 
meet the City's ongoing obligations to its citizens and 
creditors. 

• The City's Total Net Position of $123.8 million represents 
an increase in fiscal year 2013 of $1. 7 million or 1.4% over 
fiscal year 2012's total of $122.1 million. 

• The City's Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
of $231.4 million is a decrease of $2 million or minus 0.9% 
and Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources of 
$107.6 million is a decrease by $3.7 million or 3.3%. 

Fund Balance Highlights 

The fund Balance for all governmental funds decreased by 
$4.5 million to $10 million for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2013. This amount is the Fund Balance of total Governmental 
Funds at the end of the year. The General Fund Balance 
increased by $115 thousand to $14 million; the fund balance 
for the Capital Projects Fund decreased by $2.4 million and the 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds decreased by $2.7 million. 

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

As stated above, the City's combined total net position is 
$123.8 million. Separating the net position of Governmental 
and Business-type Activities, this represents $70.6 million for 
Governmental Activities and $53.2 million for Business-type 
Activities. 

The largest portion of the City's net position is comprised 
of its net investment in capital assets such as land, 
buildings, equipment and infrastructure less any 
outstanding debt. 

The City's 2013 unrestricted net position of governmental 
activities of $5.3 million represents a decrease from 2012 
at $9.0 million of $3.7 million This decrease represents a 
decrease in the amount of funds available to meet the 
City's general fund obligations due largely to the cash 
expended on capital projects. The issuance of bonded 
debt in early 2014 will replace cash previously expended 
on capital projects. The City's ability to complete most 
major capital projects with cash on hand prior to the 
actual sale of the bonds has been a testament of its strong 
fiscal health. The fiscal strength of the City is also due to its 
conservative budgetary practices in past years. It is 
incumbent on the City to maintain these practices in order 
to maintain financial strength. 

The net position of the City's business-type activities 
represent investments in water and sewer plants, the 
related infrastructure, and the arena building/equipment. 
Unrestricted net position of the business-type activities 
("enterprise" funds), however, cannot be used to fund or 
support other governmental activities. The City, generally, 
can only use this net position to finance the continuing 
operations of the Water, Sewer and Arena operations. 

The City's overall net position increased by $1.7 million, as 
presented in Table 1 (to the right). The largest 
expenses are from Education, Public Safety, Public Works 
and General Government. The difference in funding 
between expenses and revenues is made up through 
property taxes. 



I 

• 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for services 
1 Operating grants 

Capital grants and contributions 

General Revenues: 

Property taxes 

Licenses and permits - --
Other general revenues 

I 
Total Revenues 

I 
-
Expenses: 

General government 

· Public safety 

Public works 

Health and welfare 
' 

Culture and recreation 

Community development 

Community services 

Educ.ition 

Food services 

Debt service 

Intergovernmental 
•-

Water -
Sewer 

Arena 

.f 
Total Expenses 

Excess {deficiency) before transfers 

I Transfers 

-
Increase (decrease) in net position 

Table 1 
Changes in Net Posit ion 

(in Millions) 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activit ies Activities 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
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Total Primary 
Government 
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2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 -4.9 2.1 8.6 8.8 13.5 10.9 

29.0 30.6 29.0 30.6 

1.1 1.2 1.9 0.2 3.0 1.4 11 
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51.6 50.5 . . 51.6 50.5 ?•' 
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4.3 4.3 . . 4.3 4.3 1,, 
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12.2 12.1 . - 12.2 12.1 
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4.4 Finance Department (continued ... ) 

I 
Table 2. 

I Net Position 
(in MIiiions) 

I Governmental Business-Type Tot~I Priniary 
Activities Activities Government 

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 

L111rP1n ar111 o,he, as1ca 38 i 405 7,2 8.7 15.S ~<J l 

C~p11a1 as,et\, 11•1 10S.8 (04 6 80~ 793 l 8S.4 183,9 -- --- I 1-- - --
Total asse~ 143.3 145.l 87.6 88,0 230,9 233.1 

Total deferred outflows of 

I 0,4 I 0.3 0.1 o.s 0.3 . 
resources 

[,:,nP, w rm llab,lrt1~1 1".S -!SA 13.0 '611 78.5 84,8 

0l11Pi lla~il,ti, .. , ss RI LI 1.1 'l6 (I} 

Total liabilities 54.0 56.5 34.1 37.5 88.1 94.0 

Total deferred inflows of resources 19.1 16.9 0.4 0.4 ~ L 17.3 -
Net inve\tfllent 111 Ci1p1:a1 asset, 6-1.S 50.0 SU .l&.O I 1..2.3 10&.0 

Rem,ned 011 3.0 - . 0.8 3.0 I 
Unresmcied S.3 9,0 S,1 u 107 131 - ---- - ·- - -

Total net posit ion 70,6 72.0 53,2 50.1 12'3.8 122.l 

Governmental Activities 

The City recognizes that maintaining a 
strong financial position is crucial to the 
City's long-term success. The burden that is 
placed on citizens and businesses as well as 
the needs for services must both be taken 
into consideration with all financial 
decisions. The major fiscal challenges 
facing the City continue to be level or 
decreased State funding for education, 
health insurance increases, State 
retirement increases, energy costs, 
property values and tax rates. Fortunately, 
other City/School revenues have exceeded 
expectations and conservative spending 
has produced balances in many accounts 
at the end of the year. 

The City's assessed property value for 
taxation for fiscal year 2013 (tax year 2012) 

increased $15.6 million or 0.8% as of April 1, 2012. The tax rate increased to $25.681 which is 3.3% over the previous year. 

The major areas where revenues exceeded projections are taxes of $395 thousand and licenses & permits of $342 thousand. 
The conservative philosophy of sustainable and steady growth that Rochester has embraced over the years remains as one of 
the keys to the City's continued financial strength and stability. 

Business-type Activities 

The Change in Net Position for the City's business-type activities increased by $3.1 million. 

• The City's sewer system posted a positive change in net position of $1.2 million. The Sewer Fund's audit report of 
Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Funds, reports a decrease of $515 thousand in the cash balance from the beginning 
of the year, due to the bond funding cycle. Rate reviews and increases in the sewer rate will be necessary to maintain 
positive operations. 

• The City's water system posted a positive change in net position of $1.99 million. The Water Fund's audit report of 
Statement of Cash Flows Proprietary Funds, reports a decrease of $554 thousand in cash balance from the beginning of 
the year, due once again to the City's bond funding cycle. In conjunction with the Sewer Fund, rate reviews and increases 
in the water rate will be necessary to maintain positive operations. 

• The City's ice arena has a reported minimal net position decrease of $18,532. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
The City's investment in capital assets, net of depreciation, for its Governmental and Business-type Activities as of June 30, 2013 
is $185.4 million (see Table 3 below). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, equipment, computer software, 
construction in progress and infrastructure. Infrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable, of value only to the 
City, and Include roads and bridges. 



Table 3 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

(net of Depreciation, in Millions) 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

2013 2012 20B 2012 
Land 80 7.6 35 3.5 
Easements 1.4 1 .. - -
Land improvements 2.3 2.3 - -
f ~u,1d1ngs Md 1mp,ovcmonts .t1 4 4i 9 29.6 28 7 -Vehicles and equ1prnont ti.O 57 3.3 3.2 
!lnfrastnJclure 39.0 4; 5 31_.3 JI 5 
1cons1ruct1on 1n progress 6.9 4,5 12.7 12 4 

I Totals 105.0 t 104.6 80.4 79.3 
' 

ea ~ ~ ~ 

Debt 
~ 
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Total 

2013 2012 
1· 5 11.1 
u 1.1 

23 2.3 

71,0 706 -9.3 8.9 

70.3 7J.O 

"9.6 16.9 

185.4 183.9 
~ ~ 
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The City may issue general obligation bonds, receive State Revolving Loan Fund notes in lieu of bonds, and notes in 
anticipation of such bonds, taxes and other anticipated revenues. As of June 30, 2013, the total debt outstanding for all 
funds is $73.5 million (See Table 4 below). 

The General Obligation bond rating process conducted in February - March of 2012 returned a bond rating from Moody's of 
Al and a rating of AA- was received from Standard and Poors. While financial steadfastness is only one of the criteria that 
bond rating agencies use in assessing overall risk, continued positive performance in this area will help the City to 
achieve continued increases in bond ratings which in turn mean lower rates and savings to taxpayers. 

Table 4 
Outstanding Debt at Year-end 

(in Millions) 

I Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

I 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 
G0nomt obligahoo bonus ' 
l~backoo by the City) anc1 State 40.9 4-19 32.6 36.0 73.5 80,9 
revolvmg notes 

I Totals ~ 40.9 44.9 I 32.6 36.0 73.5 80.9 
~ ~ ~ ~ - --- -

NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

It is important to the City Council and the community it serves to provide appropriate levels of service to taxpayers, diversify 
the tax base, and create new investment in the City. The City's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when 
setting the fiscal year 2014 budget and the resulting impact on tax rates and the service fees that will be charged for 
business-type activities. The City continues its long standing tradition of fiscal restraint - forecasting realistic anticipated 
revenues, keeping expenditures in check and directing capital expenditures in an effort to minimize bonded debt while at 
the same time addressing the service and infrastructure needs of the City. It is also important to note that in November 
2008 voters of the City approved a tax cap charter amendment to limit the amount property taxes can increase by a national 
inflation factor. The City Council has not overridden the tax cap in the five budget cycles since passage of this charter 
amendment. The City's continued financial strength indicates that a proper balance has been achieved and maintained 
between all of the above factors. 
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5 Fire Department 

MOTTO 

Serving the Lilac City with Pride. 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The primary mission of the Rochester Fire Department is to provide a 
range of programs designed to protect and maintain the quality of life 
within the City of Rochester through Fire Prevention, Fire Suppression 

and Rescue activities. 

ORGANIZATION 

The City of Rochester Fire Department is a 62-member 
"combination" organization providing fire, rescue, and public 
assistance to the Rochester, East Rochester and Ganie sections 
of this community. 

The department serves a community with an estimated 
population of 32,000 residents in a 49.2 square mile area from 
two fire stations which are covered 24/7. 

The Chief of the Fire Department reports to the Rochester City 
Manager under t he City Manager form of government. 

It is my pleasure to present the Rochester Fire Department 
annual report for 2012-2013. I would like to thank all of our 
dedicated firefighters, all of our accomplishments are made 
possible by the efforts of these Firefighters and Fire Officers. 

Our depart ment continues to accept the challenges presented 
by the demands for service. Rochester Firefighters responded 
to over 2300 incidents in this fiscal year. The numbers 
represent when one of our citizen's or visitors experience an 
unexpected or unfortunate event that led them to call for our 
assistance. Our firefighters continue to provide not only the 
professional response needed to take care of the emergency, 
but also show compassion to support the person and fa milies 
involved in these emergencies. 

This fiscal year the Fire Depart ment responded to 2,316 calls 
for service. This is a slight decrease over fiscal year 2012 which 
had 2,355 calls. The majority of our calls continue to be 
medically related with 1,047 calls this last fiscal year which is 
an increase over FY 2012 wit h 987 calls. 

Although most of our calls include medical and motor vehicle 
accident s we still continue to respond to structure fires which 
were up this year over the year prior. In fiscal year 2012 we 
responded to 106 fires 17 of which were building fires with 
five of those requiring a first alarm assignment or more to be 
struck. In FY 2013 we responded to 112 fires, 21 of which were 
building fires with 14 that were working fires requiring a first 
alarm assignment or more. In FY 2013 we responded to more 
working fires than any other year since 1997 in which we had 
18 working fires that year. Since last fiscal year this 
Department had an incredible increase in working fires of 180 
%. Although potentially an anomaly these increases are 
proven to be possible and place our citizens and our 
firefighters at high risk with our limited manpower. 

The increasing demand requires us to continue examining 
manpower increases and a third station. The City continues to 
grow and with that , inevitably, more requests for emergency 
services. Our personnel are required to respond immediately 
to emergencies without delay. As our incidents increase, so do 
our calls for simultaneous services at different locations at the 
same time. These occurrences continue to increase and split 
our resources making us less effective and slower to respond. 

FY12 FY13 Percentage 
Total Runs 2355 2316 -· .7% 

Fires 106 112 +57% I 

Worktng Filf:S 5 14 +180% 
Medical Calls 569 667 +16.7% 

Motor Vehicle 413 370 -10A% 
Accidents 

Total Runs 2355 2316 -1.7% 
--
The future brings many growth opportunities for t he Fire 
Department. As t he City of Rochester expands, the 
department must expand to meet the continually changing 
needs. The future brings the expansion of service delivery 
with t he goals of adding Fire Station 3. 



The department will look to develop our firefighters with 
progressive mentoring programs and community 
involvement. At the same time, we continue to develop 
our operating standards, experience and equipment. As 
we grow within the community, I see unlimited potential 
in many areas. 

With the support of the Mayor, City Council, our City 
Manager and his staff, as well as all other City 
Departments and supporting governmental agencies, we 
continue to be an exemplary organization that prides 
itself on being proactive, efficient and exceptionally 
effective in our delivery of services. 

TRAINING 

EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
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Rochester Firefighters are trained and certified in Emergency 
Medical, most as emergency medical technicians (EMT's) and 
respond as medical first responders to emergency medical 
incidents that occur within the City. 

With two fully staffed fire stations strategically located, often 
times firefighters are closer than an ambulance to a medical call, 
allowing firefighters to reach the scene of such a medical 
emergency more rapidly to initiate medical care. Frisbie Hospital 
provides paramedic level ambulance service to the City of 
Rochester and we continue to assist as needed. 

This fiscal year the department continued to secure Homeland Security Grant money for numerous Technical Rescue and 
Incident Command classes. This grant covered all costs associated with our members attending the class and providing shift 
coverage while they were out. For FY 2013 there were 3,666.50 hours of training attended by department members. This total 
includes both in house training and courses taken outside the department. 

FIRE PREVENTION 

The Fire Prevention Office is responsible for helping promote fire safety within the City of Rochester. This is done through 
educating people and contractors of the dangers that fire presents. By enforcing current fire safety laws, the Fire Department 
is able to ensure that citizens have a safe place to live, shop, and worship. 

Our inspection and plans review programs have gone digital. We are now able to accept and review plans electronically, as 
well as streamlining the process. This helps the customer be able to quickly start new projects, or make revisions to in-progress 
jobs, even if they are based out of state. It further reduces downtime when a change comes up, and provides better archiving 
for future reference. As far as inspections, new forms and templates have been implemented to reflect the updated codes and 
software. Of note is that all of these changes are done with software that the city already owns, creating a large cost savings. 



05 CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

4.5 Fire Department (continued ... ) 

Arson investigation has been improved with new state-of-the 
art computer software from the Department of Homeland 
Security and ATF. This also came at no cost, and all reports 
entered into the software are cross-checked in a national 
database. This allows a very fluid process for bringing 
offenders to justice, and helping crack hard to solve cases, 
with the resources of the Federal Government. Finally, it 
provides a standard platform that numerous jurisdictions are 
using, providing uniform reports that are accepted nationally. 

With the growth in the business and commercial sectors of the 
City's economy, the Fire Prevention Bureau continues to 
experience increased responsibilities to insure life safety for 
employees and customers associated with these enterprises. 
Fire Prevention also conducted life safety fire drills in 
cooperation with NH DHHS at various assisted living facilities 
in Rochester during the past year. Two years ago the Fire 
Prevention office also initiated annual inspections of the 
residential motels and the fire suppression systems at all 
self-service gas stations. Fire Prevention also worked 

intensively with the vendors who come to the Rochester 
Fair to bring them up to code with their cooking facilities, 
and this office continues to assist with the upgrades of the 
cooking facilities at all concession stands at Roger Allen and 
t he Babe Ruth recreational fields. The Rochester Fire 
Department lauds the efforts of all the volunteers 
associated with t hese youth programs for their outstanding 
work to improve the safety at these concession stands. The 
RFD also wishes to recognize the continued dedication to 
life safety by all the schools in Rochester. During the annual 
inspection of all schools last November, they were found to 
be in excellent shape when it comes to life safety for the 
staff and students. Rochester parents can have every 
confidence in the safety of their children when they are at 
our schools. In addition, the Fire Prevention Bureau 
continues to conduct many training and public education 
events to a variety of groups in Rochester, 
including elderly citizens, school children, civic groups and 
businesses. 
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4.5 Fire Department (continued ... ) 

In addition to the fundamental and ongoing work to support emergency and public 
health preparedness education and response efforts in Strafford County, Council staff 
lead or participated in a number of programs that impacted Rochester citizens, 
providers, and agencies in FY 2013 including: 

• Immunized over 70 school children against influenza in the region's inaugural 
year of school based clinics at two Rochester schools. 

• Worked to convene and educate local agencies that conduct business in 
citizen's homes to promote awareness of health and safety risks and available 
support via the Healthy Homes program. Invited to join NH Healthy Homes 
Steering Committee. 

• Performed inventory at 5 Public Health Network storage sites including the 
Rochester-owned POD Trailer deployed to support small shelters and 
vaccination events. 

• Represented the Public Health Network and Medical Reserve Corps on the 
Board of Rochester Youth Reach. 

• Served as a clinical placement/practicum site for Univ. of New Hampshire and 
Mass. College of Pharmacy and Health Science senior nursing students. 
Students participated in experiential education rotations with a Rochester 
homecare agency, an outpatient wound-care program at Frisbie Hospital, and 
public health preparedness planning with Rochester emergency responders. 

• Initiated a School Wellness policy assessment of all school wellness and school 
emergency preparedness policies. 

• Promoted public health preparedness and recruitment of clinical and 
non-clinical volunteers for Citizen Corps (CERT/MR() teams in conjunction with 
the Greater Portsmouth and Greater Exeter Region Public Health Networks. 

• Participated on the state of NH Medical Surge Workgroup to improve planning 
capacity for Alternate Care Sites like Rochester Middle School. 

• Provided advanced emergency preparedness training to local first responders 
including Autism 911, Psychological First Aid, Hinge Points in Cultural 
Communications and Mass Casualty Triage. 

The Council continued to provide 
subcontractor Community Program 
and Volunteer Coordination 
services to both the Greater Exeter 
and Greater Portsmouth Public 
Health Regions. These contracts 
allowed t he Council to fund 
expansion of the role of the 
Community Program and Volunteer 
Coordinator and coordinate 
trainings and educational 
opportunities for volunteers and 
responders across three regions, 
improving attendance and 
increasing cost effectiveness that 
allows expanded offerings. 

The Strafford County Citizen Corps 
(SCCC) program continued to grow 
and restructure to encourage 
community involvement and 
improve volunteer preparedness 
and response capacity. The team 
has 56 trained and dedicated 
members to support Strafford 
County and the City of Rochester 
during an emergency. SCCC 
members were activated to assist 
with traffic control at the Rochester 
Holiday Parade, School Based 
Immunization Clinics and a number 
of additional planned and 
emergency activations throughout 
the region. 

The success of the SCCC and sustainability of the Council are due in large part to the commitment and generous in-kind support 
provided by the City of Rochester Fire and Police Departments. Support includes facilitation of meeting space and guest 
instructors for team trainings, expert consultation on local and regional preparedness and response plans, participation in 
community and regional conversation around preparedness priorities and an ongoing commitment to service excellence that 
infuses the Council's work. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Norman Sanborn, Jr. 
Chief of Department 







4.6 Legal Report 
The following is a report of the activities of the office of the 
City Attorney for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012 and 
ending on June 30, 2013: 

During the fiscal year 2012-2013, the following cases 
involving t he City of Rochester were concluded: 

1. Donald and Ruth Gilbert v. City of Rochester/ 
Strafford County Case No. 219-2011-CV- 00426; 

2. One Heritage St. Development, LLC v. City of 
Rochester/ Dist rict 7, Circuit Court Case No. 
432-2013-SC-114; 

3 . Kimberly Campbell v. Rochester Welfare Office, et 
als / Strafford County Case No. 219-2012-CV-0460 

In addition to the above case, as of June 30, 2013, the 
following actions involving t he City of Rochester were 
pending in various New Hampshire and Federal Courts: 

1. City of Rochester v. Rennelda Trust, George Blaisdell 
and Clay Phalen/ Strafford County Case# 
219-2008-E-00117; 

2. City of Rochester v. Albert Blaisdell and George 
Blaisdell/ Strafford County Case# 
219-2010-CV-00338; 

3, Franklin Goodale Torr and Ann M . Torr v. Cecilia Torr 
and t he City of Rochester/ Strafford County Case 
#219-2010-CV-00421; 

4. FairPoint v City of Rochester/ Strafford County Case 
No. 219-2013-CV-00343 (consolidated in Merrimack 
County Superior Court); 

5. Northern Utilities, Inc. v. City of Rochester/ Strafford 
County Case No. 219-2012-CV-00428. 

It should be noted that the above listing of cases does not 
include various bankruptcy proceedings pending in various 
U.S. District Courts across the United States in which the 
City of Rochester has filed proofs of claims and/or other 
pleadings with regard to the City's various interests in such 
bankruptcy estates, workers compensation proceedings, 
and various litigation in which the City is, or was, 
represented by counsel provided through the City's various 
liability carriers, or counsel retained on an individual case 
basis. 
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The office of the City Attorney also provided representation to the 
City in numerous matters before the New Hampshire courts with 
respect to cases in which the City was a party, as well as before 
various administrative agencies when necessary. In addition, the 
City Attorney attended Council meetings, as well as meetings of 
Council committees and other City boards and commissions upon 
request. Legal opinions and advice were provided to the City 
Manager, Mayor and City Council, Department Heads, and City 
Department Divisions. Legal instruments, including deeds, 
leases, contracts, ordinances, and amendments to 
ordinances, resolutions and other similar type documents were 
drafted and reviewed, as required, during the year and 
representation of the City was provided with regard to the 
acquisition and disposition of real estate, as well as the 
negotiation of various disputes and the drafting and review of 
agreements concerning the City for numerous purposes. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Danford J. Wensley, City Solicitor 
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4.7 Library 

2013 was another busy and exciting year for the Rochester Library. 
The citizens of Rochester continue to make great use of our facility 
and the resources we offer. In FY 2013 the library circulated 262,401 
items, 27% of which were from the Children's Library. The DVD 
collection continues to be a strong attraction at the library: almost a 
third of all items that were checked out are movies. We saw more 
than 144,000 people visit the library over the course of the year -
almost 500 a day. Visitors don't just come in person, either - the 
Library's website racked up just over 82,000 visits this year. 

BookS 
■ Maga11nes 
■ Audio Books 
■ MusteCD"s 
■ Down'oads 

■ DVD's 

Magazines (2%) 

Aud,o Bool<S (3%} 

MUSIC co·s ()%) 

Books (49%) 

While on the website, Library patrons downloaded more than ten 
thousand eBooks and audio books through the New Hampshire 
Downloadable Books Consortium. Computer availability 
continues to bring thousands of visitors: this year 3,578 people 
used the public computers for a total of 12,222 hours. More than 
five hundred people used our popular Mango database to learn 
foreign language skills. 

This year's summer reading program, Dream Big .. . Read! was a great success, with 461 registered children turning in reading 
logs for more than six thousand five hundred books. The Children's Library was transformed into a night-time setting, complete 
with batcave. We had excellent turnouts at the events for the program, which included visits from the Little Red Wagon theater 
troop, Owls of New Hampshire (presented by the Squam Lakes Science Center), and magician Norman Ng. This year the adults 
got in on the fun too, with a Summer Olympics themed summer reading challenge that offered weekly raffle prizes to readers 
who turned in scorecards. In the teen room, the theme was "Own the Night", and area teens turned in 123 reading logs, 62 trivia 
sheets, 29 bingo cards and 28 book reviews, earning prizes from local sponsors for their efforts. 

In addition to their regular story times and 
craft programs, this year the children's 
library held several "garden day" programs 
to work in the children's room 
vegetable garden. Kids learned all about 

gardening and plants throughout the 
summer, and all the vegetables grown 
were donated to the local food pantry. All 
told, the children's room had 94 story hour 
programs with just under 1,500 
participants, and held an additional 34 
special programs with 1,363 participants. 



The Library was able to hold many other programs, including our 
annual booksale, holiday wreathmaking, continuous art displays 
from local artists and the Rochester Museum of Fine Arts, Free 
Comic Book Day, the 31st Annual Photography show, and a 
weekly movie series. Once again the library partnered with the 
AARP to provide tax aide services for Rochester residents - this 
year they helped to file 550 federal income tax returns. 

One of our biggest new events was the first annual Rochester 
Author's Fair, presented by the Rochester Times and Rochester 
Main Street. The program was held at the Library and featured 
three panels of local authors. Over 150 people attended the 
day-long event, and Mayor Jean delivered a proclamation to 
organizer John Nolan naming April 27th 'Author's Day' for the city 
of Rochester. The Library is pleased to have been able to 
participate in this event and looks forward to the next Author's 
Fair this spring. 

All of the Library's programs and countless services to the city 
wouldn' t be possible without a dedicated and talented staff. The 
Rochester Public Library is fortunate to have a team of 9 full time 
and 17 part time professionals working for our library patrons and 
for the City of Rochester. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Brian Sylvester 
Director, Rochester Public Library 
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4.8 MIS (Municipal Information Systems) 

COMPUTERS AND NETWORKING 

MIS continued support of City operations in FY13. MIS 
support includes the Local Area Networks (LAN), Wide Area 
Networks (WAN) and the Institutional Network (I-NET) with all 
types of user administration, data maintenance and backup, 
virus and malware prevention, network and personal 
computer (PC) hardware repairs, upgrades and maintenance, 
software installation, training and research and development 
of computer aided procedures. 

FY13 included a major upgrade to the City email system 
involving hardware, software and associated configurations. 
Also started in FY13 was a project for leasing printers and 
copier/printers. This provides supplies and support for 
printing devices in use by the City. 

In FY13 the Library's Integrated Library System server was 
replaced and the system upgraded. This system is central to all 
Library functions: circulation, acquisitions, cataloging, 
financials and all online public access. 

MIS has the primary responsibility for voice communications 
and City telephone systems. This includes all related 
hardware, software, voicemail, auto attendants, cabling for 
phone lines, equipment configuration as well as being the 
primary contact for various communications vendors. 

MIS does most of the management for the Business System 
including hardware support, user administration, software 
upgrades and module updates from the vendor. In FY13 the 
search for a part time Database Administrator (DBA) did not 
result in filling the position. The OBA position would have 
been the primary administrative support for the Business 
System if it could have been filled. 

The upgrading of the Welfare database program began in FY13 
with a database programmer contracted on a hourly basis. 
This upgrade will allow the Welfare employees to use new 
computers once the legacy system is replaced. 

The City of Rochester, NH has its website at 
http://www.rochesternh.net and MIS is also involved with 
separate sites for the Police Department 
(http://www.rochesterpd .org), Fire Department 
(http://www.rochfd.org) and Rochester Public Library 
(http://www.rpl.lib.nh.us). 

ROCHESTER GOVERNMENT CHANNEL 

The Rochester Government Channel (RGC) is Channel 26 on 
Metrocast Cablevision. In FY13 the RGC continued to follow 
its mission statement by cablecasting live City Council, 
Planning Board, Police Commission, Zoning Board of 
Adjustment and School Board Meetings as well as other 
special meetings and events as needed. 

In FY13 there were equipment upgrades including an 
additional camera installed in the City Council Chambers. 
There was an upgrade to the Nexus recording and playback 
system which also included online Video on Demand (VOD) 
of reoorded City meetings. These meetings can now be 
found on the Internet at http://rochesternh.pegcen­
tral.com/ for viewing. 

The RG~ continues to produce informational programming 
on City departments as well as short Public Service 
Announcements on various subjects. Many of these are run 
multiple times on Channel 26 and some of these are also 
available on the Internet at http://vimeo.com/cityofroches­
ternhgovtv/. FY13 informational programming included 
Bike Safety, Stop for that Bus, Lock Your Vehicle Doors, Burn 
Permits, Granite State Business Park Update, City of 
Rochester Employee of the Year, NH State Capital Tour and 
the Library Summer Reading Program. 



MAPPING AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS 

MIS generates tax maps and other maps for the City web site in a commonly 
used format. The electronic tax and topographic maps of the City are used for both 
public and private projects. In FY13 MIS continued to update and publish the City Zoning 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Maps, Ward Maps and produce other maps for specific projects such as Comprehensive Rezoning, 
Drug Free Zones and TIF districting. 

61 

The majority of electronic mapping data is also used for GIS viewing and analysis. One of the primary GIS coverages/ layers is 
for roads. This is depicted as the centerlines and is kept current by MIS with new streets, renamed streets and renumbered 
streets both public and private. The roads coverage is incorporated into Emergency Services specific programs. Parcels and 
structures coverages are updated on a yearly basis to match w ith current Assessing information. City GIS coverages are used by 
various departments for many purposes and is one of the primary features within Pictometry. 

E-911 COMMITTEE 

MIS participates on the E-911 Committee with coordination of most mapping and data needs. In FY13 the E-911 Committee 
continued the process of reviewing problem areas, changing or adjusting street numbers administratively as allowed by City 
Ordinance and recommending street name related changes to the City Council. The E-911 Committee is also responsible for 
reviewing all new projects relative to street naming and numbering. 

The E-911 Committee coordinates street names and numbers for many private roads. When access to multiple homes or 
parcels is over privately owned property, the owners can agree to follow the City adopted system and no Public Hearing is 
required. In FY13 new or changed roadways w ith approved street names included Pondview Lane, Healthcare Drive, Lumber 
Way and Innovation Drive. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Dennis Schafer 
Systems Supervisor 
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4.9 Rochester Police Department 

Ii "THE PRIME MISSION OF THE ROCHESTER POLICE DEPARTMENT is the protection of life and 
property. This is accomplished through fair and equal enforcement, always keeping in mind 
the rights and dignity of the public. The basis of all Police Action is the law and credibility of 

' 

ill 

the Agency. The measure of our service will be judged by the Public in the way we deliver our 
service. We will hold all personnel to a high level of ethical practices. This mission can~ 

., 

achieved through crime prevention, public relations and community policing. u -JI 

Overview 

Rochester consists of an approximate area of 46 square miles, 
with an estimated population of 30,000. Although very 
separate in their job functions, all of the members of the 
Police Department work together to produce a high level of 
service to the citizens. Our staff consists of sworn officers and 
a civilian support staff. The Department maintains a Police 
Explorer Post. This nationally recognized division of the Boy 
Scouts of America "explores" law enforcement careers with 
young adult s. 

Our Communications Center operates with enhanced 911 
and is staffed 24 hours per day, by specially trained 
personnel. This combined center dispatches calls for service 
for police, fire and Frisbie Hospital ambulance. 

A three-member-board of 
Police Commissioner's 
elected by the citizens, 
serves the City. Chairman 
James F. McManus, Jr., Vice 
Chairman Alan B. Bemis 
and Commissioner David E. 
Winship, Jr. 

Personnel 

The following personnel resigned or retired during this 
reporting period: Communication Specialist Amy Milam, 
Communication Specialist Ryan Therrien and Communication 
Specialist Bruce Daigle, Officer Matthew Young, Officer 
Michael Miehle, Officer Matthew duChemin, Officer Rachel 
Roberts, and Officer Anthony Triano, Secretary Marilyn 
Levesque and Secretary Linnette Richardson. 

The following personnel were hired to fill open vacancies 
during this reporting period: Secretary Karen Bonneau, 
Secretary Kimberlee Routhier, Communication Specialist 
Sarah Bailey, Communication Specialist Kayla Rohlof and 
Communication Specialist Bruce Daigle; Officer Matthew 

duChemin, Officer Adam Ducharme, Officer Geoff Moore, 
Officer Kyle Danie and Officer John Bourque. 

Major Service Responsibilities 

Our major service responsibilities are: 

• Protect life and property through an effective 
partnership with the public and to address the needs 
and concerns of citizen customers. 

• Operation of a uniformed patrol force responsible 
for routine investigations and the general maintenance 
of law and order. 

• Operation of an Investigations Bureau divided Into 
specialty sections investigating crimes and disorder 
against persons and property, vice or street crimes, 
domestic violence, prosecution, motor vehicle offenses, 
problem oriented policing and maintenance of evidence. 

• Prevention and control of juvenile delinquency 
through a juvenile officer, prosecutor, court diversion 
coordinator, School Resource Officers, affiliation with 
Bridging the Gaps Coalition and coordination of 
community agencies interested in crime prevention. 

• Operation of a centralized communications center 
within the PD that is staffed 24 hours per day specializing 
in dispatching calls for service for Police, Fire and EMS. 

Our philosophy of community policing is accomplished by 
community engagement through many different programs the 
department has implemented. Examples include the 
Rochester United Neighborhoods, National Night Out, DARE, 
POP Officer, SRO's, and website and social media pages. All of 
these programs are designed to build partnerships that 
strengthen relationships and build trust within the 
community. 

Our Compstat process and DDACTS (data driven analysis to 
crime and traffic safety) involves the scientific analysis of crime 
data by officers and the crime analyst to direct our resources 
to crime and disorder hot spots within the six wards of our 
City. 
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4.9 Rochester Police Department (continued ... ) 

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES and FISCAL VEAR ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
• We held another successful joint Citizens Police 

Academy with the City of Somersworth. 

Through our goals committee consisting of Department members, 
community leaders and civilians, we set our goals and objectives for 
the year. 

GOAL #1: Continue development of positive relationships 
with the community through increased police 
presence and public education. 

GOAL #2: Partner with organizations and other city 
departments to develop a positive image of 
Rochester. 

GOAL #3: Research and Implement ways to decrease the 
Police Department's impact on taxpayers 

The following highlights some of our progress on these goals. 

• The Rochester United Neighborhoods Ward based program is 
designed so that community or ward meetings are community 
driven with assistance from police and other city departments. 
Valuable information is shared with residents regarding their 
community including crime prevention data and ways to prevent 
being a crime victim. These meetings promote the use of on Ii n e 
reporting and accessing the city website for various information 
and services. 

• Residents worked with the City on addressing an updated 
fireworks ordinance. Helpful information is continuously posted to 
our social media sites, including our website, facebook, 
pinterest, twitter and our new Police App available in the Play 
Store, as well as through the Department newsletter. 

• Foot patrols, bicycle patrols and the use of the unmarked cruiser 
in the downtown were used for education and enforcement of 
bicycle laws, pedestrian laws, skateboarding and crosswalk 
violations. These are areas that the business community and 
pedestrians have indicated are important to them. 

• Work has been done in the DDACTS (data driven analysis to crime 
and traffic safety) area for prevention and enforcement. We have 
incorporated the bike patrol into the DDACTS area. There has 
been an overall decline in calls for service in the downtown. 

• We instituted a program with the St. Charles Children's Home to 
have breakfast once per week with the children. This has been 
received very well by the children. 

• The POP Officer worked on research relative to 
panhandling and ultimately a new ordinance was 
adopted by the Council. Panhandlers were counseled 
on obtaining available services and educated on the 
new ordinance. There has been a decrease in 
these types of complaints. 

• Patrol officers maintained presence at all local schools 
after the tragic shooting in Newtown, Connecticut to 
provide parents, students and teachers with 
assurance we are concerned for their safety. 

• We worked with the Center for Dyslexic Children 
following the Newtown, Connecticut tragedy on 
safety concerns and gave immediate ideas for 
change via CPTED (crime prevention through 
environmental design) and are doing ongoing work 
reviewing their emergency plan. 

• The POP Officer represents the Department at 
community events around the city including home 
safety and community days, Teen Night, October 
Festival, the Senior Health and Wellness Expo, and 
she took the initiative to coordinate and organize the 
city's first Wings and Wheels community event. She 
serves on community boards such as Rochester Main 
Street, Rochester Crime line and the Salvation Army. 
Goodwill is built through these positive police 
interactions and increases positive perception of the 
Department and the City. The POP is now on the 
board for the Homeless Center of Strafford County, 
and will join the Rotary Board in the summer of 2013. 

• The POP Officer continues to work closely with the 
Code and Building Safety Department on violations of 
the ordinances related to quality of life. She has been 
working with Metrocast to create 30 minute 
information segments to be aired monthly on 
community related topics. 

• Sgt. Emerson organized a team of Police Department 
members to participate in community clean up day. 

• The Department continues to be involved with 
Bridging the Gaps and Teen Night. 



• The Department worked with a company on a website for retailers to 

identify shoplifters and organized retail crime. 

• Once again our School Resource Officers and Off. Balint worked with 
Bridging the Gaps and participated in a mock DWI crash at the high 
school. This was in cooperation with the Fire, EMS, funeral home, local 

judges and the county attorney. Beginning with a crash through a trial and 
sentencing it is important for the students to get a visual for what really 

happens in a crash involving alcohol. We hope it will cause students to 
make good choices. 
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• The Dept. through Lt. Gould and Det. Gahan embarked on an innovative truancy delinquency program under the 

compulsory attendance law. This program looks at students with chronic absences. The school already works with these 
students through the truancy officer, parent meetings and principals. Offenders are summonsed to court, where they can 

pay a fine, or pay to take part in a diversion program with the parents, student and the police. The goal is to get the 
students in the classroom where they belong and to get an education to compete in today's world. This is an innovative, 

collaborative effort with the school to address an issue that has been a problem for both agencies. 

• The Department conducted a survey to measure our service in meeting the needs of the community. It is important 
for the Department to know what the community expects from us. Therefore we looked for honest feed back on the 

service we provide and what the public thinks. We take our motto seriously. We can think all day long that we are doing a 
good job, but others may disagree. The survey was anonymous and available on our website. We also used an intern to 

make cold calls. This will help us develop a baseline on our level of service and how we can improve. The survey gave us 
the following results. 

PERFORMANCE 

73.2% rated the overall 
performance above average 

■ Poor - 1 

■ 2 

3 

■ 4 

■ Very Good -S 

IMAGE 

67.8% rated the overall 
image above average 

The survey showed people wished 
us to put more emphasis on: 

Drug Enforcement 26.6% 
Neighborhood Patrots 31.2% 
Crime Prevention/Education 7.5% 
Traffic Enforcement 8.1% 
Downtown Foot Patrols 15% 
Criminal Investigations 6.9% 
Other 4.6% 

When asked how we could improve this rating 67 people responded with an overwhelming variation of improved response 

times, more officers, more neighborhood patrols, better response to lower priority calls. We concluded asking what the public 
would like to see us put more emphasis which mirrored the above results, with addressing drugs and neighborhood patrols being 

the most common response. This reinforces the DDACTS Programs focus and shows how our efforts with traffic enforcement and 
patrols of the neighborhoods overlap. It is a great way to show the job we are doing now and where we need to improve moving 
forward. 
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4.9 Rochester Police Department (continued ... ) 

Commentary 

Our fiscal year accomplishments are a direct credit to 
the Police Commission and staff. We also recognize 
the City Council for the funding and support of various 
projects and programs. Paramount to our success is 
the support of the citizen's of the City. 

Officers and staff have responded well to the 
demands of the profession. I publicly thank the men 
and women of the Rochester Police Department both 
sworn and civilian for the hard work and dedication 
over the past year. I am fortunate to lead an agency 
that remains on the cutting edge of progressive law 
enforcement. 

It is our vision that the Rochester Police Department 
will continue to be a cornerstone of progress and a 
model police department in service to our citizens, 
constantly improving the quality of services that we 
render. We are committed to offering the best service 

to the residents and visitors to the City, 
which can be accomplished through our 
community policing programs, 
advanced technology and input from 
our citizens. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Chief Michael J. Allen 
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4.10 Public Works Department 

The Public Works Department is committed to 
providing quality of life to approximately 31,000 
City residents. The goal of maintaining and 
improving the safety, health, and welfare of 
residents is accomplished by providing clean 
water, removing and t reating sewage, maintaining 
roads, sidewalks, public buildings, pools, parks 
and cemeteries. This department's employees 
are dedicated to meeting the day to day 
challenges and finding solutions to complex 
problems arising as the City grows. 

The Department of Public Works supports the 
Main Street Organization in the downtown area 
with many projects, committees and festivals, and 
also assists the Chamber of Commerce with t he 
planning of the Hol'day Parade. 

The 2012-2013 winter season started out slow but 
reached significant levels of snow fall. We had 38 
treatable events and a total snow fall of 99.5 
inches for the season. 

ITPersonnel summary: 

Peter C. Nourse, P~ became the Djrector of the 
Department of Public Works. With 'support from 
the Cit Manager and the City Council, Mr. Nourse 
has taken strides to significantly improve the level 
of service and the commitment to moving 
projects forward in the department. Alternative 
departmental organizational structures are being 
considered. The staff continues to contribute 
above and beyond expected levels. Mr. Nourse 
has taken great care to fill vacated positions with 
the right people as they occur. 

The staffing in this multi divisional department is 
ever changing as staff retires and promotions 
happen internally. Mr. Sidney Bean, a mechanic 
from our Highway & Fleet maintenance division, 
retired in November 2012 after 25 years of 
service. The 2nd Construction Engineer position 
was reinstated and Gretchen Young, PE, was hired 
to fi ll that position. Other new hires are Joshua 
Laurent as Meter Technician, George Steele as 
Meter Reader, Christopher McKinney as Mechanic, 
and Fred Hussey as maintenance laborer. Timothy 
Green and Zeke Lapierre were pr0m&ted to Water 
Treatment Plant Ope ators. 

The Clity of Rochester Employee of 
the ~ear was the Dl?W Municipal 
Sr vioe Supervisor Ken Henderson. 

Ken 1as worked for the City for 
twenty-nine years. He started out 
as a lclborer and has worked his way 
lip through many positions to 
become one of the most 
instrumental leaders of our 
department. 
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4.10 Public Works Department (continued ... ) 

The Public Works General Fund Capital Improvement Projects 
initiated or completed during the Fiscal Year include: 

• Linden, Furbush, Fern, King, Farrington, Common and 
Grant Streets were paved as part of the FY13 Paving 
appropriation. DPW staff worked with Brox Industries to 
re-design and pave the parking areas around the 
Common. 

• Concrete Sidewalks were replaced by Northeast Earth 
Mechanics on North Main Street from Strafford Square 
to Park Street. 

• The following streets had in-house pavement 
improvements: Pickering Road, Lowell Street, Blackwater 
Road, Brochu Court, Harrison Street and Morton Avenue. 

• The Pine Street Reconstruction project was completed 
this fiscal year. All water, sewer, drainage, roadway and 
sidewalks systems were replaced by Northeast Earth 
Mechanics. Funds from the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act were used to complete portions. 

• Salmon Falls Road from Highland Street to Portland 
Street was reconstructed. SUR Construction Company 

replaced all water, sewer, drainage, roadway and 
sidewalk systems. 

• Brock Street Reconstruction began in this fiscal year with 
the majority of the water and sewer structures being 
replaced. SUR Construction will continue working to 
complete this project into the next fiscal year. 

• The Department of Public Works replaced vehicles in all 
divisions which can be split across several budgets based 
on shared use. The vehicles replaced were as follows; 

Highway Division - Two new 6-Wheeled Dump Trucks 
(#10 & #20), two new 1 Ton dump trucks (#323 & #24), 
three new snow blowers were purchased for sidewalk 
tractors, the much needed aerial lift bucket truck was 
replaced(#22) and a wood chipper was purchased. 

Utilities Division - One new 2-wheel drive 1 Ton utility 
box truck (#48), One new heavy duty dump body truck 
(#35) and a utility van (#51) were purchased. 

Water Treatment Plant - New Pickup truck (#33) 

Building & Grounds - New Pickup Truck (#102) 

DPW staff reviewed and oversaw privately financed 
construction of several streets during the year. During 
this fiscal year, Channing's Lane Subdivision surety 
account was held and the City took appropriate actions 
to complete the street with the amount of surety held. 
The street was accepted as a City Street and all but the 
final coat of pavement was done at the end of the fiscal 
year. 

Additionally, the department reviewed and issued 29 
driveway permits, 88 excavation permits and 28 storm 
water permits. 

The City received a draft MS4 Storm Water Permit 
issued by the EPA in February 2013. In reference to this 
permit the City joined a coalition of twenty 
communities to provide public comment on the 
permit. Legal council was obtained to represent the 
coalition to determine costs necessary for permit 
compliance, to provide comments, to review 
supporting science, and to expand the group. The 
comments are scheduled for submission in August 
2013. 

The Department managed the regional household 
hazardous waste collection effort. This annual 
collection event hosts 10 communities and is funded in 
part by a grant from NHDES. 



The actual household hazardous waste collection took 
place on May 4, 2013, at a site provided by Waste 
Management of New Hampshire and was staffed by a 
collaboration of Rochester DPW Office personnel and 
WM field representatives. Approximately 280 vehicles 
dropped off waste at the event. 

The Christmas tree for our downtown holiday display 
was donated by Mr. & Mrs. Santiago of 1 Mandella 
Drive. Urban Tree Service and SUR Construction 
donated their time and equipment to assist DPW staff to 
erect the tree downtown. The art students from the 
Rochester Elementary Schools, St. Elizabeth Seton 
Academy and Jack & Jill Kindergarten made the laminate 
decorations that were strung by Monarch School of New 
England students. 

HIGHWAY/FLEET DIVISION 

The Highway/Fleet Division is dedicated to ensuring the 
City's streets are maintained in the best possible 
condition, within funding constraints. Responsibilities 
include maintaining all paved and gravel roads, 
sidewalks, pavement markings, traffic signals, street 
trees, and drainage facilities, as well as insuring that the 
public works fleet of vehicles and equipment are in 
good running order. 

Highway crews also shimmed several streets. In 
support of the pavement rehabilitation program, crews 
redefined ditch lines and graveled shoulders on several 
streets. Numerous pavement cuts were repaired. 
Crews installed culverts at various locations. 
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The Buildings and Grounds Division has the responsibility for 
maintenance on thirteen city bui ldings, several parks, and four 
pools. This staff works hard to keep them all in the best 
condition poss.ible. The adopt-a-spot program enjoyed another 
successful year with 38 spots adopted and maintained by 
individuals, businesses and civic organizations. The Community 
Center continues to house the NH Department of Health and 
Human Service, the Rochester School Department 
Administrative Services, the Alternative School and the Hope 
School as well as many other private and non-profit agencies. 
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4.10 Public Works Department {continued ... ) 
WATER DIVISION 

The staff at the Water Treatment Facility continues to comply 
with the State and Federal Drinking Water standards. This is 
accomplished through teamwork and a dedicated staff. We 
provide a quality product and service and seek complete 
customer satisfaction. The Water Treatment Facility staff 
listens, acknowledges, responds, takes action, reports and 
follows up with all aspects of operations. The Water 
Treatment Facility produces high quality drinking water. The 
Water Treatment Facility at 64 Strafford Road treated and 
filtered approximately 737 million gallons of water and the 
new well at 157 Farmington Road produced approximately 23 
million gallons. 

Capital Projects: 

• Rochester Hill Road Water Tank Restoration: City staff 
worked with Hoyle & Tanner engineers to facilitate the 
repairs to Rochester Hill Tank. The project is scheduled 
to finish late summer of 2013. 

• The Water line extension on Little Falls Bridge Road was 
completed this year. The remaining drainage work and 
pavement improvements will finish next fiscal year. 

• Meter Replacements - Meter and Backflow Services 
(MBS) began the process of changing out the last 1300 
older style Neptune meters. This project is also 
scheduled to be completed over the winter of 2013. 

Distribution: 

The water distribution staff completed the spring and fall 
flushing program and continues to maintain the water lines, 
gates and meters, while handling each emergent situation 
regarding leaks and repairs due to system age, weather and 
construction work in the area. 

WASTEWATER DIVISION 

The Department of Public Works Wastewater Treatment 
Facility is dedicated to the treatment of wastewater that 
flows into the facil ity from Rochester, East Rochester and 
Ganie and to deliver a clean, clear and safe effluent into the 
Cocheco River. 

The present day advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility is 
designed to treat an average flow of 5.0 million gallons per 
day (mgd) with a peak design flow of 16 million gallons per 
day (mgd). The City operates under the strict effluent 

limitations and monitoring requirements contained in the 
July 23, 1997 National Pollution Discharge Elimination 
System (NPDES) Permit issued by the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

Capital Projects: 

• We continue to work with and support the efforts of 
the Cocheco River Coalition by performing E-Coli 
testing and reporting data. 

• Design for the upgrades at the New Rt. 125 Pump 
Station as well as the Weeping Willow, Sawyer Ave, 
Kirsten and Autumn Street stations are completed 
with construction to follow in the FY14 budget year. 

• Completed HVAC Controller Upgrade and 
Replacement. 

• Pump Stations at Sterling Drive and Innovation Drive 
were completed by developers and accepted by the 
City. 

• Wastewater lagoon repairs were completed as 
required by NH Dam Bureau. 

• In-line final effluent dissolved oxygen analyzer/ probe 
and in-line transmittance analyzer/probe were 
replaced. 

• Headworks Upgrade project was completed on time 
and on budget. Brown and Caldwell Engineers were 
the design engineers. 

• In stream nutrient testing as required by NHDES & 
EPA was begun. 

• The in-house EPA DMR QC blind samples for 
laboratory analysis testing were completed. The 
facility passed all testing parameters. 

The EPA and NHDES have notified the City that they have 
identified Rochester's NP DES permit as a priority for permit 
re-issuance as soon as the State completes its Waste Load 
Allocation Study for the Great Bay Estuary Watershed and 
develops Water Quality Standards for total nitrogen and 
total phosphorous. The City is working with control 
authorities and other municipalities, as part of the 
Southeast Watershed Alliance, on issues involving 
wastewater, storm water and land use management in the 
Great Bay Estuary Watershed area. The City has a peer 
review document with NH DES. 



The sewer division continues to work in coordination with other 
divisions and consultants on many projects throughout the City to 
include wastewater treatment, collection systems, storm water and 
the industrial pretreatment program. The employees in this division 
have done an outstanding job this year on increasing their knowledge 
and certification levels in both treatment and collection systems. The 
facility hosted a Fat, Oil and Grease training course that was 
sponsored by NHDES. 

The Wastewater Treatment Facility continues to operate at or below 
projected O&M costs for power, chemicals, equipment maintenance 
and plant staffing levels. The staff continues to put forth an 
outstanding effort and dedication to achieve permit compliance 
through operational control, 
pre ve nta ti ve / co r re cti ve 
maintenance, teamwork and 
training. The Wastewater 
Treatment Facility treated 
1,064,721,000 gallons of 
wastewater. The average daily 
effluent flow was 2,917,044 
gallons. The facility continues 
to produce a high quality 
effluent and is running 
extremely well as we have 
removed 367,245 pounds of 
CBOD (97.4%) and 786,894 
pounds of TSS (96.8%). We 
have also received and 
treated 1,689,250 gallons of 
septage. 
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4.11 Recreation Arena & Youth Services Department 

The Vision Statement for Rochester Recreation and Arena is 
as follows: The Department of Recreation and Arena is 
committed to providing recreational and community 
programming aimed at enriching the quality of life in 
Rochester. We strive to maintain meaningful connections 
with the community by providing programs~ services and 
facilities that foster a healthy community. 

The YMCA vacated the front part of the Arena facility early in 
the fall. Planning started immediately for extensive building 
renovations. In the summer of 2013, the four room structure 
against the back wall consisting of warm room, pro shop, 
conference room and office was demolished. The bleachers 
were removed and the entire back wall was replaced. 
Custom bleachers will be ordered for installation in spring 
2014. Temporary bleachers have been installed for the 
2013-14 season. 

The tennis court renovations began in October when the old 
footings and posts were removed and replaced and the 
cracks were filled. The courts were closed for the winter. 
New windscreens, posts and nets were installed prior to the 
high school spring tennis season. The project was finished in 
June when a special membrane was applied to the court 
surface and touch up painting was done. 

The sport of disc golf was introduced to the department last 
fall by a committed group of players. The establishment of an 
18 hole disc golf course at Squamanagonic Recreation Area 
was supported by the Recreation Commission and the City 
Council. Work on the course was begun by volunteers from 
Granite Disc Golf in June. 

New programs included three volleyball programs: Fall Youth 
Volleyball followed up by early summer High School Beach 

- - - ~ 

- .-

- - , ... ~ ~ ~a 4:- '.---

Volleyball League and Rec Youth Volleyball League. A total of 
151 youth participated. 

Two new programs geared to seniors were provided at no 
charge: Senior Indoor Tennis and Painting Harmony. Other 
new programs/events included Parent Child Dance, Easter 
Egg Hunt, High School Coed and 30+ Adult Basketball League 
and Express Yourself Art Class. The new programs in 2012-13 
served 918 participants. 

The Hershey Track and Field team numbers increased by 62% 
over the previous year. Two members qualified for the 
national meet in Hershey Park, PA where they earned 4th and 
6th places in the long jump in their age groups. 



SENIOR TE 
URSDAYS 1 
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Teen Night, a collaborative program with 
Rochester Recreation, Rochester Police 
Department and Juvenile Court Diversion 
Program and Bridging the Gaps, continued 
for the third year. Attendance skyrocketed 
with a total of 2266 youth in attendance, a 
57% hike over the previous year. With the 
increased attendance numbers, more 
space at the Community Center was 
allocated for the event, including 

Conference Room 1 and the Community Room. The 
Rochester business community continues to support this 
program by providing food or funds to feed the crowd. 
Juvenile crime statistics have shown a decrease. 
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4.12 Superintendent of Schools 
To the School Board and Citizens of Rochester: 
The Rochester School Department works everyday to reach our mission of ensuring quality educational experiences for all 
students. This aspiration for high quality learning led us to undertake a monumental shift in how we teach, assess and grade 
our students K - 12. Over the past two years and currently, our school community is experiencing both the benefits and 
challenges that come with embarking on such a significant change in how we educate our students. This change although 
difficult at times has caused us to be reflective of all of our educational practices and forced us to define our philosophy for 
assessing and grading students. The Rochester School District Assessment and Grading Philosophy Statement adopted by the 
Rochester School Board in March 2013 defines this for each level and provides a unifying framework for our district. It is our 
hope that these quality experiences develop engaged and passionate learners K-12. Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment, 
Accountability and functional and safe Facilities are requisite ingredients in pursuit of engaging our learners and elevating the 
educational outcomes. over the past year, the entire school community has been engaged in efforts in all of these areas. 
Below are highlights of our accomplishments. 

Facilities 
Ensuring that students have safe and appropriate learning 
environments continues to be a high priority. In 2013, a Joint 
Building Committee was established for the purpose of 
reinvigorating the outdated open concept East Rochester 
School. As a result of these efforts a 13.1 million dollar 
renovation is in development with plans for the new facili ty 
to be open in September 2015. Throughout the 2012 - 2013 
school year, each school was outfitted with controlled access 
systems. In addition, during the summer 2013, 
improvements were made to Nancy l oud School, Maple 
Street Magnet School, Ganie School and Rochester Middle 
School. The district is currently preparing for significant 
safety upgrades to Spaulding High School. 

Curriculum, Instruction and Assessment 
While the cause and effect at the physical level described 
above are perhaps easier to visualize and quantify, the 
preponderance of effort and impact lies at the instructional 
level. The Rochester School Department has adopted a 
competency-based learning model for students in grades K -
12. This means that student learning is driven by clear 
learning targets (competencies) that students are expected 
to master by the end of each grade-level/course. In addition, 
students receive feedback on their habits of engaged 
learners. These habit s are the essential personal and 
interpersonal skills t hat are not only necessary for a 
successful educational experience, but are essential for 
lifelong skills. 

The high school level implemented this model in 2011-2012. 
During the 2012 - 2013 school year, planning for this 
transition in learning took place at the K - 8 levels and the full 
implementation began w ith the opening of the 2013 - 2014 
school year. This effort has taken considerable collaboration 
and efforts from all members of our educational team. 

Teachers have been working tirelessly to develop common 
summative assessments, w hich are used to measure a student's 
level of achievement for each competency. These assessments 
provide for consistency in learning experiences from classroom 
to classroom and school to school. 

We recognize the importance of sharing this change with 
parents and the greater community. To that end, we hosted a 
number of parent forums throughout last year and continue to 
engage families in discussions about their children's learning and 
progress. 

The district has entered the third year of implementation of our 
St udent Engagement & Learning Plan. This Plan focuses on 
having consistent instructional and classroom management 
strategies in place K -12. These identified strategies have been 
proven to impact student learning and behavior. In addition, the 
strategies support a common language for all educators, which 
helps to increase our ability to collaborate and share effective 
instructional practices. 

Research supports and we know that ear ly education has a 
considerable impact on student learning. In 2012 - 2013, the 
district through partnerships w ith Head Start, Rochester 
Childcare Center and Storybook Hollow opened up more 
opportunities for the three and four year olds in the City to 
participate in an established learning environment and begin 
building their essential foundation for learning. These 
partnerships continue today with the hopes of expanding more 
opportunities for our early learners and their parents. 

Today's students are considered to be "digital natives", i.e., they 
were born into digital technology and it is part of their lives and 
needs to be part of their learning experiences. Much effort was 
expended last year to get a projector and interactive whiteboard 
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installed in each classroom. In an effort to have technology at goals. The May 2013 elementary level results were at or above 
the fingertips of our learners, the district has established 12 grade-level by 76 percent in reading and 78 percent in 
classrooms that utilize a one-to-one iPad student to device mathematics . 
ratio. The tec1chers and st udents involved in this initiative are 
helping to lead the way on how technology can be used 
effectively to impact student learning. 

Accountability 
The district continues to set high standards for learning and 
regularly evaluates where we are in meeting these standards. 
Annually, each school in the district reports to the Instruction 
Committee the progress being made towards meeting t he 
district's 90% Reading & Mathematics Goals, which is 
measured through the Northwest Evaluation Association -
Measures of Academic Progress in Reading and Mathematics. 
School level reports are available on the district's website. In 
addition, the Superintendent reports out bi-annually to the 
Rochester School Board district level results in reaching these 

Through careful analysis of our data, we know that "summer 
slide" is a concern . Our historical data shows that our district 
has a trend toward increasing where we end the school year, 
however, at the start of each school year, our students fall back 
to a similar starting point, we define this as "summer slide''. In 
an effort to reduce this annual regression, we implemented My 
Learning ROCKS! for students in grades K- 8 this past summer. 
My Learning ROCKS! provides all students wit h an online 
teacher and activities. The lessons are designed to keep the 
students' minds and skills current throughout the summer 
months, so that they can start the new school year primed and 
ready for learning. This initiative is in its infancy, however, it 
shows promise and we hope to increase the use next summer, 
so that we have more significant results to report next autumn. 



076 CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

4.12 Superintendent of Schools (continued ... ) 

SCHOOL BOARD MEMBERSHIP AND STAFFING 
ROCHESTER SCHOOL DEPARTMENT 

I 

July 1, 2012 to January 1, 2013 to 
December 31, 2012 June 30, 2013 

Seat Member Seat Member 

Ward 1 Laurie Beaulieu Ward 1 Laurie Beaulieu* 
Audrey Stevens Jake Collins** 

Audrey Stevens 

Ward2 Daniel Harkinson Ward 2 Daniel Harkinson 
Caroline Mccarley caroline Mccarley 

Ward3 Julie Brown Ward3 Julie Brown I 

Matthew Pappas Matthew Pappas 

Ward4 Anthony Pastelis Ward4 Anthony Pastelis I 

Susan O'Connor Susan O'Connor 

WardS Karen Stokes Ward 5 Karen Stokes 
Paul lynch Paul lynch 

Ward6 James Gray Ward6 James Gray 
Robert Watson Robert Watson 

At-Large Anne Grassie At-Large Anne Grassie 

*resigned 2/14/13 
• • sworn in 4/2/13 
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STANDING COMMITTEES 

July 1, 2012 to 
December 31, 2012 

Caroline Mccarley, Chair 
Anthony Pastelis, Vice-Chair 
James Gray 
Matthew Pappas 
Audrey Stevens 

Daniel Harkinson, Chair 
Julie Brown, Vice-Chair 
Rotating Third Member 

Robert Watson, Chair 
Anne Grassie, Vice-Chair 
Julie Brown 
James Gray 
Daniel Harkinson 
Paul Lynch 
Caroline Mccarley 
Anthony Pastelis 
Audrey Stevens 

Anne Grassie, Chair 
Daniel Harkinson, Vice-Chair 
Laurie Beaulieu 
Susan O'Connor 
Anthony Pastelis 

Audrey Stevens, Chair 
Paul lynch, Vice-Chair 
Anne Grassie 
Susan O'Connor 
Karen Stokes 

Anthony Pastelis, Chair 
James Gray, Vice-Chair 
Daniel Harkinson 
Susan O'Connor 
Matthew Pappas 

BUILDING 

DISCIPLINE 

FINANCE 

INSTRUCTION 

PERSONNEL 

POLICY 

Julie Brown, Chair 
James Gray, Vice-Chair 
Laurie Beaulieu 

SPECIAL SERVICES 

Anne Grassie 
Karen Stokes 

January 1, 2013 to 
June 30, 2013 

Caroline Mccarley, Chair 
Anthony Pastelis, Vice-Chair 
James Gray 
Matthew Pappas 
Audrey Stevens 

Daniel Harkinson, Chair 
Julie Brown, Vice-Chair 
Rotating Third Member 

Robert Watson, Chair 
Anne Grassie, Vice-Chair 
Julie Brown 
James Gray 
Daniel Harkinson 
Paul Lynch 
Caroline Mccarley 
Anthony Pastelis 
Audrey Stevens 

Anne Grassie, Chair 
Daniel Harkinson, Vice-Chair 
Laurie Beaulieu/Jake Collins 
Susan O'Connor 
Anthony Pastelis 

Audrey Stevens, Chair 
Paul lynch, Vice-Chair 
Anne Grassie 
Susan O'Connor 
Karen Stokes 

Anthony Pastelis, Chair 
James Gray, Vice-Chair 
Daniel Harkinson 
Susan O'Connor 
Matthew Pappas 

Julie Brown, Chair 
James Gray, Vice-Chair 
Laurie Beaulieu/Jake Collins 
Anne Grassie 
Karen Stokes 
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4.12 Superintendent of Schools (continued ... ) 

C£NTRAl OFFICE ADIYIINIS,RA,ORS 
/Ylichael l· l-lopkins, Superintendent of Schools 
/Ylary /Yloriarty, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 
linda Casey, Business Administrator 
Christiane Allison, Director of Pupil Services 
l-leidi Zollman, Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment Coord· 
£rica Stofanak, Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment Coord· 
Stephen leClair, 17tle I Director 
David Yasenchock, Chief 1echnology Coordinator 
Richard Bickford, Facilities /Ylanaqer 

PRINCIPAlS 
Robert Seaward, Spauldinq l-liqh School 
Valerie /YlcKenney, Rochester /Yliddle School 
Kathy Dubois, Bud Carlson Academy (Director) 
Katherine Crosby, Chamberlain Street School 
Coby 1roidl, £ast Rochester School 
Gwen Rhodes, Gonic School 
Robin Brown, /Ylaple Street School 
/Ylichelle /Ylcfllister, IYlcClelland School 
/Ylaureen Oakman, Nancy loud School (1eachinq Principal) 
Nancy Booth, School Street School (Teachinq Principal) 
Christopher Foley, William Allen School 



fJSSISTfJNT PRINCIPfJL-S 
David Robbins, RW Creteau Technology Director 
David Bennett, Spaulding High School 
Paul Newall, Spaulding High School 
Ryan l<aplan, Spaulding High School 
ll1elissa Azzaro, Spaulding High School 
l-orne l-ucas, Rochester ll1iddle School 
ll1ark Dangora, Rochester ll1iddle School 
Jennifer Hersom, Chamberlain Street School 
Susan "Candy" Bailey, East Rochester School 
Erin ll1ahoney, ll1cClelland School 
l<elly Borisch, William fJl/en School 

SCHOOL- NURSES 
Nancy Graham, RN (Head Nurse) 
Danielle Baker, RN 
Christine Ballentine, RN 
Robin Hutchins, RN 
Elaine Paula, RN 
Jennifer Saucier, RN 
Shaune Shields, RN 
Tracey 11bbetts, RN 
Bethann Welch, RN 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 079 



08 CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

4.13 Tax Collector's Office 

Revenues collected by the Tax Collector's Office: 

Total Warrant 
Timber & Gravel Tax 
Int Delinquent Taxes 
Chg Tax for CU Removal 
Motor Vehicle Permits 
Misc-RR Natl Bk Tax 
Water 
Sewer 

50,952,912.00 
13,484.05 
643,729.71 
74,550.00 
3,769,340.95 
0.00 
3,470,969.18 
4,514,804.63 

We also process auto registration renewals online 
and in 2012-2013 we processed approximately 2,576 
online renewals. 

We collected on approximately 29,338 water and 
sewer bills. 

NE 

The responsibilities of the Tax Collector's office consist of the 
collections of property taxes, water & sewer utility bills, current 
use taxes, timber, gravel & yield taxes, and other department 
collections. The Tax Collector's office executes property tax 
liens on delinquent taxes, files tax lien redemptions and 
notifies all property owners & mortgagees for all properties 
that will be going to tax lien & tax deed. In 2012 we liened 
approximately 864 properties totaling $1,856,867.08. 

The Tax Collector's office also processes auto registrations. In 
2012-2013 we processed approximately 34,626 registrations 
totaling $3,769,340.95. We collected $96,152.00.00 in 
Municipal Agent fees. 

The Tax Collector's Office consisted of three full time 
employees and three part time employees. Our main goal in 
the office is to provide courteous and efficient service to all. 

The Tax Collector's office staff consisted of Doreen Jones-Tax 
Collector, Karen Paquette-Deputy Tax Collector, Virginia 
Gray-Clerk Typist 11, Pat Cox-Clerk Typist, Pauline Roseberry 
- Clerk Typist, and Debbie Millspaugh, Clerk Typist. I would like 
to thank all my staff for all their hard work & dedication 
through out the year. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Doreen Jones, CTC 
Tax Collector 

r 

HAMPSHIRE 

-
LIVE FREE OR DIE r 



4.14 Welfare Office 

In compliance with RSA 165, the welfare department for the 
City of Rochester administers local emergency assistance for 
poor individuals unable to support themselves and require 
assistance in a financial crisis. It is our mission to meet our 
legal obligations in the most professional, thoughtful and cost 
effective manner possible. 

The City of Rochester budgeted $199,000 for direct assistance 
for fiscal year 2012-2013. A total of $119,825.39 was 
expended. City Welfare formally assisted 224 families and 157 
single households. 

Rochester City Welfare staff continues to take pride in our 
pro-active case management approach that has resulted in 
increased self-sufficiency for clients, at a lower cost to city 
taxpayers. 

The City of Rochester continues to be a desirable place to live, 
work and raise a family for many socioeconomic statuses (SES,) 
including the lower income status, who are more likely to seek 
financial assistance programs. Lower average market rental 
rates compared to more southern seacoast area communities, 
access to public transportation and closer proximity to 
employment compared to communities north of Rochester 
continue to retain current Rochester residents and are 
desirable to others willing to relocate, including people 
challenged by their financial situation. 

As has been true for the last several years, the waiting lists for 
subsidized housing remained at 3-5 years. Disability decisions 
at the state and federal level continued to average about 1 
year. Budgetary cuts to programs through New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services have resulted in an 
elimination of some forms of family cash and emergency 
assistance. The responsibility and cost has shifted to municipal 
welfare. 

~ 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 81 

City Welfare works closely with local homeless shelters, 
including the Homeless Center for Strafford County located 
in Ganie, to find appropriate emergency housing for 
residents in need. Homeless shelters not only shelter 
residents from the elements, but often provide needed 
support and case management to ensure a more long term 
solution to their current crisis. This is a great benefit to those 
in need of shelter and a cost savings to city taxpayers. 

City Welfare continued collaborations with many 
government, non-profit agencies and local businesses, 
including, but not limited to, the New Hampshire 
Department of Health and Human Services, Strafford County 
Community Action and Rochester Share Fund. 

City Welfare continued an annual Toy Bank collaboration 
with the Rochester Fire Department, assisting many children 
during the holiday season, City Welfare also continued a 
Back-to-School collaboration with Grace Community Church, 
which outfitted children with new backpacks and needed 
school supplies. 

As in years prior, City Welfare received $10,000.00 from the 
McKinney Grant (HUD money). These monies are 
discretionary, and are used generally for emergency utility 
assistance, and from time to time for those individuals who 
may be categorically ineligible for General Assistance. City 
Welfare also expended $1,994.49 from the McDuffee-Chase 
trust fund for heating oil. 

A special thanks to the many Rochester residents who have 
assisted their neighbors in need during challenging 
economic times. Their belief in neighbor helping neighbor is 
testament to the spirit and goodwill of Rochester residents. 
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4.14 Welfare Office (continued ... ) 

I would like to thank the following staff for their dedicated 
service to this office: Gail Galloway, department Secretary Ill 
(31 years of service,) Social Worker, Nancy Malinowski, 
Welfare Intake Workers, Nancy Sirois and Regina Lytle. Their 
dedication through this challenging year and commitment to 
our mission has been greatly appreciated. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Todd M. Marsh 
Welfare Director 



5.1 Auditor's Report 

The firm, Vachon & Clukay has prepared the FY13 Auditor's Report 
for t he City of Rochester. 

Per City Ordinances the audit is due to Council as follows: 

11.13 Annual Report of City Receipts and Expenditures. 
The City Manager shall annually, before the last day of January, 
present the independent auditors' report, in accordance with 
section 11.15 of this ordinance, of the preceding year. 

11.15 Audit of City Accounts. 
An independent audit of all accounts of the City shall be made 
annually by certified public accountants selected by the City Council 
and experienced in municipal accounting in accordance 
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& COMPANY PC 

CE R T I F I E D PUBL I C ACCOUNTANTS 
608 ChesLnul StreeL • Manchester. New Hampshire 0310·1 

(603) 622-7070 • fax: (603) 622-11+52 • www.vachonclukay.com 

TNDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and Manager 
City of Rochester, New Hampshire 

Report on the Financial S tatements 

We have audited the accompanying financia l statements of the governmental activities; the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Rochester, New Hampshire (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statemeltls 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles general ly accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor 's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standa1·ds, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia l 
statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our aud it opinions. 
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Opinions 

ln our opin ion, the ltnancial statements reforred to above present fa irly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major 
fund, and the aggrcgnte rema ining fund information of the City of Rochester, New Hampshire, as of 
June JO, 2013, and the respective changes in financial posilion, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof" 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America. 

Other M atters 

Required SupplemenlClry information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and ana lysis, budgcta1y comparison information, and the schedule of funding 
progress for other post-employment benefits on pages i-vii and 35-38 be presented to suppk:ment the 
basic financial statement!:;. Such information, although not a part of the bas ic financial statements, is 
requ ired by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential pa rt of 
linancial reporting for pli-tcing the basic financia l statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries or management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to Olli' inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our aud it of the basic financial statements. We do not express un 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the lim ited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplement,11y lnformc11lon 

Our audit was conducted ror the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Rochester, New Hampshire's basic financiul statements. The 
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-1 33, Audits of Stales. Local Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented 
for plli-poses of'additiona l ana lysis and is not a requi red part of the bas ic financial statcn,ents. 

The schedule of expenditu res of federal awards is the responsibi lity of management and was 
derived from and relates directly 10 the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit 
of the basic financia l statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconci ling 
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
linancial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordanec with auditing stllndards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, 
the schecl11le of expenditures of federa l awards is fairly stated, in all materia l respects, in felation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

Othe r Reporting Rcq uircd by Government A udit.ing Stmulanls 

In nccordance with Government Auditing Swndards, we have also issued our report dated January 
31, 2014 on our consideration of Lhe City of Rochester, New I lampsh ire's internal control over financial 
reporting, and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
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over financial rnporting and compliance and the results of' Lhat testing, and not Lo provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Rochester, New 
I lampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compiiance. 

~~~&~Pc 
Manchester, New Hampshire 
Janual'y 31, 2014 

89 
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City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Rochester's financial performance provides an overview of the City's 
financif1I activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. Please read this analysis in conjunction with the financial 
statements prescl1tod in this report. These financial reports reprcserit more than nine years since the City of 
Rochester's implementation of tl1e new Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34). 
This report continues lo build on the statistics for a more meaningful trend and explanation of the City's finances 
and changes in financial position. for fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013, the City is complying for the fifl11 year 
with the requirements orGASB 45 for recording Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). See Note 8 of the Notes 
to ti1e Basic Finam:ial Statements for further information. 

Additionally, during the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2013, the Ci1y implemented GASB Staremenl No. 63, 
"Financinl Reporting of Deferred Outflows of l?esources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position". Under 
Statement 63, the City has segregated previously reported assets and liabil ities as deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources, respectively. This statement also identifies net position as the residual of all other 
elements presented in the statement of financial position. See the notes to the basic 11nanciaJ statements for further 
in formation. 

F'INANCIAL I-IJGIILIGHTS 

Government-wide l-lighligll ts 

• The City's total assets. of $230.9 and deferred out nows of resources of $0.5 million, exceeded total liabilities 
of $88.1 and deferred inflows of resources of $19.5 million, with a residual net position of $123.8 million. 
This amount represents the Total Net Position on Exhibit A, Statement ol'Ner Position, for both Governmental 
and Business-type Activities. The $123.8 million is reported as $112.4 million of net investment in capital 
assets, $0.8 million restricted and $10.6 mi Ilion in unrestricted funds. The unrestricted balance represents the 
portion available to be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to its citizens and creditors. 

• The City's Total Net Position (Governmental a11d Business-type Activities) on Exhibit A of $123.8 million 
represents an increase in fiscal year 2013 of $1. 7 mil lion or 1.4% over fiscal year 2012 of $122. I mi Ilion. 

• The City's Total Assets ,md Deferred Outnows of Resources on Exhibit A of $231 .4 million is a decrease of 
$2 million or minus 0.9% from fiscal 20 I 2 and Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources of $107 .6 
million is a decrease by $3.7 million or 3.3% from the prior fisca l year. 

Pund Balance Highlights 

The Fund 13alru,cc fol' all governmental funds decreased by $4.5 million to$ IO million for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2013. This amount is t11e Fund Balance of total Governmental Funds at the end of tho year on Exh ibit 
D. The General F1111d B11/a11ce increased by $115 thousand to $14 mill ion; the fund balimce for the Capital 
Pro_jects Fund decreased by $2.4 million and the Nonmajor Governmental Funds decreased by $2.2 million. 

USING THE fi'INANCIALSTATEMENTS 

This annual financial report consists of a series of financial statements (basic financial statements). The Statement of 
Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Exhibits A & B) present information about the activities of the City as 
a whole and present a long-term view of the City's finances. Pund financial statements for the Governmental Funds 
are presented in Exhibits C and D. Fund financial statements for the Proprietary Funds arc presented on Exhibits E, 
F and G. For governmental funds, these statements report how these services were financed in the short-term, as 
well as what remains for future spending. rund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail 
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most s igniflcant funds. The 
remaining fund financial statements, Pidueiary Funds, on Exhibits H and l, provide financial information about 
activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benctil of those outside of the g()vern111cnt. 
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The analysis of the City as a whole begins with Exhibit /\ (Statement of' Net lJosition). One of the most important 
questions asked about the City's finances is: "Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's 
financial activities?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement or Activities report information about the City 
as a whole and about its activities in a wny that helps answer this question. Thl!se statements include all assets, 
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources using the ac1.:ruc1I basis of acc:ounling, 
which is similr1r to the m;counting method used by most privr1te-sector companies. A II of the current year's revenues 
and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is r·eceived or paid, 

These two statements report the City's net position and changes in financia l position. The City's net posilion can be 
thought of as the tl iffcrcncc between assets plus dererrcd out nows of' resm1rccs less liabi lid cs plus deferred inflows 
of' resources, as one way to measure the City's linancial health, or jinom:ial pw;ifion. Over time, increases or 
llec.:re(lses in the City':; net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
Other non-financia l factors, however, such as changes in the City's properly tax base and the ccmdition of the City's 
roads, are needed to assess the overall health of the City. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement or /\ctivities arc separated inio two kinds of activities: 

• Governmental Activities - Most of the City's basic services ,ll'e reported hero, including the police, fire, 
public works, parks and recreation, And gene1ud] administration. Property laxes, frunchisc fees, and state and 
federal grnnts finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type Acti vitics - The City charges a foe to customers to help it cover al I or most or the cost of 
certain services the City provides. The Clty's Water, Sewer, and Arena Funds are reported here. 

Reporting on the City's Funds 

rund financial statements provide detailed inrormalion about the most significant funds • not the City as a whole. 
Major funds are reported separately in ~he fund financial statements. Some fl1nds are required lo be 
established by State law and by bond covenants. The City Council, however, establishes many other funds to help it 
conrrol and manage money for particu lar purposes, (e.g. capital improvements, school food service programs, 
Community Center operations, and other business-type activities) or to show that ii is meeting legal responsibilities 
for using certain taxes, grants, and other money (e.g. grants received fron1 the state or federal government). The 
City's three fund types - governmental, proprietary andflduc:icuy- use different accounting approaches. 

• Govern mental fu ncls - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on 
how money nows into and out of those funds and the year-end balances that are available for spending. 
These funds arc reported using an accounting method called modified c?Ct·rual accounting, which measures 
cash and all otherfinancial assets that can retidily be converted lo cash. The governmental fund statements 
provide a dettiiled short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it 
provides. Governmental fund i11forrnatio11 helps deterlliinc whether there arc more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near futu re 10 finance the City's programs. The relationship (or differt:nces) 
between governmental qc:/ivilies (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of /\ctiviti1.:s) 
and governmental fz111ds is reconclled at the end of the fund financir1I statements. The City's Major 
Governmental Funds arc the General Fund and Capital Projects rund. 

• Prop rietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides. whether lo outside 
customers or to other units oflhc City, these services arc generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary 
funds are reported in the same way that' all activities are reported in the Sttitemenr of Net t'osition and the 
Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) arc the same 
as the business-type activities (Water, Sewer and Arena) reported in the government-wide statements, but 
provide more detail and additional information, such as c,-ash flows for proprietary funds. The City's Major 
Proprietary runds consist of the Water and Sewer Funds. 

ii 
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• The City as Trnstcl' 

The City is the trustee, orjiducimy of other assets that, because of ii trust arrangement, can be used only for 
the trust beneficiaries (Library Trust, School Trusts and Cemetery Trusts). All of the City's ltduciary 
activi ties are reported separately in the Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and Changes in Piduciary Net 
Position on Exhibits H ,md I. These activities are excluded from the City's other financial statements because 
the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets 
reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

THE C ITY AS A WHOLE 

The City's combined total net position is $123.8 million. Separating the net position of Governmental and Business­
type Activities, thls represents $70.6 mil lion for Governmental Activities and $53.2 million for Business-type 
Activities. 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets1 net 
Tota I assets 

Total deferred outllows of resources 

Long-term liabi lities 
Other liabilities 
Tota I liabilities 

Total deferred inflows of rcsonrces 

Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total net position 

Table l 
Net Position 
(in Millions) 

Governmental 
Activities 

ZOl3 2012 

38.3 40.5 
105.0 104.6 
143.3 145.l 

0.4 0.3 

45.5 48,4 
8.5 8.1 

54.0 56.5 

19.1 16.9 

64.5 60,0 
0.8 3.0 
SJ 9,0 

70.6 72.0 

Business-type 
Activities 

2013 2012 

7.2 
80.4 
87.6 

0.1 

33,0 
I.I 

34.1 

0.4 

47.9 

5.3 
53,2 

8.7 
79.3 
88.0 

36.4 
I. I 

37.5 

0.4 

46,0 

4.1 
50.1 

The largest po1iion of the City's net position is comprised of its net investment in capital assets. 

Total Primary 
Government 

2013 2012 

45.5 49.2 
185.4 183.9 
130.9 233.1 

0.5 0.3 

78,5 84,8 
9.6 9.2 

88.1 94.0 

19.5 17.3 

112.4 106.0 
0.8 3.0 

10.6 13.1 
123.8 122.1 

The City's 20 13- unrestricted net position of governmental activities of $5.3 million represents a decrease from the 
$9.0 mi11ion in 2012 of $3.7 million. This decrease represents a decrease in the amount of funds avai lable to meet 
the City's general fund obligations due largely to the cash expended on capital projects. The issuance of bonded debt 
in early 2014 wil I replace cash previously expended on capital projects. The City's ability to complete most major 
capital projects with cash on hand prior to the actuar sale of U1e bonds has been a testament of it's strong fiscal health. 
The strength of the City is also due to its fiscally conservative practices in past years. lt is incumbent on the City to 
maintain these practices in order to maintain financial strength. 

The net position of the City's business-type activities represent investments in water and sewer plants, the related 
infrastructure, and the arena building/equipment.. Unrestricted net position of the business-type activities 
("enterprise" funds), however, cannot be used to fund or suppo11 other governmental activities. The City, generally, 
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can only use this net pos1t1on to finance the continuing operations of the Water, Sewer and /\rcm1 Funds. 
Unrestrictcd net position of business-1ypc uctivit ics increased in 2013 by $1.2 mi llion to $5.J million at year end, 

T he City's uvcrnll net position increasctl by $1.7 mill ion, as presented in Table 2 below, The largest expenses arc 
from Education, Public.: Sufcty. Public Works and General Government. The difference in funding between expenses 
and revenues is made up through property tuxes. 

Prog1·nm Rcvenuc.s: 
Charges for services 
Operating grants 
Capit<1 I grants und contributions 

G,mcral Revenues: 
Prnperty taxes 
Licenses !lnd permits 
Other general revenues 
Total Uevenues 

Expenses 
General government 
Pub! ic safety 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Culture and recreation 
Community development 
Community services 
Education 
Food services 
Debt Service 
I ntcrgovcrnrnenta I 
Water 
Sewer 
Arena 
Total Eicpenscs 

Excess (dcliciency) before transfers 

Transfers 

Increase (decrease) in net position 

Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

(in Millions) 

Covcrnmcntal 
Activities 

2013 2012 

4.9 
29.0 

I. I 

51.6 
4.3 
3.1 

94.0 

4.2 
12,2 

6.2 
0.4 
1.8 
2.8 
0.7 

57.7 
2.0 
1.6 

5.6 

95.2 

( 1.2) 

(0.2) 

p.4) 

iv 

2.1 

30.6 
1.2 

50.5 
4.3 
5.5 

94.2 

4.1 
12.1 
5.9 
0.4 
1.8 
0.7 
0.7 

56.1 
1.9 
J.6 
5,5 

90.8 

3.4 

3.4 

Bus iness- type 
/\ctivities 

2013 2012 

8.6 

I. 9 

0.1 

10.6 

3.5 
3.8 
0.4 

7.7 

2.9 

0.2 

3. I 

8.8 

0.2 

0.1 
9.1 

3.2 
3.9 
0.4 
7.S 

1.6 

1.6 

Total Primary 
Activities 

2013 201 2 

13.5 10.9 

29.0 30.6 

3.0 1.4 

5 l.6 50.S 
4.3 4.3 
3.2 5.6 

104.6 l 03.3 

4.2 4. 1 
12.2 12.1 
6.2 5.9 
0,4 0.4 
1.8 l.8 
2.8 0.7 

0.7 0.7 
57.7 56.1 

2.0 1.9 

1.6 1.6 
5.6 5.5 

3.5 3.2 
3,8 3.9 
0.4 0.4 

102.9 98.3 

1.7 5.0 

1.7 5.0 
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Governnwntal Activities 

The City recognizes that maintaining a strong financial position is crucial to the City's long-term success. The 
burden that is placed on citi7.ens and businesses as well as the needs for services must both be taken into 
consideration with all financial decisions. The major fiscal challenges facing the City continue ro be level 01· 

decreased State funding f'or education, health insurance increases, State retirement increases, energy costs, property 
values and tax rates. Fortumttcly, other City/School revenues have exceeded expectations and conservative 
spending has produced balances in many accounts at the end of the year. 

The City's assessed property value for taxation for fiscal year 2013 (tax year 2012) increased $15.6 111illion or 0.8% 
as of /\pril I, 20 12. The tax rate increased to $25 .68, which is 3.3% over the previous year. 

1·1ie major arects where revenues exceeded projections arc taxes of $395 thousand and licenses & pc1111its of $342 
thousand. Additional budget to actua l variances can be found on Schedule I, Schedu le of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balance on page 35. 

The conservative philosophy of sustainable and steady growth that the City of Rochester has embraced over rhc 
years remains as one of the keys LO the City's continued financia l strength and stability. In addition, during this 
period of economic downturn at the state and national levels, the City's £conomic Development Department 
continues to court prospective businesses and plan for future deve lopment so that the City is prepared to take 
advantage of the next economic improvement cycle in the national, regional and local economy. We arc already 
beginning to see the positive results of this strategy. 

Busin ess-ty pe Activities 

The Change in Net Position for the City's business-type activities increased by $3.1 mil lion in 20 13 as presented in 
Exhibit F of the basic financial statements. 

• The City's sewer system posted a positive change in net position of $1.2 million. Exhibit G, Statement of 
Cash Flows Proprietary runds, reports a decrease of $5 15 thousand in the cash bt1lancc from the begi 1111 ing or 
the year. due to the bond funding cycle. Rate reviews and increases in the sewer rate will be necessary to 
maintain positlve operations. 

• The City's water system posted a positive change in net position of $2,0 million. Exhibit G, Statement of 
Cash Plows Proprieta1y Funds. rep01ts a decrease of $554 thousand in cash balance from the beginning or the 
year, due once again to the City's bond funding cycle. In conjunction with the Sewer Fund, rate reviews and 
increases in the water rate will be ncccssa1y ro maintain positive operations. 

• The City's ice arena hc1s (l reported 111ini111c1I net position decrease of' $18,532. 

GF:NERAL FUND BUDG ln 

/\s the City completed the year, its General Fund. as presented in the Statement or Revenues, Expendirurcs and 
Changes in Fund 13alance 011 Schedule I, 1·cpor1ed a bt1dgetary fund balance of more 1han $14.5 million. 

Gent.-ral Fund Budgetary Mighlights 

Supplementa l appropriations were approved by the City Council nt various times throughout the year for grants and 
donations for seven1I City dcpal'tmcnrs. 
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Ca pita I Assets 
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The City's investment in capital assets, net of depreciation. for its Governmental and Business-type /\ctivities as or 
June 30, 2013 is $185.4 million (see Table 3 below). This investment in capital assets includes land, casements, 
bui ldings, equipment, computer software, construction in progress and infrastructure. Infrastructure c1sse1s are items 
that are normally immovable, of value only to the City, and include roads and bridges. G/\SB Statement No. 34 
requires capital assets. including infrastructure, for the City's governmental funds to be reported in the Government 
Wide Financial Statements, however, they are not included on the Fund Financial Statements. See Note 6 - Capital 
Assets, of thu Notes to the 13asic: Financial Statements for more information regarding the City's capital assets. 

Land 

IZasements 

Land improvements 

13uildings and improvements 

Vehicles and equipment 

I nfrastructur~ 

Construction in progress 
Totals 

Debt 

Tablc3 

CapH.~11 Assels at Yea r-end 

(nee- of Depreciation, in Millions) 

Govcrnmenlal Busi ncs~-t y pc 

Activities Acl·ivitics 

2013 2012 2013 2012 

8.0 7.6 3.5 3.5 

1.4 I.I 

2.3 2.3 

41.4 41.9 29.G 28.7 

6.0 5.7 3.3 3.2 

39.0 4 1.5 31.3 3) .5 

6.9 4.5 12.7 12.4 

105.0 104.6 80.4 79.3 

Tolal 

2013 2-0 12 

11.5 I I.I 

l .4 I. I 

2 .3 2.3 

71.0 70.6 

9.3 8.9 

70.3 73 .0 

19.6 16.9 

185.4 183.9 

The City may ,issue general obligation bonds, receive Stale Revolving Loan Fund notes in lieu of bonds, and notes in 
anticipation of such bonds, taxes and other anticipated revenues. As of June 30, 2013, the total bonds and notes 
outstanding for all runds is $73.5 million (See Table 4 below). The City also has capital leases payable of $158 
thousand. r-unds are budgeted for annually for capital leases and contracts are subject to cancellation should funds 
nol be appropriated. The City's overall debt li111i tations and available debt margin are listed in Note 9 - General 
Debt Obligations. of the Notes l'O the Basic Financial S!Htements. 
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General obligation bonds (backed by the City) 
and State revolving notes 

Totals 

Table 4 
Outstanding Debt at Year-end 

(in Millions) 

Governmental 
Activities 

2013 2012 

40.9 
40.9 

44.9 
44.9 

Business-type 
Activities 

2013 2012 

32.6 
32.6 

36.0 
36.0 

Total 
2013 2012 

73.5 
73.5 

80.9 
80.9 

The General Obligation bond rating process conducted in February - March of 2012 returned a bond rating from 
Moody's of A I and a rating of AA- was received from Standard and l'oors. While financial steadfastness is only 
one of the criteria that bond rating agencies use in assessing overall risk, continued positive performance in this arec, 
will help the City to achieve continued increases in bond ratings which in tllrn mean lower rates and savings to 
taxpayers. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

It is important to the City Council and the commun ity it serves lo provide appropriate levels of service to taxpayers, 
diversify the tax base, and create new investment in the City. The City's elected and appointed officials considered 
many factors when setting the fiscal year 2014 budget and the resulting impact on tax rates and (he service fees that 
will be charged for business-type activities. The City continues its long standing tradition of fiscal restraint -
forecasting realistic anticipated revenues, keeping expenditures in check and directing capital expenditures in an 
effort to minimize bonded debt while at the same time addressing the service and inrrastructure needs of the City. II 
is also impo11a11t to note that in November 2008 voters of the City approved a tax cap charter amendment to limit the 
amount property taxes can increase by a national inf1ation !'actor. The City Council has not overridden the tax cc1p in 
the five budget cycles since passage of this charter amendment. 

CONTACTING TH I;: CITY'S FlNANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of' the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial infonnation, contact the City Finance Office a l 31 Wakefield 
Street, Rochester, NH 03867 or visit us on the web at www.rochesternh.net. 
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liXI IIBIT /\ 
c rrv Oil IW C II ESTt•:1i , NKW [ l i\MPSllllm 
St111cmc11l of' Net l'osit ion 
June 30, 2013 

/\SSETS 
Current Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
I nvcs1111e11 is 

!'axes rcccivnblc, ncl 
Accounts rcccivablu 
Due (i-0111 (1lhcr govcrn111cn1s 
l111crnal balanccs 
Prepaid cxpcn~cs 
Inventory 

1'otal Currcnl /\sscts 

Noncurrenl Assets: 
Due l'ro111 01hcr govcrn1111:111s 
Capital assets: 
No11-deprcci,1blc cupiial assets 
Dcprcdablc capillll asscls, ne! 
Toli1I Noncurren1 /\8scts 
Tolal Assets 

DLlllERRED OUTFLOWS OF llESOURCES 
l,c)Ss on debt n:funding 

Total Deterred 0 111nows of llcsourecs 

Ll A 1311 ,l'l'IES 
Ct11Tcnt Liabi lities: 

AccounL~ pnynblc 
Accrued expenses 
Rctoinnge paynblc 
Deposits 
Curnml portion or bonds payahlc 
Currenl ponion ol' c.,,1pital leases payable 
Current prn·tion ol'eompcnsaH;d flbscm:cs payable 

Turnl Ct1rre11t Linbilitics 

Noncmn:nt Liabili1ics: 
13011Js payable 
C.-1pi tnl lcc1ses pnyablc 
Other long-tem1 <lbligali<lns 
Other post-c111ploy111c111 bcndits pny~blc 
Compensated absences payable 

To1al Noncurrenl Linhil itics 
l'otlll Liflbilities 

DliFI.\ IU{ED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
l'1'0pcrty tmrns colkc.tctl in advance 
Unearned grant revenue 
Other u11u11rncd revenue 

Tcltnl Dcforrc<l lnl1t)W$ ofllesonrcc~ 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital nsscts 
Restricted 
llnrcstriclcd 

Total Nel l'osi1io11 

.\'111J occomp11nying 110111.1· lo the bhsiu.fimmcfnl su11em1mts 
l 

Govcrnmcnlal 
Aci-ivilics 

$ 2&,266,072 
8,130, 178 
1,662,543 

939,062 
'>95,388 

( I, 779,098) 
64,878 
22,128 

38,30 I, 151 

16,269.990 
88,720,101 

104,990,091 
143,29 I ,242 

386,240 
386,240 

2,8611,737 
5,325, 453 

125,673 
203.315 

4,810.702 
32,250 

250,202 
13,(112,332 

35,32'1,524 
126, 111 
724,146 

3.327,1116 
878,697 

40,380,!!94 
53,993,226 

18,520,499 
30,295 

564,992 
19, 115,786 

64,516,959 
765,642 

5,285,869 

$ 70,568,470 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Primary Govcrnmen1 
f3usincss-lypc 

Activilics Toft1l 

$ 28,266,072 
8,130.178 
1,(>62,5'13 

$ 2,622.130 3,561.192 
358.195 1,353,583 

1.779,098 
3 1'1 65,192 

353,452 375,580 
5,1 I 3,189 43,414,340 

2, 103,241 2,103,241 

I (l,! 57,546 32,427,536 
611,271 ,463 152,991,564 
82,532,250 187,522,341 
87,645,1139 230,936,681 

I 05,737 491,977 
105,737 491,977 

386,370 3 ,251,107 
623,004 5,948.457 
128.786 2S11,459 

203.3 15 
2,830.981 7,M 1,683 

32,250 
250.202 

3,969,14 1 17,581.473 

28,474,'146 63,798,970 
126, 111 

1,3 17, 111 2.04 1.257 
368,950 3,696,366 

12,690 891,387 
30, l 73,197 70,554,09 1 
34,1'12,338 ~35.564 

18.520,499 
30,295 

355,'182 920,474 
355,482 19,47 1,268 

47,912,208 112,429,167 
765.642 

5,341,148 10,627,017 

$ 53,253,356 $ 123,821,826 
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EXHIBJ'I B 
CIT Y O F ROCH ESTER, NEW HAM PSHrRE 
Statement of Activ ities 
For the Year Ended .I une 30. 2013 

Functions/Programs Expenses 

Governmental Activities: 
General government s 4,243.199 
Puhlic safety 12,219,400 
Highways and streets 6,183.735 
Health and welfrrre 367.237 
Culture and recreation l.743,970 
Community development 2,842,158 
Community services 692,680 
Education 57.667.950 
Food service 1.994.495 
Debt service 1.638.980 
lntergovemmcmal 5,601 ,590 

Total governmental activities 95.195.394 

Business-type activities: 
Sewer 3,843.231 
Water 3,504,321 
Nonm~jor enterprise fund 430,902 

·1 otal business-type activities 7,778.454 

Total primary government $ 102.973.848 

See accompany;ng no/es lo rhe basic.financial starements 

Program Revenues 

Operaiing Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Services Contributions Contributions 

s 78,051 
643,992 s 316,725 s 153,024 
125.724 521,714 47,832 

152,883 
226,615 

710,480 
2.436.788 26.806.074 26,689 

724.946 1,133,367 
840,077 

4,872.864 29,004.495 1,067.622 

4,735,135 170,585 
3,570,604 1,726,189 

354,009 
8,659,748 - 1,896,774 

S 13.532,612 $ 29,004,495 $ 2.,964,396 

General revenues: 
'Proper1y and other taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Grants and contributions: 
Rooms and meals UL'! distribution 

Interest and investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 
Total general revenues and transfers 

Change in net position 
Net position - beginning 

Net position - ending 

Net (8:pensc) Revenue and 
Changes in Net Position 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 

S (4.165.148) s (4.165.148) 
( l I. I 05.659) ( l I, 105.659) 

(5.488,465) (5.488,465) 
(367,237) (367.237) 

( 1,591,087) ( 1,591,087) 
(2,615.543 l ( 2,6 I 5.543) 

17.800 17.800 
(28,398,399) (28;398.399) 

( 136. l 82) ( 136,182) 
(798,903) (798,903) 

(5.601,590) (5.601.590) 
(60,250.413) $ {60.250.413) 

1,062,489 1.062,489 
1,792,472 I ,792,472 

(76.893) (76.893) 

- 2,778.068 2.778.068 

(60,250.4 I 3) 2,778,068 (57,472,345) 

51.595.952 51.595,952 
4.337.076 4.337.076 

1.327, 140 1,327.140 
90,1 52 5.500 95,652 

1,716.903 108,077 1,824,980 
(237.059) 237.059 

58.830.164 350.636 59.180.800 

( 1.420,249) 3.128.704 1,708,455 
71.988,719 50.]24,652 122,113,371 

S 70,568,470 S 53,253.356 $ 123,821,826 
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bXll l lll'I l' 
Cl I'\' OF HO( ' I 11•:S'l'l•: ll, Nl·'.W 11 /\.\l l'SII IIH~ 
Bulnncc ~ lwcl 
(~Ol'tl'll lll~lltnl Fonds 
.lune JO, 20 13 

ASSL!TS 
C11sh Md cash equivalents 
!11 vcs1111c111s 
'l'nxcs rt;(:civnblc, net 
/\ccounls n:cc1vablc 
t),1c from other govcrn111c111s 
Due f'ro111 other l'mlels 
!•repaid expenses 
Inventory 

ro1:1 I Assets 

DEFliRI\ IJ) OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
't'otal Dclcrrc<I 0 1111lows ot' Rcs1>urccs 
Total i\ssuts n1HI Dd'crrud 01111lows of'Hcsm1rccs 

i\cCOllll\S pnyublc 
Accrued CXl)Cl1$CS 

llctH inag~ J11\y11blc 
l)cposits 
Due 10 other /'1111ds 

Totnl Liabilities 

Lli\1311.i'l'lllS 

Dl~Frnn rn INl'l,OWS OF RcSOURCES 
Property 111xcs eollceti:d in ndvmwc 
Unearned property Uu<. rcvc1111c 
Uncurncd grunt revenue 
Olher unearned revenue 

Total Deferred Inflows or Rrsoun:c~ 

FUND 131\Li\NCES 
Nonspcndill>lc 
Rcstrictcd 
Co111111i11cd 
Assigned 
Unnssignccl ( dclidt) 

TCJtal Fu11d Balnnccs (dclici1) 
'l'(Jttil I ,illbilitics, l)cl'e.rrcd ln llows or Resources 

;111\1 Fund Balances 

/\mounts repo11cd J'or governmental a1.11ivi1ics in the stmemcnl of 
ncl position arc dilforcnt bccu11sc. 

Capilnl ass~ls used in go1•um111ontnl 11c1ivi1ics nrc not limmeiul 
rcsm1n;cs 1111<1, 1hcrcltwc, ;ire 1101 rcponcd 111 the f'1mds 

Propc1•1y ln~cs me recognized on an ;1ccnrnl hasis i11 the 
s1111c111cm orncl position. 11()( the n1odi licu nccrual basis 

Gcncrnl 
FLUHI 

$28,188,224 
8,050,919 
l.(i(,2,543 

6 10,1 11 

5.83 1.979 
64,878 

44.408,654 

S 44,408,654 

$ 1,583,685 
4,764,730 

20J.J I 5 
J,853. 11 O 

I 0.404.840 

18,520,499 
1, 192,258 

262,869 
19,975,626 

64,878 

537.244 
122,781 

I 3,303,285 
14,028,188 

$ 44,408,654 

Losses on debt rc l'undings urc rec()gnizcd on 1111 nccrnal basis in 
Ille StlllclllCl\l oi' tiCI posilion, not lhc modlficd 11c~rual h11sls 

Long-lcrm liabililics arc 1101 due and payable in (he current 
pcl'iOd nnd, lhcr.-fCJrc, nrc not reported in 1hc funds. L.ong•lc1'111 
linhi l ilics 111 yeur end C()llsisl of: 

Uonds r uyablc 
Carita! lc11scs 1rnyohlc 
Other long-lcnn obligmions 
Othcr pos1-cmploy111c11t hcncl'1ls puyahlc 
Com1>CllSllll'd ahSClll\CS payable 
/\ccr11ed 111tcrcst on long-lcnn obligati(ms 

Net posilion ofg1wcn11nc11tal activltk-s 

See 11, ·cw 11pr111yil1~ nmes 111 //111 ba.,·ic jlnancial s/(l/e11ie11111 

J 

Capital 
Projects 

E.11ill! 

$ 145,25() 

145,250 

$ 145,250 

$ 845,366 

125,673 

4,248,977 
5,220,0 16 

(5 ,0711, 766) 
(5,074,766) 

$ M5.250 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

No1111111jor 
Govcrnmcnrnl 

Fnnds 

$ 77,848 
79,259 

328,95 I 
850, 138 

1,245.4 I 6 

22,12!\ 
2,603,740 

$2,603,740 

$ 1135,686 
I (,,898 

75,1 .406 
1,206,990 

30,295 
302,123 
332,418 

82.660 
705,110 
236,246 

40,3 16 

1,064,332 

$2,603.740 

Totnl 
Oovcrnmcnlll l 

8.IJ.l.d~ 

$28,266,072 
8, 130,178 
1,662,543 

939,062 
995,388 

7.077.J95 
64,878 
22, 128 

47,157,644 

$ 117, 157,644 

$ 2,864,737 
4,78 1,628 

125,673 
203,3 15 

8,856,493 
16,83 I ,846 

18,520,499 
I , 192.258 

30,295 
564,992 

20,308,044 

147,538 
705,11 0 
773,490 
163,097 

8,228,519 

I 0.0 17.754 

104,990,09 1 

1,192,258 

('10.135,226) 
( 158,361 ) 
(72'1,146) 

(3,327.4 I 6) 
( I, 128.899) 

(543,825) 

$ 70,568,470 
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EXHIBIT D 
CJn' Of ROCHESTER, ~EW HAMPSHIRE 
S~temeot of Revenues, E~penditurtS and C hanges in Fund Balances 
C o,•ernmental Funds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

General 
£m!;l 

Revenues: 
Taxes S 52.073",S49 
Licenses and permi1s 4,337,076 
lntergovemmen1al 26.J90J34 
Charges for setvices 3,426,784 
Investment income 81,347 
M,scellaneous 1.109,505 

Total Revenues 87,219,295 

xpend itures: 
urrent operations: 
General government 3-794,792 
Pubhc safety 10,962,447 
Highways and SlteelS 2.580,697 
Health and welfare 363.8.57 
Culture and recreation 1,671,173 
Community development 362.257 
Community services 
Educallon 52..561,813 
Food seivice 

'ap11at oullay 158.361 
1ebt service: 
Principal relirement 4.602,642 
Interest and fiscal charges 1.637.227 

I ntergo,·crnmcntal 5.60).590 
Total Expenditures 84.296,8~6 

Excess of revenues over (under) expend11ures 2.922,439 

Other financing sources (uses}: 
Proceeds of refunding bonds 4,007,673 
Payment 10 bond escrow agenl (3.967,078) 
Proceeds from capital lease obligations 158,361 
Proceeds from other long-term obligauons 
Transfers in '394 ,249 
Transfers out (3,400215) 

Total 01her financing sources (uses) (2,807.3 10) 

Net change in fund balances 115,129 

Fund balances (deficit) st beg,nnmgof year U.913.059 

Fund balances (deficit) at end of year S 14.028.188 

Sv~ 01.:,•pmpanyi11~ 110t'1.~ f<> rluJ hl,.~u:/irw11c1oi _ .. ,u1em.:n11v 

Capital 
Projects 

Fund 

s 47,832 

853.277 
~ I 09 

6,291,.B I 

6.291.33 I 

(5.390.222) 

248.163 
3.147.484 
(390,457) 

J,005, 190 

(2,385,032) 

_J2.689,734) 

S (5,074.766) 

Nonmajor Total 
Governrtlcnlal Govcrnmemal 

Funds funds 

S 52,073,849 
4,.337,076 

$ 5. 160,69 I 31,399,257 
1.446.080 4,872.864 

8,805 90.152 
89.963 2.052-745 

6,705,539 94 ,825.943 

782 ;,795.574 
4-87,'WJ 11 ,450,367 

2.5S0,697 
345 364,202 
J9 1,671,212 

2.533,003 2.895 .. 260 
039.599 639,599 

3.363,216 55,925.029 
1.953.303 1,953,303 

6.449,692 

4.602,641 
1,637.227 
5.601590 

8,978,207 99,566.394 

(2,272,668) (4,740.45 l ) 

4.007,673 
(3.967.078) 

158,361 
248.163 

12. 180 3,S53.913 
(3,790,972) 

12,180 2 10,060 

(2.260.488) (4,530,39 I) 

3.324,820 14-548 145 

S l.◊64.332 S 10.017.754 

CITY OF ROC HESTER, NEW I-IAMPSI-I IRE 
Reconciliation of lhe Siatement of Re,•enucs, Expenditures 
and C hMges in Fund Balances of Governmenul Funds 
to !he SLJitemenl of Acth•itie, 
For the Year Ended June 30, 20 I~ 

Net Change in Fund Balances-To1al Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in th~ statemc111 of ac1ivit1cs 
are different because: 

1Govcmmen1al funds repon capita) outlays as expenditures. However. in the 
statement of acffvities. the cost of those assets is allocated ewer their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capltal outlays 
exceeded deprecia1ion expen,;c; in the current penod. 

Governme.ntal fuhdSohly rcpon 1he disposal of assets to thee.xtenl p,ocecdarc 
recc,ved ftom the sale. In the statement orac11vities, a gain or loss is reponed for 
each disposal, This is the amount of the gain of disposed capital assets reduced 
by the aciual proceeds received from the sale of c.1pital assets. 

Revenues in the sta1ement of activi1,es thal do not provide current financial 
resources a re not reported as n,venues in lhe funds. 

Proceeds from bond issuance are Other financing sources in the funds. but bond 
issuance increases long-term liabilities in 1he siatement of ne1 position. 

Proceeds from capilal leases are other financing sou=s in the funds. but capil~I 
leases increase long-term liabilirics in lhe s1s1emenl of net position. 

Proceeds from other long-1em1 obligations are other fill3J1cini sources in the runds. 
but other Jong-tern, obligations increase long0 term liabilities in the statement or 
net position. 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure ln the governmental funds, but lhe 
repayment reduces long-1erm lt'abilittcs in the statement of net position 

I Govem;ncnlal funds report !he effect of bond issuance premiums when debt is first 
issued. whereas 1hcse amounts a,e amortized in the sta1emen1 of activities over 
1he life of the related debt. 

Govemmen1al funds rcpon the cff<!ct of loss,s on debt refundi~gs when the debt 
is firs! issued, whereas these aniounts arc amoniz<!d in t),c statement ofac1ivi11cs 
overt he life of lhc related deb!. 

In 1he statement of ac1ivi1ies. interest ts accrued on ouis1~ndiny bonds. whereas in 
governmental fund:;, an in1erest expenditure is re.paned when due, 

Some expenses reponed ,n the statement of aciivi1ic.s, such as compensated absences 
and other post-employment benefits do not require the use of curren1 financial 
resources and. therefore, are no1 rcponed as e,,~nditures 1n !he ~overnmen1~I funds 

Change in Net Posi11on or Govemmcn1al ActivitT,s 

0 ·-.. .. 
l> n z-
z ~ 
co l> .,, 
r- :x, 
:x, 0 
mn 
-0 ::i::: 
Om 
:x, VI 
-i -i 

S (4.530,391) 
r,..im 
0 :x, .... 
N 
r:.i 
0 .... 
11,1 

707,328 

(35 J.08S) 

(477,8'17) 

(4,007.673) 

(158,361) 

(248,163) 

8.282,643 

27.036 

129,776 

128.512 

(921.974) 

S _tJ.420.'.149) 
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l: XI IIBI I E 
C ITY OF ROCI IESTER, NEW I IAMPSllllrn 
StHtemc11t of Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 
June 30. 2013 

Business-type Activities 
Nonmajor 

Sewer Water Enterprise 
Fund !:}Ind rund Totals 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 
Accounts receivable $ 1,572,580 $ 1,049.075 $ 475 $ 2,622, 130 
Due n·om other governments 355,999 2,196 358, 195 
Due from other funds 2,663,685 2,663,685 
Prepaid expenses 3 14 3 14 
Inventory 3 1,62 1 32 1,83 1 353,452 

Tola I CurTCnt Assets 4,623,885 1,373,4 16 475 5,997,776 

Noncurrent Assets; 
Due from other governments 2,103,24 1 2,103,241 
Capital assets: 
Non-depreciable capital assets 5,405,962 10,648,196 103,388 16, 157,546 
Depreciable capital assets, net 40,881,476 22,235,614 1, 154,373 64,27 1,463 
1'ot11I Noncurrent Assets 48,390,679 32,883,810 1,257,76 1 82,532,250 
Toti1 I Assets 53,014,564 34,257,226 1,258,236 88,530,026 

DEr-ERRED OUTFLOWS OF RCSOU RCES 
Loss on debl refunding 76,272 29,465 105,737 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 76,272 29,465 105,737 

Ll/\131 LITJES 
Current Liabilities: 

Accounts payr1blc 201 ,751 175.2 10 9,409 386,370 
Accrued expenses 304,322 291 ,861 26,82 1 623.004 
Retainagc payable 66,866 61,920 128,786 
Due Lo other funds 855,648 28,939 884,587 
Cu1Tcnt pol'tion o/' bonds payable 1,773,780 976,905 80,296 2,830,98 1 

Total Current Liabilities 2,346.719 2,36 1,544 145,465 4,853.728 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 
Bonds payable 15, I 98,246 12,504,758 771,442 28,474,446 
Other long-term obligHlions 928,964 388, 147 1,3 17, 111 
Other pos(,e111ploymen1 benefits payable 169,225 177,325 22,400 368,950 
Compensated absences pnyablc 7,339 3,826 1,525 12,690 

Toti:!! Noncurrenl Liabil it ics 16,303,774 13 ,074,056 795,367 30,173, 197 
Total Linbilities 18,650,493 15,435,600 940,832 35,026,925 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unearned revenue 355,482 355,482 

Total Deterred lnOows or Resources 355,482 355,482 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 28,462,720 19,043,465 406,023 47,912,208 
Unrcst1·icted (deficit) 5,622,141 (192,374) {88,6 19) 5,34 1,148 

Total Net Position $ 34,084,861 $ 18,851 ,091 $ 317,404 $ 53,253,356 

See m.:c:omp<mying 110/es lo the hasi1,;.flnanvlal stc1/e111en1s 
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(\_ CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

EX! 111311" F 
CIT Y OF ROCHEST ER, N l~W IIA MPSHl RE 
Statement of Rcvc1111c.s, Ex penses a ml Changes iu Net Position 
Proprietary Fuuds 
For the Year Ended June 30, 20 13 

Business-type Activities 
Nonmajor 

Sewer Water Enterprise 
Fund Fund Fund Totals 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $ 4,735,135 $ 3,570,604 $ 354,009 $ 8,659,748 
Miscellaneous 19,676 30,540 57,861 108,077 

Total operating revenues 4,754,811 3,601,144 411,870 8,767,825 

Operating expenses: 
Personnel services 1,097,326 1,153,092 188,692 2,439, 110 
Materials and supplies 278,758 259, 192 12,315 550,265 
Utilit ies 346,698 134,083 77, 169 557,950 
Depreciation 1, )02,561 1,040,790 64,888 2,208,239 
Miscellaneous 275, 193 293,440 50,033 618,666 

Total operating expenses 3, ! 00,536 2,880,597 393,097 6,374,230 

Operating income 1,654,275 720,547 18,773 2,393,595 

Non-operating revenues (expeflses): 
lnteres1 revenue 2,500 2,500 500 5,500 
Bond issuance expense (76,5 10) (2,757) (79,267) 
Interest expense (666,185) (620,967) (37,805) (1 ,324,957) 

Net 11011-operuting revenues (expenses) (740, 195) (62 1,224) (37,305) (I ,398,724) 

lnco111e Q_.,oss) before cc1p i1al i.:ontriburions and transfers 914,080 99,323 (18,532) 994,87 J 

Capita l contributions 170,585 1,726,189 1,896,774 
Transfers in 68,948 17 1,903 240,851 
Transfers out (1,896) ( 1,896) (3,792) 

Change in net position I, 151 ,7 17 1.995,5 I 9 ( 18.532) 3, 128.704 

Tota 1 net position at beginning of year 32,933,144 16,855,572 335,936 50,124,652 

Torn I net position at end of year $ 34,084,861 $ 18,85 1,091 $ 317,404 $ 53,253,356 

See accompanying notes to the basic:.flnrmcial statements 
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CITY OF ROCHESTER _03 ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 
EX l [IH ITG 

C ITY OF l<OC llllSTISR, NEW IIAMl'SIIIRI~ 
Stalcmcnl of Cash Flows 
l'roprict11ry Funcls 
Fonhc Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Business-type Activities 

Nonim1jor 
Sewer Waler Enterprise 

£.ynd f und Fund '1'0lf1ls 
Cash nows l'rom operating nclivillcs: 

Cash received fr()111 customers $ 4,821,406 $ 3,593,178 $ 353,534 $ 8,768, 118 

O1hcr operating cash receipts 19,676 30.540 57,861 108,077 

Cash paid lo suppliers ( 1.208, 768) ( 1,002,852) ( 182.851) (2.394,117 1) 

Cusl1 paid lo employees (759,409) (81 1, 183) (136,305) ( 1.706,897) 

Net cash pmvidcd by operatii\g activities 2,872,905 1,809,683 92,239 4,774.827 

Cash 11ows from noncapi1al 11nnncing activtlic~: 

Transfer l<i ot lier l'unds ( 1,896) ( 1,896) (3,792) 

Net cash u.scd for noncnpital finnncing activities (1,896) (1,896) (3,792) 

Clish !lows f"r<im capit.il and related financing nclivilies: 

l'Lirdrnscs of' capitnl assets (1,839.61 R) (1,298,147) (27.501} (3, I 65.2<>6) 

Proceeds 1ro111 <kbt refunding 8,88 1,580 272.260 9, 153,8110 

Payments on rel'undcd debt (8,881 ,580) (272.260) (9,,153,81!0) 
Proceeds fr<>m other long-term ohl igaiions 320,189 25J, 139 573,328 

Principal paid on long-term debt ( 1,657,000) (908,730) (77,454) (2,643, I 84) 
lntcre-5t paid on long-term (lcb( (707,314) (582,728) (35.309) (1,325.351) 

'I rnn$fcr fr,m, other l'llnds 68,948 171,903 2,io,ss1 

Cupital contributions 426,227 '126,227 

Nol cash used ltlr capital rind rclatcrl 1t11u11clng llctivitics (3,388,568) (2,361l,563) (140,264) (5,893,395) 

Cn~h llows li'()ln investing ,iclivit ics; 

Interest on investment~ 2,500 2,500 500 5,500 

Net cash prMidcd by investing nctivitics 2.500 2,500 500 5,500 

Net decrease in cash and cash cquivalenls (515,059) (554,276) (47.525) ( I, I 16,860) 
Cash and cash equivalents (dclicicney) c11 beginning ol'ycar J, 178,744 (JO I ,372) 18,586 2,895,958 

Cush a nd cash equivalents {deficiency) ut end of yc<1r $ 2,663,685 $ (855,648) $ (28,939) $ 1,779,098 

Reconcil iation of (>pcruting income 10 nel cash 
provicl<XI by openlling nclivities: 

Opci-ating income $ 1,6511,27S $ 720,547 $ 18,773 $ 2,393.595 

A,ljusl111cnls to t·ccom:ilc ()pcrnl ing illC(llllC 10 net 
c11~h provided hy operating aclivitic$: 

f)cprcciatlon expense I, !02.561 1,040,790 64,888 2.208.239 

Chnnges in nssels and liobilitic~: 
Accounts receivable 86,27 1 22,574 (475) I 08.370 
Prepaid expenses 37 37 
Inventory (31 ,621) (115,098) (76.719J 
ACC0\llllS payable 24 ,793 25,040 1,762 5 1,595 

i\ccrued expenses 7,368 5,698 698 13. 764 
Other post,cmploy111cnl benefits payable 31,984 4 l,067 5,960 79,0 11 

Compensated tthscnccs payable (2,726) (972) 633 (3,065) 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,872,905 $ 1,809,683 $ 92,239 $ 4.774,827 

Non-cash trnn~aclions affecting li111111cial posilio11: 
Capital asset oclditiuns inel t1dcd in year end liabilities $ 207,858 $ 170.106 $ J,915 $ 381,879 
Principal f()rgivcncss on debt 1.726.189 1.726. 189 
Aniorllz.ation 011 bond premiums 1,762 815 2,577 
i\n1orti,mtio11 on 1,,_sscs on debt ref'undings (3,256) ( 12,25'1) {4,539) (20,049) 

$ 204,602 $ 1.885,803 $ 191 $ 2,090,596 

See at'c0111pa11)iing rro/l!S 10 1/11:! ba.1·ic j int11winl slnll!me111s 
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EX l11l3IT 1-l 
CIT Y 0 1• ROC HESTER, Nl~W MAMPSHIRE 
Statement or l<iduciary Net Position 
ffiduciary Funds 
Jone 30, 2013 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total Assets 

DEFERRED OUlTLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Total Deferred Out nows of Resources 

Due to student groups 
Total LiHbilities 

IJ/\BILITIES 

DEFERRED INFL,OWS OF RESOURCES 
Total Deferred Inflows or Resources 

NET POS1TlON 
I leld in trust 

Total Net Position 

See acc:ompanying notes to the basic.flnam:ial statements 
8 

Private-

Purpose 
Trust founds 

$ 34,983 
1,918,271 

1,953,254 

I ,953,254 
$ 1,953,254 

Agency 
Funds 

$ 187,641 

$ 187,641 

$ 187,641 

$ 187,641 



l~XI IIBIT I 
C ITY OF ROCH l~ST ER, NEW IIAMl'SIIIHE 
Stalcmcnf of Changes in Fiducial'y Net Position 
l'iducia ry Funds 
l~or the Year Ended June 30, 20 13 

ADDITIONS: 
Contribt1tions: 

Private donations 
Total Contributions 

Investment earn ings: 
Investment income 
Net increase in the fair value of investments 

Total Investment Earnings 
Less: Investment expense 

Net I nvestli1ent Earnings 
'J'otal Additions 

DEDUCTIONS: 
Benefits 

Total Deductions 

Change in net position 

Nel position - beginning of year 
Net rosition - encl or year 

See ac1:0111pany ing note.11 to the basic,l)nancial statements 
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Private­
Purpose 

Trust funds 

$ 23,532 
23,532 

59,400 
138,678 
198,078 

(3,027) 
195,05 I 
2 18,583 

86,060 
86,060 

132,523 

1,820,731 
$ 1,953,254 
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CITY OF ROCI-ll~STF.:R, NEW HAMJ>SfllRE 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

NOTE: 1-SUMMARY OF SlGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting po.licies of' the City of Rochester, New Hampshire conform to accounting policies 
generally accepted in the Un ited States of America for local govern menta l un its, except as indicated 
hereinafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies. 

P'ih(mcial Repnl'ting Entity 

The City of Rochester, New Hampshire (the City) is a municipal corporation incorporated in 1722 and 
governed by an elected City Counci I. The City operates under the Mayor/City Council/Manager form of 
government and performs loca l governmental functions as authorized by its clrn11er. 

The financial statements include those of the various departments governed by the City Council and other 
officials with financial responsibility. The City has no other separate organizational units, which meet 
criteria fol' inclusion in the firnmcial statements as defined by the Governmental Accotinting Standards 
Board (GASl1). 

Basis t?f' Prese11urtio11 

The City's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net 
position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level 
offinancial information. 

During the fisca l year ended June 30, 2013, the City implemented G/\SB Statement No. 63, "Financial 
Reporting of De.fe1-red Outjlows rf Resources, Deferred b1/lows of Resources, ai1d Net Position". Under 
Stcltcment 63, !'he City hns segregated previously reported assets and liabil ities as deferred outflows or 
resources and deferred inflows of resources, respectively. l'his statement also identifies net position as 
the residual of al I other elements presented in the statement of financia l position. Net position is the 
difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources. 

1. Government-Wide Financial Statements: 

lhe statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the City as a 
whole. These statements include the financ ial activ ities of the primary government~ except for fiduciary 
funds. 

The statement of net position presents the financial conditions of the governmental and business-type 
activities of the City at year end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct 
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the Ciiy's govcmmcntal and busine~s­
type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or 
department and therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges 
paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requ irements of a particular program and interest earned on 
grants that is requ ired to be used to support a paiticular program. Revenues wh ich are not classified as 
program revenues arc presented as general revenues of the City. The comparison of direct expenses with 

10 
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program revenues identifies !'he extent to which each governmental function is sel f-financing or draws 
from the general revenues of the City. 

2. Fund Financial Statements: 

During the ye~tr, the City segregates transactions related to certain City functions or activities in separate 
funds in 01·dcr to aid l'inancial management and to demonstrate lega l compliance. Fund financial 
statements are designed to present financial information of'thc City tll this more detailed level. The locus 
of governmental and proprietary fund financial statenwnts is on 1)1ajor fonds. Each major fund is 
presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single colu mn. The 
fiduciary funds are repo1ted by type. 

Fund Acco1111ti11g 

The City uses l'unds lo maintain its financial records during the fiscal year. /\ fund is defined as a fiscal 
and accounting entity Wlth a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds: 
governmental, proprietary and fiducia ry. 

I. Govcrnmenlal li'unds: 

Governmental funds arc those through which most governmental functions typically arc financed. 
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current lint1ncial resources. 
Expendable ttssets nrc assigned to the various governmental fonds according to the p111voses ror which 
they may or must be used. Current liabilities c1 re assigned to the fond from which they wi ll be paid. The 
difference between governmental fund assets and deferred out nows of resources less liabi lities and 
deferred inflows or resources is reported as fund balance. The fo llowing are the City's major 
governmenta l funds: 

The General Fund is the main operating l'und of the City and is used to account for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund, 

The Capital Prc?jects Fund accounts for all financial transactions used fo r the acqu isition or construction 
of major capital facilities, infrastructure and equipment. It accounts for the federal , stale, and local 
finan cing of" these projects and the related capital outlay expenditures. 

The City 's Nonmajor Governmental Funds consist of the Permanent r-unds and the fo llowing specia l 
revenue l\ 111ds: Community Development Fund, Police Grants Funds, Miscellaneous Grants Funds, Other 
School Gr}rnts Funds, Food Service Fund, Federa l Pr~jccts Fund, Planning Fund, Granite State l3usincss 
Park TIF l)istTict fund, Rochester Community Center Fund, and Neighborhood Stabi lization Fund. /\II 
of tlw special revenue runds have similar characteristics in which the r<.:venues are restricted or corrnnirtcd 
in nature l'or spe<.:inc expenditures. 

2. Propriclnry Funds: 

Proprietary fund reporting rocuses on the determination of operat ing income, changes in net position, 
financial position and cash llows. Propiietary funds are classified as cntci-prise or internal service. The 
City has no internal serv ice funds. The fol lowing are the City's major proprietary funds: 
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Th1.: Sewer Fund accounts fo r all revenues and expenses perta ining to the City's wastewater operatfons, 

The Water Fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to the City's water operations, 

The Sewer and Water Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a 
manner simi lar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e. expenses including 
depi•eciation) of providing goods or services to the residents on a continuing basis are financed or 
recovered primarily through user charges. 

The City's sole Nonmajor Enterprise Fund is the Arem1 Fund. 

3. Fiduciary Funds: 

Fidw.:iary fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position, The fiduciary fund category 
is split into two classifications: private-pmpose trust funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to 
account for assets held by the City under a trust agreement for ind ividuals, private organizations, or other 
governments and a1·c therefore not available to support the City's own programs. The City 1rn1intains 
various priva te-purpose trusts which account for mon ies designated to benefit individuals within the City. 
The City's agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabi lities) and do not involve the 
measuremenl of results of operations. The City's agency funds account for the Student Activities Funds 
of the City's schools. 

M easurement Focu,i.· 

I. Govcrnmt'nt-Widc Fin:rncial Statements: 

The government-wide financial statements arc prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabi lities, and deferred inflows of resources associated 
with tJ1e operation of Che City are included on the Statement of Net Position. 

2, Fund l?inancial Statements: 

A 11 governmental funds are accounted for using a fiow of current linancial resources measurement focus. 
With this measurement focus, only ct1rrent assets, deferred outflows of resources, current liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing 
sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financ ial resources. This 
approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial 
statements are prepared. Governmental fund financia l statements therefore include reconcil iations with 
brief explanations to better identify the relatfonship between the government-wide statements and the 
statements fo r governmental funds. 

Like the government-w ide statements, the proprietary funds arc accounted for on a 1low or economic 
resources measurement focus. All assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabil ities, and deferred inflows 
of resources associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net position. 
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents increases. (i.e., revenues) and 
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total position. The statement of cash Oows provides information about 
how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities. 

12 



CITY OF ROCHESTl~R, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
NOTl~S TO BASJC FJNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINlJED) 
For the Year l~ndccl ,June 30, 2013 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

The private-purpose trust funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. 

Basls of Acco1111ti11g 

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financia l records and reported on 
i-he financial statements. Government-wide financial statements arc prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Proprietary and fiduciary funds also use the accrtial basis of accounting. Governmental 
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual 
basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the record ing of unearned revenue, and in the 
presentation of expenses versus expenditures. 

1. Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions: 

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal 
value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modi fied accrual b<isis, 
revenue is recorded in the fisca l year in which lhe resources are measmablc and become available. 
Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be 
collected soon enough tJ1ereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the City, 
available means expected to be received with in sixty days of fiscal year end. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives vl:ll ue without directly giving equal value in return, 
include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from properly 
taxes is recognized in the fisca l year for which the taxes arc levied (see Note 2). Revenue from grants, 
entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in wh ich all eligibil ity requ irements have been 
satis fied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the 
resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is fi rst permitted; matchi ng rcquircmonts, in 
which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose; and expenditure 
requirements, in wh ich the resources are prov ided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modi fied 
acc111al basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be avai lable before it can be recognized. 

Under the modified accrual basis, the fol lowing revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and 
available m fiscal year end: property taxes and interest on investments. 

Licenses and permits, charges for services, and miscellaneous revenues (except interest on investments) 
arc recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually 
received. 

2. Unearned Revenue: 

l)ne;i rned revenue arises when (issets are recognized before revenue recogn1t1on criteria have been 
s~itisfied. Grants and entitlements received before the el igibility requirements are met are recorded as 
une~1rned revenue. On governmental fund financial statements, receivables tlrnt will not be collected 
within the ava ilable period have also been reported as unearned revenue. 

3. Expcnscs/Expcncliturcs: 

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The 
measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources 
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(expenditures) ra!her than expenses. Expenditures are genera lly recogn ized in the accounting period in 
which the related fund liabilfty is incurred, if mcasur:.ible. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and 
amortization arc not recognized in governmental funds. 

Budgetary Data 

The City's budget represents functional appropriations as authorized by annual or special City Council 
meetings. The City Council may transfer funds between operating categories as they deem necessary. 
The City adopts its budget under State regu lations, which differ somewhat from accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America in that the focus is on the entire governmental unit 
ral"her than on the b11sis o r fund types. 

State law reqtlires balanced budgets but permits the use of beginning fund balance 10 reduce the property 
tax rate. For the year ended June JO, 20 I 3, the City applied $2,178,418 of its unappropriated ftind 
balance to reduce taxes. 

Casi, am/ Cash Equivalents 

The City pools its cash resources for the governmental and proprietary fllnds. Cash applicable to a 
p11rticular fund is reflected as an intcrfund balance. For the purpose of the Statement of Cnsh Flows, cash 
and cash equivalents consist orihe following: 

Proprietary Punds: 
Sewer Pund 
Water Fund 
Nonmajor Enterprise Pund 

Ill veslmenl.\' 

Duefi'om 
other funds 

$ 2,663,685 

$ 2,663,685 

Due to 
other funds Totals 

$ 2,663,685 
$ (855,648) (855,648) 

{28,939) {28,939) 
$ (884,582) $ 1,779,098 

Investments are stated at their lair value in 1111 funds. Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements 
with a maturity of greater than ninety days from the date of issuance Hrc included in in vestments. 

Taxes Receivable 

Taxes levied during the current fi sca l year and prior and uncol lected at June JO, 2013 are recorded as 
receiv11bles net of reserves for estimated uncol lectible taxes of $2,584,976. 

Prepaid Jfrpenses 

Payn1enls 111ade to vendors l'br services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2013 arc recorded as 
prepaid items. 
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On government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower or 
cost or market on a first- in, lirst-out basis and are expensed when used. 

In ventory in governmental funds cons ists of expendable supplies held lbr consumption. The cost of 
inventory items is recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund types when purchased. 

Capital llssel.v 

General capita l assets result from expenditures in the governmenta l funds. These assets are reported in 
the government-wide statement or net position, but are not reported in the governmental f'un<l f'inancial 
statements. 

All capital assets including infrastructure are capitalized at cost (or estimated historica l cost) and updated 
for additions and retirements during the year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair values as of 
the date received. "!'he City 111ai11Lains a capitalization threshold of$ I 0,000. The Ci Ly's infrastructure 
consists of roads, bridges, s idewalks, water purification and distri bution system, sewer col lection and 
treatment system, and similar items. Intangible assets of the City consist of land easements which arc 
reported as non-dcprec ic1ble capitHI assels. Improvements are capitalized; the cosls of normal maintenance 
and repairs tJ,at do not add to the value of tJ1e asset or materia lly extend an asset's lifo are not. lntcrcs{ 
incurred during the construction phase of capilal assets of the business-type activities is also capital izcd. 

All reported capital assets except fot· land, casements with an indefinite lire and construction in process 
are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of' the related capital 
assets. Useful lives for inrrastructure were estimated based on the City's historical records of necessary 
in1provemcnts an<t replacemenl. Depreciation is computed using the straight-I ine method over the 
following useful lives: 

Description 
J11 rras1ruci111·e 
Land i111prove111en1s 
13nildings and improvements 
Vehicles and cquipn,enl 

loss on Debt Refunding 

Years 
10 - 100 
10 - 20 
5 - 100 
J.- 50 

Debt rcfundings that result in a difference between the reacquisition price of old debt and the net carrying 
value of the old debt have been reported in the accompanying fi nancial statcmt:nts as a loss on debt 
refunding. Losses on debt ref'undings are amortized as tl component of interest expense over the 
remain ing life of' the related debt. The balances of the loss on debt refunding as or June 30, 2013 are 
$386,240 and $ l 05, 73 7 in the governmental and business-type activilies, respectively. 

Compensated Absences 

City employees earn vacation, persontll time, co111penst1tory time a11d s iek leave as they provide serv ices. 
Provision is made in the annual budget for vacation, personal time, compensc1tory time and sick leavl!, 
Vacation, personal time and compensatory time accrued in a year (based on anni versary d(-ite) must be 
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taken within tl1e following employment year. Pursuant to the City personnel policy and collective 
bargaining agreements, employees may accumulate (subject lo certain limitations) unused sick leave 
earned and upon severance of employment, will be compensated for such amounts at current rates of pay. 

For governmental fund -financial statements, compensated absences are reported as liabilities and 
expenditures as payments come due each period upon the occurrence of employee death or retirement. 
The entire compensated absence liabi lity is reported on ihc government-wide financial statements. 

Bond Premium:,, 

Bond premiums are amortized as a component or interest expense over the life of the related bond using 
the cffoctivc interest rate method. Bonds payable are reported in the accompHnying finnncial statements 
grc,.1ss of any applicable unamortized bond premit1ms. t he halances of the unamortized bond premiums as 
of June 30, 2013 are $361,905 and $563,362 in the governmental activities and business-type activities, 
respectively. 

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations 

All payables, accroed liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide li nancial 
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities thal, once incurred, are p<1id in 
a timely manner and in full from current resources are reported as obl igations of the funds. However, 
compensated absences that will be paid from governmentc:1l funds are reported as liabi lities in the firnd 
finirncial statemtlnts only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current fiscal year. 
General obi igation bonds and other long-tei'111 oblig!ltions that will be paid ·from governmental funds are 
recognized as a liabil ity in the fund financial statements when due. 

Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources. and liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists or capita l assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances on any borrowings used for the 
acquisition, construction or improvement of !hose assets. Net position is reported as restricted whc11 there 
are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling legislation adopted by lhe City or through 
external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governmcnts. 
Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets 
or the restricted components of net position. 

The City's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which 
both restricted and unrestricted net posi tion is ava ilable, 

Fund Balanc:e Polhy 

The City has implemented GASH Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmen!al Fund 7)1pe 
Definitions. Statement 54 established new fund balance classifications and changed the definition of the 
governmental fl111d types. Under Statement 54, the City has segregated fund balance into five 
classific,itions: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. The components of 
fund balance are defined as fo l lows: 
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• Nonspendab/e Fund Balance: Amounts that arc not in a spend1:1ble form or are required to be 
maintained intact, 

• Restricted Fund Balance: Amounts Lhat can only be spent fo r specific purposes stipulated by 
external resource providers or by enabl ing legislation. Resti•ictions may be changed or lifted only 
with the consent of the external resource providers or the enabling legislation. 

• Committed Fund Balance: Amounts that can be used only for speei fie pmposcs determined by a 
formal action of the City's highest level of decision making authority. Commitments may be 
changed or lifted only by the governing body taking the same formal action that imposed the 
constraint originally. The resolution must either be approved 01· rescinded, as applici:lble, prior to 
the last day or the fisca l year for which the commitment is made. The amount su~ject to the 
constraint may be determined in the subsequent reriod. 

• Assigned Fund Balance: Amounts the Cily intends to use for a specific purpose. For all 
Governmental Funds other than the General r und, any pos itive balances arc t.o be classified as 
"Assigned" , 

• Unassigned Fund Bn/cmce: Amounts that arc not obligated or speci fical ly designated and is 
ava ilable ror any purpose. The residual classification of any General r und ba lance is to be 
reported here. Any deficit fund balance or another governmental fund is also classified as 
''Unassigned". 

The fund balance or the City may only be committed for specific purposes pursuant to f'cmnal action ol' 
the City Manager. The City Council delegates to the City's Finance Director the autholity to assign 
amounts to be used for speci fic pmposes. The City's School Board delegates the authority to assign 
amounts to be used for specific purposes to the Business Ad111 i11 istrator. 

Spending Prioritizations 

The City' s policy is to first ilpply restricted resources when expendit\1res are incurred for purposes for 
wh ich botJ1 restricted and unrestricted Fund balance is ava ilnblc. When expendrtures are incurred fo r 
purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications may be appl ied, 
committed resources are to be appl ied fi rst, fo llowed by assigned amounts and unassigned amounts, 

De ficit Fund Balance 

J\t year end, if any of the City's government.al special revenue funds has a deficit unassigned fund 
balance, the City Manager is authorized to transfer fonds from the General Fund to offset the deficit; 
providing the Genera l Fund has the resources Lo do so. 

Minimum Level or Unassigned Fund Balance 

As recommended by the New Hampshire Department of Revenue Admin istration, the City will strive to 
maintain an unassigned fond balance in its General Fund eqnal to 8- l 5% of total annual appropriations of 
the City (includes City, School Department and County). The City Council has the authority to apply the 
City's beginning unassigned fund balance in order to balance the budget and to reduce the subsequent 
fiscal year property tax rate. 

17 

13 



11 CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

CITY OF l~OC lJl~STER, Nl~W HAMPSHIRE 
NOT€S TO BAS JC FINANC)AL STATEMENTS (CONTJNUED) 
For lhc Year Ended ,June 30, 20B 

Inte1ji11ul Activiry 

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the government-wide statements are 
reported in the same manner as gcnernl revenues. 

Exchange trnnsactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/ 
expenses in the purchaser fonds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another w ithout a reqtlirement 
for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. lnterfund tnmsfers are reported as other financing, 
sources/uses in governmental funds and arter non-operating revenues/expenses in the proprietary funds. 
Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds th;:it initially paid 
fo r them are not presented on the financial statements. 

Oper11ti111: Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues are those revenues that arc generated directly from the primary activity of the 
proprietary funds. For the water fund, sewer fund and arena fund, these revenues are charges to 
customers for sa les and services. Operating expenses, which include depreciation on capita l assets, are 
necessa1y costs incurred to provide the service that is the primaiy activity of the proprietary fund. All 
revenues and expenses nol meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Estimates 

The prepan,tion of financial slclternents in conformity with accounting principles genern lly accepted in the 
Un ited States of America require management to make estimates <lnd assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results may diffe r from those estimates. 
Significant estimates include depreciation expense, the al lowance for uncollec.:tible taxes and the liability 
for other post-employment benefits. 

NOTR 2- PROPERTY TAXES 

Taxes are levied on the assessed valuation of a ll taxable real property as of the prior April I 
($2,004,617,304 11s of Ap1il I, 2012) and arc due in two installments on July 5, 2012 and December 20. 
2012. Taxes paid after the due dates accrue interest at 12% per annum. Property taxes arc recognized as 
revenue when received in cash or if available to finance current period operations (within sixty days of 
year end). 

Under State law, the Tax Collector obtains tax liens on properties which have unpaid taxes in the 
fo llowing calendar year after taxes were due for the amount of unpaid taxes, interest and costs. These 
priority tax liens accrue interest at 18% per annum. If the property is not redeemed within a two year 
redemption period, the properly may be tax deeded to the City. 

In accordance with State law, the City collocts taxes for Strafford County, an independent governmental 
unit, which are remitted to the County as required by law. Total taxes appropriated to Strafford County 
fo r the year ended June 30, 20 13 wc1•e $5,601,590. The City bears responsibility for uncol lected taxes. 
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The City is exposed to various risks of losses related to to11s; theft of, damage to, and destru<.;tion of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries lo employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended .lune JO, 
20 I J, the City participated in public entity risk pools (Trusts) ('or property and liability insurance and 
worker's compensation coverage. Coverage has not been significantly reduced from the prior year and 
settled claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past Lhrec yea rs. 

The Trust agreements permit the Trusts to make additional assessments to members shou ld there be a 
deficiency in Trust assots to meet its liabilities, Accounting principles generally acceptec.l in the United 
States of America requ ire members of pools with a sharing of risk to determine whether or not such 
assessment is probab le and, if so, a re1:1sonable estimate of such assessment. At this lime, the Trusts 
foresee no likelihood of an additional assessment for any of the past years. Claims expenditures and 
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be 
reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate. of clf1 ims that have been incurred but not 
reported. Based on the best available information there is no liabi lity at .lune 30, 2013. 

Property amt Liability lnsumnce 

The Trust provides certain property and liabi lity insurance coverage to member towns, cities, and other 
qualified politil:al subdivisions of New Hampshire. As a member of the Trust, the City shares in 
contributing to the cost of and receiving bene fit from a self-insured pooled risk management program. 
The program includes a Self-Insured Retention Fund from which is paid up to $500,000 for each and 
every covered property, crime and/or I iabil ity loss that exceeds $ I ,000, up to an aggregate o r $5,000,000. 
Each property loss is subject' to a $ 1,000 deductible. All losses over the aggregate are covered by 
insurance policies. 

Worker's Compe11,w,tio11 

The Trust provides statutory worker's compensation coverage to member towns, cities, and other 
qualified political subdivis ions of New Hampshire. The Tl'ust is self-sustaining through annual member 
premiums and provides coverage for the slatulorily required workers' compensation benefits and 
employer's liability coverage up to $2,000,000. The program includes a Loss Fund from which is paid up 
to $500,000 for eaeh and every covered claim. 

NOTE 4-DEPOSITS AND INVF:STMENTS 

The Cily has combined the cash resources of its governmental and proprietary fund types. For accounting 
and reporting purposes, that po11ion of the pooled cash balance is reported in the specific fund as an 
interf'und balance. 

Deposits and investments as of June JO, 2013 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as 
follows: 
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Statement or net position: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Statement of fiduciary net position: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
lnvcstments 

Total deposits and investments 

Deposits and investments as of June 30, 20 I J consist of the fol lowing: 

Cash on hand 

Deposits with financial institutions 
Investments 

Total deposits and investments 

$ 28,266,072 
8, l 30,178 

222,624 
1,9 18,27 1 

$ 38,537,145 

$ 5,275 
34,533,093 

3,998,777 
$ 38,537, 145 

The City's investment policy for governmentHI and business-type funds requires tha1 deposits and 
investments be made in New Hampsh ire based financia l institutions that are participants in one of the 
federal depository insurance programs. The City limits its investments to demtind deposits, money 
market accounts, certificates of deposit, and repurchase agreements in accordance with New Hampshire 
State law (RSA 4 l :29) or the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool (NI IPDIP), an external 
investment pool. Responsibility for the investments of the Trust Funds is with the Board of Trustees. 
Investments. of the Student Activities Agency funds are at the discretion of the School Principals, 

Interest Rate Risk 

Jntercst rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fai r w1l11c of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity or an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its foir va lue 
to changes in market interest rates. The City's investrnent pol icy For its govei-nmental and proprietary 
funds regarding interest rate risk indicates that investments shall be limited to those with maturity dates 
that meet projected cash flow needs or one year, whiche;ver is sho1ter. The Trustees of Trust funds do not 
have 11 pol icy regarding interest rate risk. Information about the sensitivity or the fai r values of the City's 
investments to market interest rate fluctuat ions is provided by the fol lowing table that shows the 
distribution or investments by maturity: 

Investment Type 
US Treasury not.cs 
Government agency bonds 
Municipal obligations 
Corporate bonds 

Credit Ri.\·k 

Totals 
$ 63, JOO 

62,991 
42,332 

336,667 
.$ 505,090 

Remaining Maturity (in Years) 

0- l Years 1-5 Years > 5 Years 

$ 51 ,423 

55,299 

.$ I 06,722 

$ 63,1 00 
l,378 

26,472 
189,523 

$ 280,473 

$ 10,190 
15,860 
91,845 

$ 117,895 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer or an investment will not fulfill its obl igation to the holder 
of the investment. This is measured by the assignment or a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. 
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The City's investment policy addresses credit risk by limiting investments to the safest types of securities 
and diversify ing the investn1cnt po11 fo lio. With the exception of U.S. Treasury notes, U.S. Government 
Agency obligations, and the New Hampshire Public Deposit Investment Pool, no more than 75% or the 
City's total investment portfo lio wi ll be invested in a single security type or with a so litary fi nancial 
institution. The Tnistees of Trust Funds do not have a policy regarding credit risk. The fo llowing is the 
actual rating as of year end fo r each investment ty pe: 

Investment Type 
Government agency bonds 
Municipal obl igations 
Corporate bonds 
Mutual funds 
Money markel fu nds 

Total Fail- Value 

Custodial Credit Ri.\·k 

Totals 
$ 62,991 

42,332 
336,667 
192,660 
202,1 12 

$ 836,762 

Aaa 
$62.991 

$62,991 

Rating as of Year End 
/j_ Ba Baa 

$42,332 
33,291 $ 200,459 $ 14,926 $ 87,991 

$75,623 $ 200,459 $ 14,926 $ 87,991 

Nol Rated 

$ 192,660 
202,1 12 

$ 394,772 

Custodial cred it risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank fa ilure, tl1e City's deposits may not 
be returned. 'fhe custodial credit risk for investments is the risk tJ1at, in the event or the failu re of the 
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or 
collateral securities that are in the possessiM of another party. In accordance with the City's investment 
policy, all security lrnnsact ions must be secured by col lateral having a value at least equ1:1 I to the amount 
o r such funds. The col latera l slu1JI only consist of securities in which Cities may invest, as 1wovided in 
New Hampshire State law (RS/\ 368:57). The Trustees of Trusl' Fu11ds do not have a pol icy regarding 
custodial credit risk . 

Of the Cily's deposits with fi nancial insti t11tions HI year end, $34,403,872 was collateralized by securities 
held by the bank in the bank's name. 

As of June 30, 20 13, City investments in the following investment' types were held by the sa111c 
counterparty that was used to buy the securities: 

Investment Tym;_ 
US Treasury notes 
Government agency bonds 
Municipal obligations 
CorporaLe bo11ds 
Equity securities 
Foreign equity securi ties 
Mutual fl1 nds 
Money market funds 
Repurchase agreement 

21 

Reported 
Amount 

$ 63,100 
62,99 1 
42,332 

336,667 
1,047,419 

50,249 
192,660 
202, 112 

2,001,247 

$ 3,99~777 
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For the Year l~nded .June 30, 2013 

Foreign Currency Ri.'i'k 

Po reign currency risk is the risk lhat changes in foreign exchange rales wi ll adversely affect the fair 
values of an investment or deposit. As of June 30, 20 13, the City held $50,249 in foreign equity 
securities. The City and the Trustees of Trust Funds Jo not have an investment pol icy for assurance 
against fore ign currency risk. 

NOTE 5-DUE FROM OTHER GOVl~RNMENTS 

Receivables due from other governments al June 30, 2013 consist of various state and federal funding and 
other reimbursements. Al l receivables are considered collectible in fu ll. The state aid grant 
reimbursements of the business-type activities are received over the li fe of the related debt and as such, 
are classified as current and noncurrent. A summary of the principa l items of intergovernmental 
receivables is as fo llows: 

Govc.rnmcnt·at activities: 
Comm~mily Development Block Gnmts 
State and Federal public safoty grants 
School lunch program 
Stale and F<::deral educarion grants 
State of New Hampshire - Department ofTranspo1tation 
State or New Hampshire - State revolvlng fltnds 
Stale of New Hampshire - Department of Environmental Services 

Busincss-ty 1>c i1ctivities: 
State of New Hampshire - State revolving funds 
State or New Harnpshirn - Stale Aid Grants 
EPA STAG grant 
OthL\J" miscellaneous grants and reimbursements 

NOTE 6-CAPlTAL ASSETS 

$ 34,970 
169,532 
99,220 

546,416 
137,882 

1,968 

5,400 

25,281 
2,397,519 

31, 171 
7,465 

$ 3,456,824 

The following is a summary of changes in capita l assets in the govern menial funds: 

13alancc 
7/1/2012 Additions Reductions 

Govcrnmcnlal ac1ivi1ics: 
Capital ass1.:ts not tkiprccialccl: 

Land $ 7.6.18,796 .$ 701.672 $ (33 5.843) $ 

Easements l ,067,330 354,920 
Construclion in process 4,532,162 3,296,435 (%5,482) 

Total capilal assets not being dcprccialcd I J,2 l 8,288 4,353,027 ( l ,301,325) 

Other c11pi(nl assets: 
I 11 fras1n1c1 urc 140,398,3 16 855,382 

Land i111prnvc1'llent~ 5.385, I 38 Hl7,517 

l'iuildings 1111d i111prove111cnts 64,404,787 795,5911 

Vehicles and equipment 15,%2,578 1,416,307 

Total olhcr capitul asscls !II hislorical cost 226.150,819 3,214,800 

22 

Bulancc 

6/30/2013 

7.98~.625 

1,422,250 
C,,863, I 15 

I (,,269,990 

141.253,698 

5,532.655 

65.200.381 
17.378.885 

229,365,6 I 9 



CITY OF ROCl·rnST.F,R, NF,W MAMPSIIlRI~ 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN UIW) 
For the Year Ended .J une 30, 2013 

l.css acct1111ulaIcd depreciation lbr; 

lnlh1~tructun: (98.890,3 53) 
l ,llnd improvc111cnts (3,087,342) 

nuildings n11d improvcmcnl~ (22,548.479) 

Vehicle~ and cquipmcnl ( 10,209.08'1) 

Total acc11111uh1tcd ,kprcci11tlrn1 ( 134,735,25_8) 

'J'otttl other capi tal assets, nc1 91 ,il I 5,5fi1 

Totol capital nsscl~. net $ 104,633.849 

Depreciation was charged to functions as fo llows: 

General government 

Public safety 
I fighways and streets 

Culture and recreation 
Community services 

Educat ion 

Food service 

(3,324.931) 

( 191 ,528) 
( 1,266.307) 
( l,l27A91I) 
(5,910.260) 
(2,695.1.@) 

$ 1,657,567 

Total governmental activities depreciation expense 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

$ (1 ,301,325) 

$ 262,388 
517,022 

3,582,61 1 
53,94 1 
21,549 

I ,ti 55,8511 
16,895 

$ 5,9 10,260 

$ 

( 102.2 I 5.2811 ) 

(3.278,870) 
(23,814.786) 
( I 1,33(,,578) 

( I 40,645,518) 
88,720, l O I 

I 04,990.09 1 

The fo l lowing is a summary of changes in capital assets in the proprietary funds: 

Balnnce Balance 

7/1/20 12 Autlil it>!l.S Rctltll:tions 6/30/2013 

Bu~iness-lype nctivit ic~: 

Cttpitul asset not <lcprecintccl: 

Lum! $ 3.1180,989 $ 3.480.989 
Constrnetion In process I 2,'136,323 $ 3,275.846 $ (3,035,612) 12,676,557 

Tti111l capi tol assets Mt being dcprecintcd __ 15,9 17,312 3,275,l:M6 (3,035,612) 16, 157,546 

Other capit,d assets: 

lnlh1strnctu1·c 45,093,957 728.3 19 45.822,276 
Limd improvl.lments 53,600 53.600 
Bui ldings and improvements 1JS,\)48,8iW 1.923,349 ~7.872.229 
Vchiclcs nnd uquipmcn( 6,709,27 1 423,365 7,132.636 

Total other capital assets ul hlsl()rical cost 97,805,708 3,075,033 I 00,880,711 I 

l.css aceumulutccJ deprccintion lor: 
I 11 rrnstntcturc ( 13,652.631) (852,1135) ( I IJ,505.0CiO) 

I.and improvements ( 4 ,J ,600) (2,000) ('16.600) 

Builtl i I1gs and improvements ( 17,235,793) ( 1.01'1,281) ( I R.250,074) 
Vehicles nn<I equipment (3,468,0 I 5) (339,523) (3,807,538) 

'J otnl ncc11mu l,11cd clcprccia1lon __ (]11,1101,039) (2,208,239) (36,609,278) 

folu l othcr capital nssi:ls, nc1 63,110~,669 866,7911 64.27 1,463 

Total cnpitnl assets. net $ 79.321.981 $ II, 1112,6110 $ {3,035,6 12) $ 80,429~ 

DepreciMion was ehargcd Lo propriettiry funds as follows: 
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Sewer fu nd 
Water fund 
Non major enterprise fund 
Total business-type activities depreciation expense 

NOTF, 7-DEFINEI) BENF,FIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan Descriplion 

$ l , 102,561 
1,040,790 

64,888 

$ 2,208,239 

The City contribut'es lo the New Hampshire Retirement System (NI-IRS), a cost-sharing, 111ultiple­
e111ployer, defined benefit pension plan administrated by the NHRS Board of Trustees. The plan provides 
service, disability, death and vested retiremen1 allowances to plan members and beneficiaries, Benefit 
proviidons at·e established and may be amended by the New Hampshire State legislature. The NHRS 
issues a publicly available financia l report that includes linancic1I statements and required supplementary 
informntion fQr NI-IRS. Thal report may be obtained by writing lo New Hampshire Retirement System, 
54 Regiona l Drive, Concord, New I lampshirc 03301. 

Funding Policy 

Covered police officers and lire employees are required to contribute 11.55% And 11.80%, respectively, 
or their covered salary, whereas teachers and general employees are required to contribute 7.0% or their 
covered salary. The City is required ro contribute at an actuarial ly determined ralc. 'l'he City's Cl)lltribution 
rates for the covered payrol l of police ofJiccrs, fire ernployel::!S, tcach<.:rs, and gencrnl employees were 
19.95%, 22.89%, 11 .30% and 8.80%, respectively. The City cont1'ibutes I 00% cir the employer cost for 
po lice orfieers, fi re employees, teachers, and general ernployees or the City. 

Under State law (RSA-I 00: 16), plan member contribution rntes are est<1bl ished and may be amended by 
the New I lampsh irc State legislature and employer contribution rates are determined by the NHRS Board 
or Trustees based on an actuarial valuation. The City's contTibutions to the N HRS fo r the years ending 
.lune 30, 2013, 20 12 c1ncl 201 l were $4,943,244, $4,9 14,886, and $3,843,369, respectively, equal to Lhe 
required contributions fo r each year. 

NOTE 8- 0THER POST-1!:MPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

In addition to provid ing pension benefits, the City provides postretirement medical benefits to its ret ired 
employees and their spouses, The following groups of retirees qualify for this benefit. Group 1 consists 
of general employees and teachers who are required to reach ag,e 50 wil'h IO years of service, tho rule of 
70 with 20 years or service or age 60 with no service requirement to qualil·y for this benefil. Group I 
employees who are members of the New Hampshire Retirement System and hired on or after Jury I. 2011 
an: required lo reach age 60 with 30 years of service or age 65 with no service requirement. Group II 
consists of pol ice officers and /'ire fighters who are required to reach age 45 with 20 years of service or age 
60 with no service requirement lo qualify for this benefi t. Group II employees who arc members of the 
New I lampshire Retirement System and hired on or after July I, 201 1 arc required lo reach age 50 with 
25 years or service or age 60 with no service requirement. Retirees pay the f'u 11 cosl of the health care 
coverage. The benefits, benefit levels, cmplc>yce contributions and employer contributions are governed 
by RSJ\ 100-A:50. J\s of' July I, 2012, the most recent fi.111 actuarial valuation date, approx inrnlely 59 
retirees and 704 active employees meet the eligib ility requirements. The plan does not issue a separate 
financia I reporl. 
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A1111ual OPEB Cosfr 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

The City's fiscal ycHr 2013 annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual required contribution 
of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters or G/\SB 
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level or runding that, if paid, on an ongoing, basis, is projected to 
cover the normal cost each year and amortize the unfunded actuarial liability over a period of thirty years. 
The City's annual OP E8 cost for the year ending June 30, 2013 including the amount actually contributed 
to the plan, and the change in the City's net OPEB obligation is as fo llows: 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on Net OPED obligation (NOO) 
NOO amortization adjustment to /\RC 

Annual OPEl3 cost 
Contributions made 

Increase in Net OPEB obligution 
Net OPEl3 obligation - beginning of year 
Net OPEl3 obligation - end of year 

$ 1,269,757 
127,174 

(120,457) 
1,276,474 
(406,199) 
870,275 

2,826,09 1 
$ 3,696,366 

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annua l OPGB cost contributed 10 the plan, and the net 
OPEB obligation for the years ending June 30, 2013, 20 l 2 aml 2011 arc as follows: 

Fiscal Pcrccntagc of 
Year l\11nua1 OPEB Cost· Net OPEil 

Ended OPED Cost Contributed Obligation 
6/30/2013 $ 1,276,474 31 .8% $ 3,696,366 

6/30/2012 $ I, 157,009 47.0% $ 2,826,091 

6/30/201 l $ 1,296,988 38.8% $2,213,078 

The City's net OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2013 is recognized as a liability in these financial 
statements. 

Funded Status 1111(/ Funding Pragressp,r OPEB 

The fonded status of the plan as or July I, 20l 2, the date of the tnost recent full actuarial vr1luation, is as 
follows: 

Actuarial Accrued Lic1bili1y (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan assets 

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (U/\/\L) 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ A/\L) 
Covered payroll (active plan rncrnbcrs) 
U/\AL as a percentage of covered payroll 

$ 11,803,85 r 

$ 11 ,803,85 I 

0.0% 
NIA 
NIA 

Actuarial va luations involve estimates of the value of repo11ed amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of event s in the future. The total cost of provid ing post-employment benefits is pr~jected, 
taking into account assL1111plions about current claim cost, turnover, mortal ity, health care trends, aml 
other actuarial assumptions. Amounts determined regard ing the funded status or the plan and the anm1al 
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required contributions of the employer are subject to continual rev ision as actual results are compared to 
pas! expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress 
prcsc11tcd as required supplementary information prov ides multi-year trend in formation that shows 
whether the actuarial va lue of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabil ity for benefits. 

Actuarial M ethod.,; 011d Ass11mptio11s.f'or OPEB 

Projections of benefi ts for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as understood by the City 
and the plan members and include the types of benefits prnvided al the time of each valuation and !he 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the City and plan members to that point. Actuarial 
culculations rencct a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to 
reduce short-lerm volati lity in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value or assets. 

For the July l, 2012 actuarial valuation the Projected Unit Cred it cost method \¥HS used with linear 
proration to decrement. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the City has not advance 
funded its obl igation. The City employs the Pay-as-you-go Cash Basis to fu nd the plan. The actuarial 
assumptions included a 4.5% investment rnte of return and an inflation rate of 3.0%. The initial annual 
healthcare cost trend rate used was 9.0% which decreases to a 5.0%> long-term rnte for all healthcare 
benefits after eight years. The amortization costs for the initial Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Li,1bi lity 
( UAAL) is a level percentage or puyroll over a period of thirty years on an open group basis. This has 
be<.:n calcu lated assuming the arnorti1 .. ation payment inCJ'cases at a rate or 3.0% per year. 

NOTE 9-GENERAL DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

Changes in Long-Term Obligations 

The changes in the City's long-term debt obl igations for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

I3aJancc Bc1lance Due Within 
7/1/2012 Additions Reductions 6/30/20 !3 One Yea1· 

Government-al activities: 
Bonds payable $ 44, 159,266 $ 3,896,698 $ (8,282,643) $ 39,773,32 1 $ 4,771,04! 

Unamortized bond pren1ium 277,966 110,975 ~27,036) 361 ,905 39,66 I 
Total Bonds payable 44.437,232 4,007,673 (8,309.679) 40.135,226 4,810,702 
C,1pital leases payable 158,361 158,361 32,250 
Other long-term obligations 475,983 248,163 724, 146 
Compensated absences payable 998, 189 465,479 (334,769) 1,128,899 250,202 

Total governmental actiVi1 ies $45,911,404 $ 4,879,676 $ (8,644,448) $42,146,632 $ 5,093,154 

Business-type activities: 
Bonds payab le $ 29,834,557 $ 14,044,906 $(13, 137,398) $ 30,742,065 $ 2,733,930 

Unamortized bond premium __ 30,401 535,538 _ ~2,577) 563,362 97,05 I 
To!c1I Bonds payable 29,864,958 14,580,444 (13,139,975) 31 ,305,427 2,830,981 
Other long-term obligations 6,186,844 556,871 (5,426,604) 1,317, 111 
Compensated c1bscnces payable 15,755 p,065) 12,690 

Total busincss-lypc activities $ 36,067,557 $ 15, 137,315 $(18,569,644) $ 32,635,228 $ 2,830,981 
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Payments on the general obligation bonds, capital leases and other long-term obi igations of the 
governmental activities are pa id (JUI of the General Fund. Payments on th<;i general obligation bonds and 
other long-term obligations or the business-type activities are paid out or the Sewer, Water und Arena 
Funds. Amortization or the governmental adivities bond premiums is recognized as a component of 
interest expense on !he Statement of Activities (Exhibit 13). Amo11ization or the busi11css-typc activities 
bond premiums is recognized as a compo ne n t o f in terest expense in the Sewer, Wate r and Arena Fund, us 
applii.:~1ble, on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Propri etary funds 
(Cxhibit F). Compensated absences will be pa id from the fund where the employee's salary is pa id. 

General Ot,Jigation 8011</!i 

Governmental Activities 

l3onds payable at June 30, 1013 are comprised of the following individual issues: 

1995 Series bond issue 
1996 Series bond issue 
1997 Series bond issue 
1998 Series /\ 
2002 Series bond issue 
2004 Series bond issue 
2005 Series bond issue - 20 year 
2005 Series bond issue - 15 year 
2005 Series bond issue - IO year 
2005 Series bond issue - Honeywel I 
2005 QZ/\13 
Refinancing b1rnds 2007 - 13 year 
2008 Series bond issue - 20 year 
2008 Series bond issue - I O year 
2008 Series bond issue - I O year 
2008 Series/\ NI IMBB - 20 year 
20 IO Series bond issue - 5 year 
20 I O Series bond issue ~ ! 0 year 
20 IO Series bond issue - 20 year 
20 12 Series B bond issuu - 20 year 
20 12 Series. A bond issue - 20 year 
20 12 Series A bond issue - IO year 
20 l J Series A - Refunding 2004 bonds 

Original 
Issue 

Amount 
$ 2,440,000 

I, 197,000 
1,320,000 
1,779,000 
6,383,000 

l 1,169,735 
3,724,700 

285,000 
2,144,568 
9,611,575 
1.382,9 I 0 
3,670,314 
9,593,958 

315,380 
2,631,970 

(592,995 
171,291 

1,990,997 
2,863,883 
5,000,000 
2,197,541 

160,747 
3,896,698 

$ 74,623,262 

Interest 
Rate 

5.25-5.625% 
5.625-.5.75% 
4.70-5.30% 
3.90-4.75% 
4.25-4.70% 
3.10-4.75% 
4.0-4.40% 
4.0-4.25% 
4.0-4.25% 
4.0-4.25% 

0% 
5.50-5.80% 

3.0-5.0% 
5 ,25-6.50% 

3.0-5.0% 
4.0-5.25% 
2.0-2.25% 
2.0-3.25% 
2.0-4.0% 
1.0-3.25% 
2.0-3.0% 
2.0-3.0% 
2.0-3.0% 

Flnal 
Maturity 

Date 
/\ ugust 2015 
August 2016 
August 2017 
August 2018 
August 2022 

July 2024 
January 2026 
January 2021 
January 20 16 
January 20 16 

December 2020 
August 2020 

fobrua1y 2028 
Pcbruary 20 18 
rebruary 20 18 
August 2028 
January 2015 
January 2020 
January 2030 
March 2032 
March 2032 
March 2022 
My 2024 

Add: Unwnorlized hand premiu111s 

Totals 

Balance at 
6/30/13 

$ 360,000 
224,000 
325,000 
457,561 

3, 133,000 
1,490,000 
2,395,000 

145,000 
630,000 

2,880,000 
737552 

2,785,507 
7,181,201 

157,125 
1,312,309 

555,000 
65,485 

1,376,079 
2,441,304 
5,000,000 
2,080,500 

145,000 
3,896,698 

39,773,32 1 
361,905 

$ 40,135,226 

Debt service requirements lo retire general ob ligation bonds o utsHmding at June 30.20 13 are as fol lows; 
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Year E11ding 
Juile30, Princigal Interest 

20)4 $ 4,771,041 $ I ,363,571 
2015 4,748,745 l , 198,855 
20 16 4,344.186 1,031,696 
2017 3,040,481 877,467 
2018 2,97 1,515 765,132 

2019-2023 11 ,2 19,575 2,540,0 19 
2024-2028 6,551,877 1,008,449 
2029-2032 2,125,901 158,852 

Sub-total Bonds payable 39,773,321 8,944,041 
i\cld: Unamortized bond prerniwns 361 ,905 

Total Bonds payable $ 40,135,226 $ 8,944,04 I 

Total 
$ 6,134,612 

5,947,600 
5,375,882 
3,917,948 
3,736,647 

13,759,594 
7,560,326 
2,284,753 

48,717,362 
361,905 

$ 49,079,267 

As included on the Statement of Activities (Exhibit B) as 'Debt service' expense, interest expense for the 
year ended June 30,201 J was $1,638,980 on general obi igation debt fo r the governmental activities. 

Business-type Activities 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2013 are comprised of the fo llowing individual issues: 

Original 
lssue Interest Maturity Balance al 

/\mount Rate Date 6/30/ 13 
1996 Ser1cs bond issue $ 280,000 5 .625-5. 75%i August 2016 $ 56,000 
1998 Series i\ 871 ,000 3.90-4.75% i\ugust 201 8 322,440 
2002 Series bond issue 2,253,000 4.25-4.70% August 2022 1,078,000 
2004 Series bond issue 2,181 ,000 3. 10-4.75% July 2024 220,000 
2005 Series bond issue 261,015 4.0-4.40% January 2026 155,000 
2005 Stare Revolving loan 716,020 3. 18% January 2015 143,204 
2006 State Revolving loan 879,685 3.488% August 2025 571,796 
2007 State Revolving loan 341,373 3.352% July 2027 275,845 
2007 State Revolving loan 483,988 3.352% September 2026 348,251 
Refinancing bonds 2007 - 13 year 809,685 S.50-5.80% August 2020 614,493 
2008' Series bond issue - 20 year 5,536,042 3.0-5.0% February 2028 4,143,799 
2008 Series bond issue - 10 year 1,079,620 S.25-6.50% February 2018 537,875 
2008 Series bond issue - 1 0 year 948,029 3.0-5.0% February 2018 472,691 
2009 Stale Revolving loan 1,852,387 3.688% December 2027 1,389,290 
2009 State Revolving loan 1,335, 120 3.488% August 2028 1,068,096 
2010 State Revolving loan 627,000 2 .952% February 2029 509, I 88 
2010 Series bond issue - 5 year 10 1,663 2.0-2.25% January 2015 38,866 
20 IO Series bond issue - IO year 852,568 2.0-3.25% January 2020 674,32 1 
20 IO Series bond issue - 20 year 3,240,757 2.0-4.0% January 2030 2,803,944 
20 11 Round Pond Land Purchase 375,000 0% January 2030 262,500 
20 12 State Revolving loan - 010-05 l,997,523 2 .864% December 2030 1,890,270 
201 2 Series A bond issue - 20 year 946,7 11 2,0-3.0% March 2032 914,500 
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2013 State Revolving loan - 0 I 0-07 
2013 Slate Revolving loan - 122-1 I 

2013 State Revolving loan - 122-09 
2013 Series [3 - Refunding SR r, bonds 
2013 Series A - Refunding 2004 bonds 

3,38 1,909 
1,398,348 

646,346 
7,480,000 
1.138,302 

$ 42,014,091 

3.104% 
2.72% 
3.104% 

2.0-4.0% 
2.0-3 ,0% 

September 2031 
February 2032 

July 2031 
August 2020 

July 2024 

1,690,935 
1,328,430 

614,029 
7,480,000 
I , 138,302 

30,742,065 

Add: Unamortized bond premiums 

Totals 

563,362 
$ 3 l ,305,427 

Debt serv ice reqo irements to retii'e genernl obligation bonds outstand ing, net of principa l forgiveness 
from the State of New Hampshire to be forgiven over a period of 10 to 20 years rrom the start of the 
individual State Revolving Loan Funds of$412,884 at June 30, 2013 are as fol lows: 

Year Ending 
June 30. Principal Interest Total 

2014 $ 2,733,930 $ 958,099 $ 3,692,029 
2015 2,722,510 920,751 3,643,261 
2016 2,627,624 837,011 3,464,635 
2017 2,627,876 7S0,256 3,378,132 
2018 2,593,51 S 663,131 3,256,646 

2019-2023 9,533,033 2,171,358 I f,704,391 
2024-2028 5,624,150 907,278 6,531,428 
2029-2032 I 1866,S43 125,572 1,992,115 

30,329,I 8 1 7,333,456 37,662,637 
Add: Principal forgiveness 412,884 412,884 

Sub-total Bonds payable 30,742,065 7,333,456 38,075,521 
Add: Unamortized bond premiums 563,362 563,362 

Total Bonds payable $ 31,305,427 $ 7,333,456 $ 38,638,883 

The State of New I Jarnpshire annually reimburses the City for its share of sewer related debt service 
payments. For the year ended June 30, 20 13, the reimbursement was $406,085. 

As included on the Statement or Revent1es, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
(Exhibit F), interest expense ror the year ended June 30, 2013 was $1,324,957 on general obligation debt 
fo1· business-type act ivities. Interest incurred for the year ended June 30, 2013 of the business-type 
activities in the amount of $5,317, was capitalized during the construction phase of capital assets. 

Capital Lease Obligations 

Capital lease obi igations represent lease agreements entered into for the !1nancing of equipment 
acq u is it ions. These contracts llre subject to cancellation should fonds not be appropriated to meet 
payment ob ligations. A mounts are annually budgeted in the applicable fonct ion. The fo llowing is the 
individual capital lease obl igation of the governmental activities at June 30, 2013: 

O!licc equipment, due in annual insHlilmcnts 01' $33,668, 

including interest of2.68%, through /\ugus~ 2017 
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$ 158,361 
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2 CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

CITY OF ROCIIESTl~R, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
NOTI•:S T O BASIC FIN ANCIAL STATEMl<:NTS (CONTINlflW) 
For t'hc Y ear li:ndcd ,June 30, 2013 

Debt service requirements to retire capital lease obligations outstanding fo r governmental activities at 
June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Other l ong-Term Obligations 

Principal 
$ 32,250 

30,288 
31, JOO 
31,934 
32,789 

$ 158,361 

Interest 
$ 1,41 8 

3,380 
2,568 
1,734 

879 

$ 9,979 

Toti,I 
$ 33,668 

33,668 
33,668 
33,668 
33,668 

$ 168,340 

The City has drawn $2,041 ,257 of approximately $3,285,000 in funds under the State of New Hampshire 
Water Pollution Control and Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund Programs for various 
improvement projects for the Washington Street Phase IV Sewer and Water Main Upgrades and the 
Route 125 Pumping Station Upgrade. Payments are not scheduled to commence until the first anniversary 
of the scheduled completion dates of the related projects or the date of substantial completion, whichever 
is earliest. Interest is accrued at I% during the construction period of'the project and is to be paid upon 
completion of the construction project within the following year. Total funding tC> date of $724,146 and 
$1,317, I 11 has been l'cported as ' Other long-term obligations' in the governmental and business-type 
activ ities, respectively. 

t\s authorized by the American Recovery and Rei nvestment Act, the City shall be provided federal 
financial assistirnce for the Washington Street Phase IV Sewer Upg1·adc and Washing1on Street Phase IV 
Water Main Upgrade projects, whereby a portion of Lhe principal sum, not to exceed $I, 102,500 and 
$230,000, respectively, or 50% of aggregate disbursements, whichever is less, will be forgiven. The 
principal forgiveness will be applied at the time of the initial loan repayment. 

Additionally, as authorized by the Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund Program, the City shall be 
provided federal financia l assistance for the Route 125 Pump Station Upgrade, whereby a portion of the 
principtil sum, 1101 to exceed $136,250 or 25% of aggregate disbursements, whichever is less, will be 
forgiven. T he principal forgiveness will be applied at the time o f the initil-11 loan repayment. 

A uthorized tuul Onissued Debi 

The fol lowing debt was autl10rized and unissued as of June JO, 20 13: 

Purpose 
Governmental Funds: 

City General FY 2004 Authorized 
City General FY 2005 Authorized 
City General FY 2006 Authorized 
City Gcmiral FY 2007 Authorized 
City General FY 2008 Authorized 
City General FY 2009 Authorized 

$ 

30 

Amount 

4 l,840 
301,496 
241,795 

I, I 87,300 
200,000 

1,950,000 

Total 



CITY OF ROCHESTER, NILW HAMl">SHIRE 
NOTES TO BASIC Ji'JNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
Fo r the Year Ended Ju ne 30, 2013 

Governmental Funds (continued): 
City Gencrnl FY 20 IO Authorized 
City General FY 20 11 Authorized 
City General FY 2012 Authorized 
City General FY 20 l3 Authorized 
School FY 2008 Authorized 
School PY 2009 Authorized 
School FY 2011 Authorized 
School PY 2012 Authorized 
School FY 2013 Authorized 

Total Governmental Funds 
Business-type Funds: 

Sewer FY 2004 Authorized 
Sewer FY 2005 Authorized 
Sewer FY 2007 Authorized 
Sew1::r FY 2008 Authorized 
Sewer FY 2009 Authorized 
Se~ver FY 20 JO Authorized 
Sewer FY 2011 Authorized 
Sewer FY 2012 Authorized 
Sewer FY 2013 Authorized 
Water FY 2003 Authorized 
Water 1-'Y 2004 Authorized 
Water 17Y 2005 Authorized 
Water FY 2006 Authorized 
Water r,y 2007 ALllhor•ized 
Water PY 2008 Authorized 
Water FY 2009 Authorized 
Water FY 20 JO Authorized 
Water FY 20 11 Authorized 
Water l; Y 2012 Authmized 
Water FY 2013 Authorized 

Total Business-type Funds 
Combining Tota l 

A)l{1i/able Debt Margin 

1,460,000 
758,6 16 

3,224,058 
2,900,000 

275,000 
50,000 

435,000 
368, 155 
736,000 

109,926 
379,370 
651,322 

10,000 
1,780,000 

575,000 
725,000 

1, 129,575 
3,688,018 

146,000 
150,000 

2,477 
258,160 
269,811 
J 36,574 

1,224,0 19 
I 00,000 

1,275,000 
2,7 19,900 
2,453,650 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

$ 14, 129,260 

17,783,802 
$31,913,062 

The Crty is subject to State statute which limits debt outstand ing Lo a percentage (dependent upon 
purpose) of a valuMion calcLdation made annual ly by the State. As of June 30, 2013, the Cily had the 
fol lowing available debt margins: 

% or Assessed Statutory Net Debt Available Authorized Available 
Va[11ation Limit Outstanding, Debt Margin and Unissucd Debt Limit 

School 7.0% $ 14 1,922,490 $ I 0,903, I 08 $13 1,019,382 $ 1,864,1 55 $ 129, 155,227 
Water 10.0% $202,746,4 13 $ 13,843,439 $ 188,902,974 $ 8,735,59 1 $180,167,383 
Al l other 3.0% $ 60,823,924 $ 24,7 12,958 $ 36,110,966 $ 12,265,105 $ 23,845,861 

Per State law, debt incu rred ror sewer expansion is not included in the limi1alion calculations. 

3 1 
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CITY OF ROCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATE MENTS (CONTINUED) 
For the Year l~ndccl June 30, 2013 

Overlapping Debt 

The City's proportionate share of debt of other governmental un its which provide services with in the 
City's boundaries, and which nrnst be borne hy the resources of the City, is summarized below 
(unaudited): 

Related Entitv 
Strafford County 

Total 
.Erincipal 

$ 16,210,000 

City's 
Percent 

20.5 189% 

City's 
Share 

$ 3,326,114 

This liabi lity is appropriately not reported in the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 10-RlWUNlHNG OF DEBT 

Current Rejimding 

During the year ending .lune 30, 2013, the City issued $7,480,000 of general obligation bonds in the 
Sewer runt! lo affect u current refund ing for $7,693,026 of outstanding bonds (old debt). Net refunding 
proceeds of $7,952,042 were used to retire old debt principa I of $7,693,026, old debt interest of $222,684, 
cover bond issuance costs of $35,861, with additiona l proceeds of $471 . As a result, this old debt is 
considered to be defeased, and the liabi lity for those outstanding bonds has been removed from the 
Statement of Net Position. 

The current refunding of debt resulted in an economic gain of $502,464. The City in effect, reduced its 
aggregate debt service payments by $530,524 over the next eight years through the current refund ing. 

Advance Re.f,mding 

During the yeal' ending June 30, 2013, the City issued $5,035,000 or genernl obligation bonds in the 
Governmental Activities ($3,896,698), the Sewer Fund ($873 ,581) and the Water l~und ($264,72 1) to 
advance refund $4,755,000 of outstanding bonds (old debt) in the Governmental Activities ($3,680.000), 
the Sewer fund ($825,000) and the Water f und ($250,000). Net refunding proceeds of $5,153, 154 were 
used to cover bond issuance costs of$24, 139, additional proceeds of $3,074 and the remaining balance or 
$5, 125,941 was placed into an irrevocable tn1st (restricted refunding escrow account) to provide for 
retirement of the old debt with a cal I dale of July 15, 2014. As a resu l!, this old debt is considered to be 
defeased, and the liability fo r those outstanding bonds has been removed from the Statement of Net 
Position. Accordingly, the irrevocable trust account assets and the liabilities for the defeased bonds are 
not included in the City's financial st1,1tcmcnts. 

The advance refunding of debt resu ltcd in an economic gain of $466,754. The City in cffecl, reduced its 
aggregate debt service payments by $5 1 I ,069 over the next twelve years through the advance refunding. 

NOTE 11- lNTERFUNl) BALANCES AND TRANSFERS 

The City has combined the cash resources or its governmental and proprietary fund types. For accounting 
and repo1ting purposes, that portion of the pooled cash balance ls reposted in the specific fund as an 
interfund balance. lnterl\111d ba lances at June JO, 2013 are as fol lows: 
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CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATKMENTS (CONTJNlJEU) 
For the Y cal' Ended ,June 30, 2013 

'' ''' Doq:fi·om 1·_--_ -........ 

Capital Nonmnjor Nonrnajor 
General l'rojccts Governmental Water Enterprise 

Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Totals 
::::. General rund $ 4,248.977 $ 754.406 $ 799.657 $ 28,939 $ 5,831,979 
:s: No11major Governmental Funds $ 1,245,416 1.245,4 I 6 
, <I} 

, .;:r. Sewer Fund 2,607,694 55,99 1 2.663 ,685 ;9'. 
$ 3,853, 110 $ 4,248,977 $ 754,406 $ 855,648 $ 28,939 $9,741 ,080 

Dt1ring the year, several intcrfund transactions occurred between fonds. The various transfers were made 
in accordance with budgclat·y authorizations. lnterfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2013 are flS 

follows: 

General 

Fund 

Cnpital 

Projects 
Fund 

Gem:rnl Fund $ 390,457 $ 

-~ Capitnl Projects Fund $3,147,484 
12,180 
68,948 

171,903 

:E. Nonmajor Governmental r unds 
~ -:r Sewer Fund 
:&Z. Water Fund 

$ J,400,5 1 S $ 390,457 $ 

NOT£ 12- R1~STR1CTE,D NET POSITION 

Net position is restricted for specific purposes as l<)l lows: 

Permanent funds - Endowment's 

Permanent funds - l11comc 
Community development 
Public safety grant funds 

School grant funds 
Other grant funds 

Granite State Business Park T l F District 

Per Exhibit/\ 

NOTE 13-COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE 

Sewer 

r und 
Water 
Fund Totals 

1,896 $ 1,896 $ 394,249 
3,147,484 

12,180 
68,948 

171,903 
1,896 $ 1,896 $3,794,764 --....... -

s 60,532 
18,727 
53,763 
6,659 
5,533 

10,282 
6 10,146 

$ 765,642 

The co111poncnts of the City ' s fund b11 lance for its govern men ti-ii funds at June J 0, 20 13 are i\s fol lows: 

Fund l3alances 

Noflspendahle: 
Prepaid expenses 
Endowments 

Inventory 

$ 

General 

Fund 

64,878 

33 

Capital 
Projects 

Fung 

Nonnrnjor 
Govcrnmenta I 

Fonds 

$ 60,532 
22, 128 

Total 

Governmental 

Funds 

$ 64,878 
60,532 
22,128 
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Cl'l'Y OF ROC II ESTl<:R , NEW HAMPSHIRE 
NOT ES TO BASIC Fl NANCIAL STATEMgNTS (CONTINlJE0 ) 
Foi· the Ycnr Ended .June 30, 2-0 13 

Ue.\'lricted jt,r: 
Permanent funds 
Community development 

Public safety grants 
School grunts 
Other grams 
Granite State L3usiness Park TlF Di~trict 

C11111111ittetlfor: 
Conservation 

Community Center 

A!.-signed }<1r: 
Economic development 

Computer purchases 
Planning 

l'ood service operations 
U1u1.\'Signet/ (deJidt): 
Unassigned - General operations 
Capital Projects 

537,244 

102,78 I 
20,000 

13,303,285 

$ 14,028,188 

NOTJ~ 14-CONTJNGENT LIABILITIES 

litigation 

$ {5,074,766) 

$ (5,074,766) 

18,727 18,727 
53,763 53,763 
6,659 6,659 
5,533 5,533 

10,282 10.282 
610, 146 610,146 

537,244 
236,246 236,246 

102,781 
20,000 

17,847 17,847 
22,469 22,469 

13,303,285 
(5,074,766) 

$ ! ,064,332 $ 10,017,754 

There are various claims and suits pend ing against the City, which arise in the normal course of the City's 
activities. In the opinion or legal counsel and City management, the potential claims against the City, 
whir.:h are not covered by insurance are immaterial and would not affect the fi111rncial position of the City. 

Federal Grant.\' 

The City participates in a number of fod~ral ly assisted grant programs. These progrnms arc subject to 
financial and compliance audits by lhe grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, or 
expendit'ures which may bo disallowed by the granting agency c1-1nnol be dete1111ined at this time. 1-1l though 
tho City expects such amounts, if any, to be immateria l. 
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SCl IEDULE J 

CITY OF ROCHESTER, NEW 11/\MPSMIHE 
Schedu le of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and /\ctu..il (Budgelary Basis) - General Fund 
Fur the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

l3udgctocl /\mounts 

Ol'iginal 
l~evenues: 
Taxes $ 51,'.W0,687 
Licenses and permits 3,995,050 
Intergovernmental 25,980,876 
Charges fo r services 3, 146,703 
Interest income 45,000 
Miscellaneous 510,063 

Total Revenues 84,878,379 

f~xpcnditures: 
Current (lperations: 
General government 4,033,920 
Pub I ic. safely I J ,255,8 17 
I lighwc1ys and streets 2,713,710 
I lealth and welfare 426,100 
Culture und re<.:rcation 1,7 13,081 
Community development 260,163 
Education 52,947,215 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 4,6 16,709 
Interest mid fiscal charges 1,657,292 

Intergovernmental 5,601,590 
Total Expenditures 85,225,597 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures (347,2 18) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Trans fcrs in 294,000 
Transfers out (2, 125,200) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,83 1,200) 

Net change in fund balance (2, 178,418) 

rund balan<.:es at beginning of year 
- Budgetary Basis 14,497,809 

Fund balances at end or year 
- Budgetary Basis $ 12,3 19,39 1 

See al'tJOl11/Ull1J!il'lg nu/es to the l'eq11il'ed supple111e11/WJ' information 
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f inal 

$ 51,200,687 
3,995,050 

25,980,876 
3,227,203 

45,000 
540,478 

84,989,294 

4,033,920 
11 ,336,317 
2,7 13,7 10 

426, I 00 
1,713,771 

260,588 
52,947,2 15 

4,6 16,709 
1,657,292 
5,601,590 

85,307,2 12 

(3 17,9 18) 

294,000 
(2, l 64,500) 

_ (_1,870,500) 

(2, 188,418) 

14,497,809 

$ 12,309,39 1 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Vurian(;e with 
Final Budget -

Ar.:tual Fc1vorable 
Amounts (Un favorable) 

$ 5 l ,595,952 $ 395,265 
4,337,076 342,026 

26, 190.734 209,858 
3,426,784 199,58 1 

81 ,347 36,347 
502,965 (37,513) 

86, 'I 34,858 I, 145,564 

3,738,966 294 ,954 
I 0,962,447 373,870 
2,580,697 I 33,013 

363,857 62,243 
1,661,530 52,241 

253,577 7,0 11 
52,56 1 J~ 13 385,402 

4,602,642 14,067 
1,637,227 20,065 
5,60 1,590 

83,964 ,346 1,342,866 

2, 170,5 12 2,488,430 

293,792 (208) 
_ {.?,381,692) (2 17,192) 

(2,087,900) (2 17,400) 

82,6 12 2,27 1,030 

_ 14,497,809 

$ 14,580,421 $ 2,271,030 
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SCHEIJULE2 
C ITY OF IH)C l-11<:STLm, Nl~W IIAM PSMIHE 
Schcdu lo of r11ndi11g Progress for Other Post-Employment Bcncnts 
For the Year Ended .June JO, 20 13 

Fiscal Actuarial Aetuuria I Untirnded 
Year Value of Accrued /\AL 

Ended Assets Liability (AAL) (UAAL} 

7/ 1/2012 $ $11,803 ,851 $ 11,803,851 

7/l/20 I I $ $ I 0, 966,032 $ 10,966,032 

7/ 1/2010 $ $ 12,231,22-6 $ 12,23 1,226 

See c,1,·cvmpr1nyinR notes r,11he required supple,nentmy i1?formu1ion 
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UAAL as a 
Percentage or 

Fundetl Covered Covered 
Ratio Payroll Payroll 

0.0% NIA NIA 

0.0% $ 41,460,481 26J1°,{, 

0.0% $ 40,252,894 JO.II% 



CJTY OF R0Cr1ESTER, NEW IJAMJ>SUm.E 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
.lune 30, 2013 

NOTE 1-BUDGl~T TO ACTUAL RECONCILIATION 

Genen,/ Fund 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

/\mounts recorded as budgetary amounts in the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance - 13udget and Actual (Buclgetmy Basis) - Genera l Fund (Schedule I) arc reported on the 
basis budgeted by the City. Those amounts differ from those reported in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental runds (Exhibit D). Property tax budgetary revenues are 
recognized when levied rather than when susceptible to accrual. Additional ly, budgetary revenues and 
other financing sources and expenditures and other financing uses were ad,i usted for non-budgetary 
activity, budgeta1y transfers out, -:apital lease proceeds, and bond refunding proceeds and payments as 
fo llows: 

Per 8xhibit D 
Difference in property laxes meeting 
st\sceptiblc Lo accrual criteria 

Non-budgctaty rcvent1cs 1tnd expenditures 
Non-budgetary transfers in and out 
!3uclgetary transfers out 
Capital lease proceeds. 
Bond refimding proceeds and payments 

Per Schedule I 

NOTE 2- BUDGETARY FUND BALANCE 

$ 

$ 

Revenues 
and Other 
Financing 
Sources 
91,779,578 

(477,897) 
(606,540) 
(100,457) 

(158,361) 
(4,007,673) 

86,428,650 

Expenditures 
and Other 
Financing 

Uses 
$ 91,664,449 

(133,554) 
(1,028,823) 

10,000 
(158,361) 

(4,007,673) 

$ 86,346,038 

The comµo nents of the budgetary fund ba lam:e for the General Fund at June 3 0, 20 I J are as lol l0\.vs: 

No11spe11doh/e: 
Pre pa id expenses 

1lssig11edf<Jf: 
Computer purchases 

U11a.t~ig11ed: 
Unassigned - Gencn1 I operations 

37 

$ 64,878 

20,000 

14,495,543 

$ 14,580,42 1 
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13. CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

CITY OF ROCJ·JESTli:R, NEW JIAMPSfHRJi~ 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPf>LEMENTAHY INFORMATION (CONTJNUED) 
.June 30, 2013 

NOTE 3-SCHE0ULE 01? FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTIJER J>QST-EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS 

In accordance with GASl3 Statement #45, //ccounting and Financial Reporting by F:mployers for Post­
Employment Benefits Other 11wn Pensions, 1J1e City is requ ired to disclose lhe schedule of fund ing 
progress for each or {he th ree most recent actuarial valuations. The City implemented the provisions of 
GASB Statement 1145 during the year ended June 30, 2009. Accordi ngly, the ft111d ing progress has been 
presented fo1· the three most recent actuarial valuat ion reports. 
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SCI ll ' DlJl41i I 
C IT\' OF llOCIIESTEli, Nl~W l li\Ml'SIIIRE 
Schl·dulr or l~-x pcn<Jilnn•s of Fcdcrnl i\wl\r<Js 
for Jhc Ycnr Ended June 30. 2013 

Federal Crn11Lin!!, /\gcncyll{ccipicnt 
Stntc /\gency/Grnnl l'rogram/Statc 
Grant Nt11nbcr 
l)El't\lflWIENT OF AGIHCIILTlllrn 
Ptts~ Tlll'ougli l'nymcnts l'mm the New I lmnpshirc 
I )cpa1'1111c1ll of I i<ha:11tfo11 
School Brouk f'ast Progrn111 

National Scl10ol Lunch Prog111111 

Spcc1nl Milk Prognun f'or Chflclrcn 

Summer Food Service Progrmn for Clli ldrcn 

Fresh Frnit and Vcgct11blc Pror.rnm 

Totul t>cpartnH'llt ol' Agriculture 

l)tWAlffMEN'I' ()J,' IIOIISING 1\NB URBAN l)EVlt LCWMl~N'I' 
Rcccivc<I din.:clly from U.S. Trcnsury Department 

C,11nnH111ily Development lllock Gntnls/l:nt1tlc111cnt Grm11s 
llllC-11 -MC-33-000'1 
/IBC- l 2-MC-33-0004 

Pass Through i'uy111cnts from the New Hampshire 
Co1111111111ity r)cvclopmenl Finance i\othority 
Community O<.:vcl()pmcnt !31Qck Grn111s/Statc's l'rogra111 and 
Non-Enlitlcmcnl Orn111s in Hawnii 
/109-2 16-NSl'I I 

P;1ss Through l'ay1m:111s rro111 the 1{01:hester Housi111, Authorily 
l'uhlic l·lousing C'11pi(al Fund 
//Ni IJ61'0085Ul 13 

'1'(1t;11 l>cpartnll'1ll or llousini:: lln<I tirh11n lk vclu11111cnt 

l>EPAHTMENT 01• .JIISTICE 
l'ilss Through l' <1y111cn1s fi-om the New l ·lampshf1c 
Ol'lko of'thc Clovcnmr n1HI i\11orncy Guncrnl 

Missing Chil(!rcn's /\ssislllm:c 
112012-MC-CX"K034 

Pnss Throu!!,h 1'11ymc11ts from the Dcp11rtmc111 ol' Justice 
Through the County ofStrolford. New I l~mpshirc 

Bulletproof' Vc$t l'urtncrship l'rogrum 
1120 I 0-13U-BX- 1005~2433 

Received dircelly rrom U.S. Treasury Dcpurtmcm 
Bulletproof v~-st Partnership Program 
112012-llU-OX-1206-33 74 

See 110/es lo sd1ec/11/e q(es111mdi1111·es ofji!deral a11•11rds 
)() 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Federal 
Catalogue 
Number 

10.55] 

10.555 

10.556 

IO.S59 

10.582 

ltl.2 f8 

ltl.228 

ltl.872 

lu.543 

16.607 

)6,607 

.!ifil>cnditlll'CS 

$ 188.156 

()0 1,882 

802 

29,573 

84,'107 

1.204,820 

138,00~ 
88,200 

226,205 

409 

42, 179 

268,793 

2,721 

1,198 
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13 CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

SCI I EDU LG l 
C l'I'\' O F RO C II ES'l'f:R, NEW IIAM l'SII IRI•: 
Srhcclulc or t,;xpc11<lil11rcs of Fcclcrul Aw:11·<1~ (Co111i1111l'd) 
For the Ycur Ende(] Jlr11c 30, 2013 

Fcdcrul Gramiug Agcncy/ncdpient 
Stale /\gcncy/Clr:mt l'rogr11111/Statc 
Grnnt Number 
Dlil'A lrfMKNT OF ,Jl lSTICli (C()N'l'INllED) 
Received directly from U.S. Trcnsury Dcp11rtmc111 

l'ublic S~fcty l'ar1ncrsh1p ond Community Polici111,; Grants 
112009-CK-WX-OO\JJ 
112009-CK-WX-07 I S 

Received dircclly fro111 U.S. Trcnsury Dq,ar1111c111 

Fcdcrnl 
C:a1alog11c 
Numrn:r 

]6.710 

Public Saf'cly Parlncrshtp mid Comn11111ity Policing Grnnts, Recovery Progn111i 16. 7 J 0 
/12009-RK-WX-06 l 6 

i'uss T hrough l)11ymc11 ts from the Dcpartmonl or Justice 
Th,·m1gh the County 111' Strnffol'd. New I lampshirc 
I:clwuru 13ymc Mcmorfnl .tus1icc Assistance GnHil Program I 6.73~ 
112012-D.l-13X-097 I 

P,,ss Through Pny111cnls from the New Hampshire 
Dupa1·1111cn1 ol'.lusticu 
Etlwunl Byrn<; Mcmorii1I JusliL'C Assistance Omni l'rog,ran\ I 6.7J8 

/12010-D,1-UX-07IJ9 

Pnss 'l'hrm1gh Payments fro111 the Dcpm·trncnt or J11sticc 
Through the County ol'Stra fford, New I lt1111pshirc 
llcwwry Act• falw,ird 13)'rtlC Mcn11,rinl Justil)c Assistance Gn1111 
(.IAG) l'rogr:unttirant$ 10 Uni ls of t.ocul Govcn1111cm 16.804 
112001)-S 13-139-2452 

Received directly from U.S. 'l'tc1,sury Dcpnrtmcnl 
O1·gani7,Cd Crime Drug l ihlhrcc1nc11t rn$k l·orccs 16.Nl: -Ml,-98 
/INE-Ml:-l)8 

'l'ot:11 Dcpnrtmcnl of.lusticc 

Ul•; l'Alffi\•11·'.NT OF 'l'RANSl'OR'l'/\TION 
Pass Through Pay1HL:lll$ from the New Hampshire 
Dc1,nr1mc111 of 'l'rnnspor1a1ion 
I l ighwt1)' !'Imming and Co11struction 
IIX-A002(320), 14350 
/IX-/\002(377). 22712 

l'nss Through Payments rrom the New I lnmpsh1rc 
I ligl11v~y Sali:ty Agcrity 
Stotc and Cormn11nily I fighway Salety 
1/J 14-13/1-002 
113 15- IJA-091I 

Alcohnl lmpmrcd Dl'iving Co1111wnncns11rcs lnL:c111ivc Grnnts I 
ff308-13A-028 
1/J 15- 1 J/1-095 

To1t1l fkp1u·t1nc111 ol'Trnnspur1>1t1011 

See //Oles lo .,d1ed11/e ofexpendifw•es uff,:Jeral award.v 
40 

20,205 

20,600 

20,60 I 

~pc11ui\ures 

10.827 
26 110 
36.937 

119.804 

)2.837 

30,000 

173 

11 ,()00 

216,228 

869 
41 ,562 
42,43 I ---

607 
8 18 

1,425 

097 
_ _ _ _ l,1\37 
_ __ 2.434 

46,290 



SClff.DUI.I, I 
CITY OF HOCII F.S'l'ER, NEW IIAMPSllllm 
Srhrduk 111' 1-:x prntliturcs or Fctlcnil Aw:ll'tls (Continuetl) 
l'or thc Ycur Enclcd J1111u 30, 20 I 3 

Federal Ornnting /\gc,wy/Rccipiunt 
Srntc Agcncy/Urn,11 l'rngn1111/S1mc 

.£,ry11t Ntttnbcr 
EN\ll ltONMl<:N'l'AL l)ltOT EC'rrON AG1,'.NCY 
P11ss Thm11gil P11y11u:11ts from the New l-lmnpshire 
Dcpnr1111cnt ol' Jinviro111nc11t!ll Survicc.~ 

Co111:srcsslt)11!1IIY M1t11tlatcll Pnijects 
~ EM-971653-0 I 

Ct1pital iza1ion Gnmts lor Clc1111 Water Stole Ruvolving Funds 
I/CS-330122- 12 

Cnpitali:wtion Grnnts for Clean Wutcr Stutc Revolving Futicls - J\I\R./1 
I/CS-333122-1 0/ 1013 

C:1pit11li,rnlion CJrmus fbr Drinkin~ Water State Revolving FmHI~ • /\HR/\ 
//200 IO I 0-08 

'1'0111I E11vin)n1u1•11111I t>,·orcction /\~ency 

1)1..:l'A lrl'MENT OF EDUCATION 
Pass Through Pnymcnts lhm1 the New I lailipshirc 
Dcpm·n11c1n or E<lucmion 
/\dull Ed11cntio11 - 13iL~ic Grmlls w Stmcs 
1137307 

Title I Cirnnt~ 1<1 Loc!II l :ducutio11;1I /\gc11c1c~ 
1/2() 121 
/120287 
//20289 
113012) 
/IJ02\II 
//3 1518 
1/326()5 

Spcdal Gduca1foll • G1'atllS lO Stcllcs 
1/22557 
//32511 

Citrccr a11d ·rcchnit:nl l!duca1ion - Oa,ic Grants to Swtcs 
1125032 
11]50.12 

Spccii1I EclucHtion • Preschool Gn1111s 
1122557 
l/325l l 

rJduc.;ation J'or I lumclcss Children nnll Yo11th 
1120702 
1/30702 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Fc1krnl 
Cntalllguc 

~ 

()6,202 

66.458 

66,458 

M ,4/il! 

811.002 

1111,010 

84,027 

84,048 

84,173 

l!~. 1% 

3 1. 171 

2.)28 

275,468 

l20. l29 

429,096 

20/105 

156.M9 
12,490 

lj I 
I, 174.k06 

9,598 
6,786 
8,200 

__ 1_.368,570 

5, 126 
996,684 

1,00 1,810 

1.\172 
129,Ml 
IJ 1,613 

249 
38.947 
J9, l96 

2,67•1 
83/107 
86,081 
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SCflEDUW I 
C ITY OF 1wc111,:s n m, Nl~W lli\M l'S llllm 
Srhcdulc of l-: x1w 11d it 11rrs or Fl·lh'ntl i\wun ls (Con tinued) 
f70l' th~ Year l.:11clcd ,lime Jl), 2013 

Federal Grnnting Agcncy/Redpicnt F0llcrnl 
State Agcncy/Urnnt Program/Staie Cutnloguc 

Grant N1111~ - - ------------------- Nlllllil.!:I 
IJl~PAl!TMENT OF l~IH ICA'l'ION (CONTINlll':I)) 

English L111g1111gc Acquisition Stale Urn1Hs 
II 10807 
1120807 

Mnihcnrntics 1111d Suicncc P11rtncrships 
1125 192 
1/)5 192 

Improving Tcncl1cr Quality Stutc Oran ls 
// 14922 
1/24922 
1134922 

Total lkp:1rt111tnl of l<:<lnl':lliOf'I 

l)f:l'AU'l'l\mNT OF IIOM r,:J.i\NJ) sr:ClllUT\I 
Pass Through Payment~ from ll1l, New I lamp~hin: 
Dcpnrtmcnt orl lomclancl Sc,.;urlly mid l:1111.:rgcncy Munngc111cn1 
Emergency Ma1111gcmcnl Pcrl'ornumcc Ortmls 
1120II-Gl'-{)002J-S0I 
11231:MI 18092 

R~ccivcd direct ly from LI .S Trl::1sury Duparlmcnl 
i\ssislnncc lo Firefighters Grnni 
I/EM W-20 I 2-F0-02361 

P:iss Thrnugh Payments lh>m lhi.: New t lnmpshirec 
Depi1nmcut or l·lomchmd Security and Emergency Mmrngc111cm 
I lomdan(I Sccuri iy Ora11I Prl1gtiJlll 
//2007-G['-'1'7-00SJ 
112009-Gl:-T<)-0U78 

Totaf l>qiarlmt•u l or llomch1nd St·ru ril)' 

Tnlal Exprndilun,s ur flc<lrrul Awnn ls 

Sea 1101es 10 sd1ed11/~ oj e.f;1and1111re,v CJ/(eduro/ award.1· 
42 

R4.J65 

84.367 

C)?.{)112 

\)7,044 

l.lillCllclilllrCS 

4,43) 
J,6)2 
8,065 

184,5 17 
2JJ.%CJ 
418,47] 

4,000 
65,115 

187,494 
256,609 

J.JJ0,822 

29,256 
4,325 

JJ.sa 1 

97,658 

1, 832 
___ 7..;c.J ,154 
___ 7c...;.4,986 

20Ci.225 

$ 5,702.274 



CITY Oil' HOClrnSTEn, N'EW HAMPSHIRE 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

NOTES TO SCl-fED ULI!: OF EXPENDITURES OJi' FEDERAL AWAIIDS 
June 30, 2013 

NOTE I - GENERAL 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents Lhc activ ity of all federal 
financial assistance programs or the Ci ly of' Roches1.er, New Hampshire. The City of Rochester, New 
Hampshire's reporting entity is defined in Note I to the City's basic financial statements. All federal 
funds are included on the schedule. 

NOTE 2- BASJS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Fedei'a l Awards is presen ted using the modified accrua l 
basis of accounting, which is described in Note I to the City's basic financial statements. 

NOTI~ 3- NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 

The City participates in tJ1e USDA Food Distribution Program which is a non-cash program. On the 
Schedule of [;;xpenditures of federa l Awards, $95,468 has been repo1ied as part of the National School 
Lunch Program which represents the val ue of commodities received by the. City. 

NOTE 4-RELATIONSHlP TO BASTC FlN ANCJAL STATl~MENTS 

The recognition of expenditures of federa l awards has been reported in the City's bas ic financial 
statements as intergovernmental revenues in the governmental funds and capital contributions in the 
proprietary funds as f'ollows: 

Mnjor Governmental Fund: 
Capital Projects Fund 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Major Proprietary Fund: 
Sewer Fund 

$ 42,430 
5,135,280 

J l,171 
$ 5,208,881 

The t·ecog;nition of expenditures of federal awards in the amounts of $275,468 and $120,129 represent 
fifty percent of the drawdowns from the Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolvi ng Loan Pund 
Programs, respectively. As authorized by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, federal 
financial assistance in the form of principa l forgiveness not to exceed $1, I 02,500 and $230,000, 
respectively, or 50% of aggregate disbursements, whichever is less, will be rorgiven at the time of the 
initic1I loan repayment. 

J\dditionally, the recognition or expenditures of federal award~ in the amount of $2,32-8 represents 
twenty-five percent of the drawdowns from the Clean Water Slate Revolving Loan Fu11d Program. 
rederal financial assistance in the form of principal forgiveness not to exceed $136,250 or 25% of 
aggregate disbursements, whichever is less, wi ll be forgiven at the time or the initial loan repayment, 
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~ VACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PIJBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
608 Chestnut Street • Manchesler, New Hampshire 03104 

(603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www vachonclukay.com &COMPANY PC 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 13ASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and Manager 
City of Rochester, New Hampshire 

We have audited, in accordance with the aud iting standards general ly accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Rochester, New Hampshire, as of and for the year ended June 30, 20 I 3, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Rochester, New 
Hampshire's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January J 1, 20 l 4. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of 
Rochester, New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an op inion on the effectiveness of the City 
of Rochester, New Hampshire's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City of Rochester, New Hampshire's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity's financial statements wil I not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance a nd Other Matters 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

As part of obta ining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Rochester, New 
l lampshire's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed rests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, con tracts, and gr<-1nt agreements, noncompliance 
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financia l statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was nOt an objective of our audit, 
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resu lts of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are requi red to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Re po rt 

The purpose of this report is solely lo describe the scope of our testi ng of internal control and 
compliance and the results of thut testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integra l pa rt of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity ' s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communica tion is not su itable for any other purpose. 

Manchester, New Hampshire 
January J 1, 20 14 
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~ VACHON CLUKAY 
&COMPANY PC 

CERT lf(ED PUBLI C ACCOUN°fANTS 
608 Chestnut SLreet • Manchester, New Hampshire 0}l04 

(603) 622-7070 • Fax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.corn 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM 
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE 

[ndependent Auditor's Report 

To the Honorable Mayor, City Council and Manager 
City of Rochester, New Hampshire 

Repol't on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the City of Rochester, New Hampshire's compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the 0MB C;rcular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have 
a direct and material effect on each of the City of Rochester, New Hampshire's major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2013. The City of Rochester, New Hampshire's major federal programs are 
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Ma11agement's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regu lations, contracts, 
and grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City of Rochester, New 
Hampshire' s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financ ial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards 
and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An aud it includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence about the City of Rochester, New Hampshire's compliance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of 
Rochester, New Hampshire's compliance. 

Opinion 011 Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the City of Rochester, New Hampshire complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each 
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 301 2013. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Management of the City of Rochester, New I lampshi re is respons ible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above. In planning, and performing our aud it of compliance, we considered the City of 
Rochester, New Hampshire's internal control over compliance with the types of requ irements that could 
have a direct and material effect on each major federa l program to determine the aud iting procedures that 
arc appropriate in the ci rcumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each 
major federal program and to test and report oil internal control over compliance in accordance with 
0 MB Circulcir A-133, but not fo r the purpose o r expressing an opinion on the effectiveness or internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of 
Rochester, New 1-lampsh ire's internal control over compliance. 

A deflciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation o r a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing thcit· 
ass igned funct ions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. J\ material weakness in internal cont1·0I over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over c01nplicrnce, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federa I program wi 11 not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. /\ signtficant 
deficiency in internal co11trol over compliance is a deficiency, or a co111bination of defic iencies, in 
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less 
severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was fo r the limited purpose described in 
the f'i rst parag111ph of th is section and was not des igned to identify a 11 deficiencies in interna I control over 
compliance that might be materia l weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identi fy any 
defic iencies in interna l control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requ irements of 1~ Accordingly, this ••;;; not suitable for any other pu;~ 

Manchester, New Hampshire 
January 31, 2014 
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City of Rochcstcr1 New Hamps hire 
Schcd u le of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section 1--Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial S101e111e111s 

Type of aud itor's report issued: Unmodified - all reporting units 
lnterna l control over financial reporting: 

MatcriH I wcakness(cs) identified? 
Significant deficiency(ies) identilied 

not considered lo be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance matcriiil to financial statements noted? 

Fedeml A wards 

Internal Contro l over major programs: 
Material weakncss(cs) identified'? 
Significant deficiency(ies) idenli lied 

not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on coin pl iance 
for major programs: 

Any aud it findings disclosed that arc required 
to be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-133, Section .51 0(a)? 

ldenti fication tl l ma_jor programs: 

_ ___ es -~x~_ no 

___ .J es -~X-=-- none reported 

cs - - -~ -~x __ no 

___ ..., es _...,,X..,___ no 

es ---- X none reported 

U17!nodi0ed 

----cs - ~x~_ no 

CFDA Numbcr(s) Name uf J<'cclcral Program or Cluster 

16.710 

66.458 

66.468 

84.0 10 

Public S11fety P,u-tncrship and Community Policing Grnnts 

Capitalizalion Gnmts for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 

Capitali7.ation Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 

T(tle J Grants to Local Educ.ational Agencies 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and 13 program: $ 300,000 

/\oclitec q11alilied HS low-risk iwditcc? X yes no 
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Section ll--Fim111cial Stutcment Findings 

CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

There were no findings relating to the financia l statements rcquin.:d 10 be.: reported by GAGAS. 

Section IIT--Fcdcnil /\ward Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no findings 1-1nd questioned costs required to berepoi1ed under 0 M B Circular A-133 .S I 0(n). 
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CH"y of Rochester, New lliimpshirc 
For the Year En<leil .June 30, 201 3 

Required Communicalions lo Those Charged with Governance 

Professional standards established by the American Institute ol'Ccrt if'icd l'ublic /\<:.countants (/\!CP/\) require indcpcntlcnl uuditori; 
lo communicate certain mailers direetly to the Mayor, City Council or an appropriate commillce or the City. This information is 
intended solely l'or the use ol' the Mayor, City Council and management and is not intcnclctl 10 be or should not be used by anyone 
other than those spcei 11cd part ies. These communications arc ns lol lowH: 

Requirements 

' l'hc level or rcspon.~ibi l ily we 11ssu111e in an autli t. 

In atldil ion lo lhc above: 

G/\G/\S (Single Audit requirement) 

Management is responsible for the sclcdion und use ()f 

uppmprialc accounting policies. We discussed our Judgments 
about the qun lity orucctiunting principles selected, the 
consistence In their Hpplieation and the elari ty in presentation 
incJuding,iudgments and uncertainties. 

Clu,1nges in existing accounting policies nnd/or the <1dortion of 
new policies. 

Transactions identi ficd with luck or authoritative guidance or 
consent and related nltcmMive treatments discussed with 
mamigemcnt. 

Transactions were recorded in the proper nccounting period. 

Response 

Pcr f-orming the audit in accordc1nu: with auditing stnndartls 
generally aceq,tcd in the Unitud Stutes ol' /\mcrica. 

Expressing opinions as to the luirness with which the 
Cily's linancial statements arc presented in all materia l 
respe<.:ls in eonlhrmity wi th accounting prinuiplcs genernl ly 
accepted in the United States or A mcrica. 

We considered the internal controls developed by the City . 

We considered the internal control over cl\mpliancc with the 
requirements that could have a di rect material effect on ::i 

rna}or program in order tt) delerrninc our audit p1·occdurcs 
and to test the internal control over compl iancu. We used 
appl icabk compliance supplements to nrnke the above 
determination. 

These arc described in Note I ol' the financial statements. 

During the yc!\r ended .lune 30, 20 13. the Clty adopted and 
implemented the l'ol lowing Governmental /\ccounting Sh1ndurds 
Board Sta!t:rncJils: 

G/\SB 1/63 - Financial Reporti11g of D~(erred 011tflvws 1l 
Resowces, Deferred Inflows of Re::,·011/'ces, and Ne/ l'osilion 

CJ/\Sl3 1165 - Items l'revio11sly /?eported as Assets ond Uohilities 

Nothing came to our alten1io11. 

Nothing came to our aucnlion. 



CITY OF ROCHESTER 
ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

City of Rochester, New llampshirc 
l◄'or t he Yclll' Euclcd .luuc 30, 2013 

Require() Cumm1111icatio11s to Those Charged wil'l1 Covcniancc (Continued) 

Signifieunt uccounting estimntcs that arc pal'ticularly sensitive Ovcrull we believe management's estimations process lo be 
bccuuse or their signific,rncc lo the firurncial statements and aprmpriale and conservative. 

because of the l)Ossibility that l"l1tL11\! events affecting them may 
differ markedly l'rom management'~ current judgments. 

Certain linancial statement disclosures arc purlicularly sensitive Nothing came to <)ur aLtcntion. 
lo linancial slalcmcnt users. Signi flcanL d isclosures not made arc: 

We performed the audit according to planl1(:d scope and timing Engagement lcller dated October 18, 2013. 
previously communicated to you. 

Signilieanl audit ad_justmcnts. None. 

Uncorrected misstatements as part of" the audit. None. 

Mnterial weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal Nothing came lo our attention. 

conLrols noted during the uudil. 

The nature of significant disagreements with management on Nothing came Lo our uttcntion. 
linancial ac0ounLing matters or uuditing proct:dures. 

/\ny dil'fiCLllties e11col111tered in dealing with 111am1gc111cnt that Management has been extremely eooperutivc throughout the uudit. 

affected the performance oftht: audit. 

Formal opinions management obtained from other independent Manugcnient did not make us aware of any. 
accountants on significant accounting issues. 

Major 11ccolmti11g or auditing issues discussed with None. 
mmiagcmcnt prioi- L() being 1·ctained us m1dlto1·s. 

We obtained certain representations from management which None. 

we consider to be ndditions lo our slunclurd letter, these arc: 

rrnud i nvolving rnu11ngcmcnt that t:u,,sed a material Nothing cumc to our allcnti(ill. 

misstatement to the linaneial srntcmcnts. 

Independence issL1cs, We are not awn re of imy instances that wc bcl icvc would 
impact lll,Jr independence. 
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Chapter Six 

Useful Contacts 
6.1 Department Contacts: 

City of Rochester - main line 
(hours of operation Mon - Fri 8am - 5pm) 

Arena 
Assessing 
Auto Registration 
Business Office 
City Clerk 
City Manager 
Code Enforcement/Building Safety 
Corporate Eth ice & Compliance Helpline 
Economic Development 
Finance 
Fire Department - Main Station 
Fire Department - Gonic Station 
Human Resources 
Library (hours M-Th 9am - 8:30pm, 

Fri 9am - 5pm, Sat 9am - 4pm) 
MIS (Municipal Information Systems) 
Planning 
Police Department 

Emergency 
Dispatch - Auto attendant 
Dispatch - non-emergency 

Public Works 
Recreation 
Tax Collector 
Utility Billing 
Wastewater Facility 
Water Treatment Facility 
Welfare 

603-335-7500 

603-335-6749 
603-332-5109 
603-332-1136 
603-335-7602 
603-335-2130 
603-332-1167 
603-332-3508 
603-509-1905 
603-335-7522 
603-335-7609 
603-335-7545 
603-332-6416 
603-335-7503 
603-332-1428 

603-335-7588 
603-335-1338 

911 
603-330-7127 
603-330-7128 
603-332-4096 
603-332-4120 
603-332-1136 
603-332-3110 
603-332-8950 
603-335-4291 
603-332-3505 
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6.2 Other Frequently Requested Numbers: 
Court House 
Department of Health & Human Services 
Dover Adult Learning Center 
Information /Operator 
Metrocast 
Rochester Chamber of Commerce 
Rochester Housing Authority 
Rochester Main Street 
Rochester School Department 
Rochester Senior Center 
Salvation Army Pantry (M-F 9am - 3pm) 

855-212-1234 
603-332-9120 
603-335-6200 

411 
603-332-5466 
603-332-5080 
603-332-4126 
603-332-3208 
603-332-3678 
603-332-7845 
603-332-2723 

Service link 211 
Social Security Administration 603-433-0716 or 800-234-5772 
Strafford County Community Action Partnership (CAP) 603-516-8130 
Strafford Regional Planning Commission 603-994-3500 
Waste Management 603-332-2386 

Share Fund (located in the Community Center - 150 Wakefield Street) 603-335-0011 
Community Clothing Shop hours: Wed & Sat 9am - 3pm 
Emergency Financial Assistance hours: Mon/Thurs 9am - 4pm 
Gerry's Food Pantry hours: Mon & Fri 1pm - 3:15, 

Wed 10am - 3:15pm 
Shelters 

Homeless Center for Strafford County (Rochester) 603-332-3065 
My Friend's Place (Dover) 603-749-3017 
Crossroads House (Portsmouth) 603-436-2218 
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6.3 State and Local Representatives 

State of New Hampshire 
House of Representatives 

Name 
Senator Sam Cataldo 

Audrey Stevens 
James P. Gray 
Steven P. Beaudoin 
Warren Groen 
Anne C. Grassie 
Pamela J. Hubbard 
Rose Marie Rogers 
David P. Miller 
Laura M. Jones 

Address 
120 Hometown Road, Farmington, NH 

8 Lisa Lane, Rochester, NH 
21 Roulx Drive, Rochester, NH 
24 Hemlock Street, Rochester, NH 
17 Alice Lane, Rochester, NH 
146 Brock Street, Rochester, NH 
49 Ten Rod Road, Rochester, NH 
29 Eagle Drive, Rochester, NH 
7 Harding Street, Rochester, NH 
9 Jackson Street, Rochester, NH 

Terms to expire January 2, 2015 

Representing 
District 6 

District No. 7 WARD 1 
District No. 8 WARD 6 
District No. 9 WARD 2 
District No. 10 WARD 3 
District No. 11 WARD 4 
District No. 12 WARD 5 
District No. 22 (FL) WARDS 1 & 6 
District No. 23 (FL) WARDS 2 & 3 
District No. 24 (FL) WARDS 4 & 5 
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